
 

WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 

 
Our Mission: 

Protect the Public by Ensuring That Gambling is Legal and Honest 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Heathman Lodge 
7801 NE Greenwood Drive 
Vancouver, Washington  98662 
(360) 254-3100 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION MEETING 
AGENDA PACKET 

 
 
 
 

THURSDAY, April 10, 2014 
(ONE-DAY MEETING) 



COMMISSION MEMBERS 

Mike Amos – Chair 

Kelsey Gray 

Christopher Stearns 

Vacant Position

 Vacant Position 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 

Senator Steve Conway 

Senator Mike Hewitt 

Representative Christopher Hurst 

Representative Bruce Chandler 

DIRECTOR 

David Trujillo 



 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
Commission Meetings are Open to the Public 

Visit our web site at www.wsgc.wa.gov 
 

Location of Meeting: Date and Time of Meeting 
Vancouver Heathman Lodge 
7801 NE Greenwood Drive 
Vancouver, WA  98662 
360-254-3100 

Thursday, April 10, 2014 
1:00 p.m. (Note earlier start time) 
One-Day Only 

  
 

Informal Study Group Session 
10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m. – Charitable/Nonprofit and Commercial Operators Study Session 
(Note extended time:  This will include the Director introducing future discussion of 

Agency funding and areas related to funding.) 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Please note, agenda items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair. 

1. Director’s Report David Trujillo, Director 

a) Strategic Session Follow-up 
b) History of Gambling Taxes 
c) News Articles  
d) Monthly Update Reports 

2. Approval of Minutes – February 13-14, 2014 Commission Meeting  

- ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS - 

3. New Licenses and Class III Employees Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 
4. Approval of Strategic Plan Tom Means, Administrator 
 
 

Please turn cell phones off during meeting sessions 
 

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 
 

http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/


Commission Meeting  
April 10, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

5. Problem Gambling Presentation - An Introduction to Issues and a Consideration of the 
Continuum: What is Problem Gambling and Why is it a Problem? 
• Maureen Greeley, Executive Director, Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling. 
• Dolores Chiechi, Executive Director of the Recreational Gaming Association and Board 

Vice President of the Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling. 
•  Cheryl Wilcox, Problem Gambling Program Manager, Department of Social and Health 

Services, Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery.   

- ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS – 

Rule Up For Final Action 
 

6. Staff Proposed Rule Change  Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Gambling equipment. 
Filed 02/20/2013 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #13-05-082. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #14-05-078 with a published date of 3/05/2014. 

• Amendatory Section: WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling 
equipment. 

• New Section: WAC 230-06-054 Notification of electronic or mechanical gambling 
equipment malfunctions. 

 
7. Staff Proposed Rule Change  Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

Background checks on landlords. 
Filed 12/19/2013 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #14-02-008. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #14-05-081 with a published date of 3/05/2014. 

• New Section: WAC 230-03-061 Fingerprinting persons holding an interest in the building of 
house-banked card room licensees or charitable or nonprofit licensees in regulatory groups 
III, IV, or V.  

 
8. Staff Proposed Rule Change 

Holding stay hearings within 14 days, rather than seven. Amy Hunter, Administrator 
Filed 1/26/2013 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #13-24-055. Proposed Rule Making 
(CR-102) under WSR #14-05-080 with a published date of 3/05/2014. 

• Amendatory Section: WAC 230-17-170 Petition and hearing for stay of the summary 
suspension. 

 

9. Staff Proposed Rule Change  Amy Hunter, Administrator 
Allowing pull-tab prizes of $20 or less to be added to cash cards used in electronic 
video pull-tab dispensers.   
Filed 9/17/2013 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #13-19-073. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #13-23-054 with a published date of 12/04/2013. 

• Amendatory Section: WAC 230-14-047 Standards for electronic video pull-tab dispensers. 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings.  Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Michelle Rancour, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3447 or TDD (360) 486-3637.  Questions or comments 
pertaining to rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator and Public Information Officer at (360) 486-3466. 



Commission Meeting  
April 10, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

Rules Up For Discussion and Possible Filing 

 
10. Petition from the Public:  John Lowmon, licensed distributor representative.   

Requiring bingo and pull-tab manufacturers to make related products and equipment 
available to all distributors.             Mark Harris, Assistant Director 
Filed 03/04/2014 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #14-06-092.  

• New Section: WAC 230-16-003 Bingo and pull-tab manufacturers must make related 
products and equipment available to all distributors. 

 
11. Staff Proposed Rule Change  Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

Manufacturer’s special sales permit. 
Filed 11/26/2013 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #13-24-054.  

• Amendatory Section: WAC 230-03-024 Applying for a manufacturer’s special sales permit. 
• New Section: WAC 230-16-187 Accounting records for manufacturer’s special sales permit 

holders. 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

12. Other Business/General Discussion/Comments from the Public 

13. Executive Session to Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and 
Litigation 

14. Adjourn 

Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings.  Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Michelle Rancour, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3447 or TDD (360) 486-3637.  Questions or comments 
pertaining to rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator and Public Information Officer at (360) 486-3466. 



The Minutes 
From the 

Febr,uary 13 - 14, 2014 
& 

Afarch 13, 2014 
Com~mission Meetings 

were not available at the time of printing 

They will be emtiiled to you and copies will be 
providetl at the April meeting. 

The meeting minutes 
will also be available on the 

agency welJsite (,vww. wsgc. wa.gov) 

' ' 
' ' ' 
' ' ' 
'-
' ' ' ' ' ' 
' ' ' 



COMMISSION APPROVAL LIST 
(New Licenses & Class Ill Gaming Employees) 

April 2014 

PAGE 
NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS & COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES........... .... 1-5 

DISTRIBUTOR REPRES£NTATTVE.................................................... 6 

MANUF/\CTURER REPRESENTATIVE.............................................. 6-7 

CALL CENTER REPRESENTATIVE................................................... 7 

NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER... ..... ............ ........... .. ............... 7 

SERVICES SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE........................................... 7-8 

PUBLJC C/\RD ROOM EMPLOYEE................................ .............. ..... 8-12 

CLASS III G/\MING EMPLOYEE....................................................... 13-19 

PAGES: 19 

Based upon the licensing investigations, staff recommends approving all new Licenses and 
Class Jll employees listed on pages I to 19. 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

ORGANIZATION NAME 
FILE NUMBER 

  
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 1 of 19 

BINGO 

GRANITE FALLS WA 98252 A 01-02066 00-03231 
20310 GUN CLUB RD GRANITE FALLS SPORTSMAN'S CLUB 

LANGLEY WA 98260 A 01-02693 00-23144 
819 CAMANO AVE ISLAND COUNTY FAIR ASSOC 

CHEWELAH WA 99109 A 01-02691 00-06868 
302 E MAIN ST SENIOR CITIZENS/CHEWELAH VALLEY 

RAFFLE 

ANACORTES WA 98221 B 02-09367 00-23137 
5009 KING WAY DUCKS UNLIMITED 00044/CHELAN 

SEATTLE WA 98117 A 02-09398 00-23181 
BALLARD ELKS LODGE DUCKS UNLIMITED/BALLARD 

BELLEVUE WA 98004 A 02-09403 00-23186 
11211 MAIN ST DUCKS UNLIMITED/BELLEVUE 

CHEHALIS WA 98532 B 02-09399 00-23183 
189 N FORK RD DUCKS UNLIMITED/CHEHALIS 

VANCOUVER WA 98685 B 02-09389 00-23170 
712 NE 149TH ST DUCKS UNLIMITED/COLUMBIA GORGE 

EVERETT WA 98203 C 02-09397 00-23180 
1500 52ND ST SE DUCKS UNLIMITED/EVERETT 

GIG HARBOR WA 98335 B 02-09392 00-23173 
THE INN AT GIG HARBOR DUCKS UNLIMITED/GIG HARBOR 

GOLDENDALE WA 98620 A 02-09377 00-23149 
108 N GRANT ST DUCKS UNLIMITED/GOLDENDALE 

BREMERTON WA 98312 B 02-09379 00-23151 
4795 WILKINSON RD DUCKS UNLIMITED/KITSAP COUNTY 

LA CONNER WA 98257 A 02-09406 00-23190 
MAPLE HALL DUCKS UNLIMITED/LA CONNER 

SEATTLE WA 98115 C 02-09385 00-23160 
SAND POINT COUNTRY CLUB DUCKS UNLIMITED/LAKE CITY 

WINTHROP WA 98862 A 02-09390 00-23171 
12 PATTERSON LAKE RD DUCKS UNLIMITED/METHOW VALLEY 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

ORGANIZATION NAME 
FILE NUMBER 

  
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 2 of 19 

RAFFLE 

OAK HARBOR WA 98277 A 02-09400 00-23184 
2430 SW FAIRWAY LANE DUCKS UNLIMITED/OAK HARBOR 

CUSICK WA 99119 B 02-09391 00-23172 
202 RIVERSIDE AVE DUCKS UNLIMITED/PEND OREILLE VALLEY 

LA CROSSE WA 99143 A 02-09396 00-23178 
23002 SR 127 DUCKS UNLIMITED/PULLMAN 

SHELTON WA 98584 A 02-09382 00-23157 
LITTLE CREEK CASINO RESORT DUCKS UNLIMITED/SHELTON 

SNOHOMISH WA 98290 B 02-09404 00-23188 
LORD HILL FARMS DUCKS UNLIMITED/SKY VALLEY 

SPOKANE WA 99201 A 02-09359 00-23127 
1316 N LINCOLN STREET DUCKS UNLIMITED/SPOKANE 

SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99037 B 02-09383 00-23158 
16808 E SPRAGUE DUCKS UNLIMITED/SPOKANE VALLEY 

SIVERDALE WA 98383 A 02-09408 00-23192 
SILVERDALE BEACH HOTEL DUCKS UNLIMITED/STATE COMMITTEE 

SUNNYSIDE WA 98632 B 02-09378 00-23150 
100 E SOUTH HILL RD DUCKS UNLIMITED/SUNNYSIDE 

EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802 B 02-09395 00-23177 
2429 HIGHLAND DRIVE DUCKS UNLIMITED/WENATHCEE 

TOKELAND WA 98950 A 02-09409 00-23193 
2964 KINDRED AVE DUCKS UNLIMITED/WILLAPA BAY 

WOODLAND WA 98660 C 02-02698 00-16180 
RED LION AT THE QUAY FISH FIRST/LEWIS RIVER 

SEATTLE WA 98144 B 02-09380 00-23153 
620 20TH AVENUE S GIDDENS SCHOOL 

GRANITE FALLS WA 98252 A 02-01583 00-03231 
20310 GUN CLUB RD GRANITE FALLS SPORTSMAN'S CLUB 

VANCOUVER WA 98665-0656 D 02-08845 00-21494 
3300 NE 78TH ST KING'S WAY CHRISTIAN SCH/1ST CHR OF GOD 

ELLENSBURG WA 98926-3163 C 02-09405 00-23189 
609 N MAIN STREET KITTITAS COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

ORGANIZATION NAME 
FILE NUMBER 

  
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 3 of 19 

RAFFLE 

BOTHELL WA 98012 B 02-08712 00-20832 
18218 NORTH RD LYNNWOOD HS BOOSTER CLUB 

MARYSVILLE WA 98270 C 02-09355 00-23120 
1010 CEDAR AVE MARYSVILLE LITTLE LEAGUE 

SEATTLE WA 98199 B 02-09354 00-23119 
3301 W DRAVUS ST OUR LADY OF FATIMA PARISH SCHOOL 

LAKE STEVENS WA 
 

D 02-09157 00-22631 
10313 7TH PL SE PACIFIC PREMIER FC 

PUYALLUP WA 98371 A 02-09402 00-23185 
427 N MERIDIAN PIERCE CO PROFESSIONAL FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 726 

  

EVERETT WA 98201 C 02-08713 00-20833 
2000 HEWITT AVE ROTARY CLUB/SOUTH EVERETT/MUKILTEO 

TACOMA WA 98402 B 02-08383 00-19399 
1320 BROADWAY ROTARY CLUB/TACOMA 

COLVILLE WA 99114 A 02-09171 00-21202 
956 S MAIN ST RURAL RESOURCES COMM ACTION 

SEATTLE WA 98125 A 02-09394 00-22317 
14315 37TH AVE NE SEATTLE DERBY BRATS 

STANWOOD WA 98292 C 02-09165 00-22221 
18711 98TH ST NW SEATTLE STARS BASEBALL 

PASCO WA 99301 D 02-00398 00-00134 
1320 W HENRY ST PATRICK'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 

TACOMA WA 98402 B 02-09401 00-20796 
1304 SOUTH FAWCETT AVE WA CONGRESS OF PARENTS AND TEACHERS 

WENATCHEE WA 98801 B 02-08254 00-03866 
2 S CHELAN WA STATE APPLE BLOSSOM FESTIVAL ASSN 

SEATTLE WA 98121 B 02-08862 00-21548 
SEATTLE MARRIOT/WATERFRONT WHITTIER PTA SEATTLE COUNCIL 6.15.370 

PUNCHBOARD/PULL-TAB COMMERCIAL STIMULANT 

MILTON WA 98354 D 05-21252 00-23118 
2702 MILTON WAY BUD'S BAR & GRILL 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

ORGANIZATION NAME 
FILE NUMBER 

  
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 4 of 19 

PUNCHBOARD/PULL-TAB COMMERCIAL STIMULANT 

VANCOUVER WA 98682 A 05-21255 00-23136 
3315 NE 112TH  AVE CHARLIES SPORTS BAR & GRILL 

SULTAN WA 98294 B 05-21248 00-23105 
931 STEVENS AVE HWY 2 JD SLICKS 

KENT WA 98042 C 05-21251 00-23115 
26900 140TH LANE AVE SE SIDETRACK BAR & GRILL 

OMAK WA 98841 A 05-21254 00-23133 
740 E RIVERSIDE DR VALLEY LANES 

COMBINATION LICENSE 

SEATTLE WA 98144 A 08-00241 00-19795 
500 30TH AVE S CENTRAL AREA SENIOR CENTER/SSKC 

COVINGTON WA 98042 A 08-00267 00-23182 
25225 18OTH AVE SE CRESTWOOD PTA 9.7.11 

SEATTLE WA 98109 B 08-00224 00-21559 
201 GARFIELD ST JOHN HAY PUBLIC SCHOOL FNDN 

LANGLEY WA 98260 C 08-00010 00-05481 
14594 SR 525 SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND COUNTY 

SERVICE SUPPLIER LICENSE 

SNOHOMISH WA 98296 26-00092 00-18729 
14931 79TH DR SE ABS BUSINESS DATA 

ISSAQUAH WA 98029 26-00263 00-21515 
22010 SE 51ST ST SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC 

COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT GAMES 

BLAINE WA 98230 A1 53-20366 00-19201 
1733 H ST RD COST CUTTER FOOD 00489/BLAINE 

OMAK WA 98841 A1 53-21275 00-23133 
740 E RIVERSIDE DR VALLEY LANES 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

ORGANIZATION NAME 
FILE NUMBER 

  
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 5 of 19 

COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT GAMES 

SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99206 A1 53-20995 00-21851 
9718 E SPRAGUE AVE WINCO FOODS 00070/SPOKANE 

PUBLIC CARD ROOM (65) 

MONTESANO WA 98563 D 65-07403 00-17016 
313 S MAIN ST CHARLIE'S 

SULTAN WA 98294 D 65-07402 00-23105 
931 STEVENS AVE HWY 2 JD SLICKS 

FEDERAL WAY WA 98023-3070 C5 65-07407 00-22181 
35509 21ST AVE SW JERSEY'S SPORTS BAR 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 6 of 19 

DISTRIBUTOR REPRESENTATIVE 

LAS VEGAS NV 89113 22-01162 
BETWISER GAMES LLC RITNER, ROY R JR 

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE 

RENO NV 89521 23-01877 
IGT ANACAN, ANTONIO S JR 

LAS VEGAS NV 89119 23-01875 
BALLY TECHNOLOGIES BERNS, JEREMIAH M 

DRUMMONDVILLE QUEBEC 
   

23-01872 
BLUBERI GROUP INC BILLUPS, TERRENCE M 

RENO NV 89521 23-01878 
IGT BRUNN, STEVEN R 

RENO NV 89521 23-01868 
IGT CANILAO, BRANDON L 

GROVE OK 74344-6251 23-01873 
ROCKET GAMING SYSTEMS LLC CERVENKA, JOHN J 

CANADA NA M1S5R3 23-01881 
NRT TECHNOLOGY GEDDES, JOHN R 

LAS VEGAS NV 89119 23-01874 
BALLY TECHNOLOGIES HOUF, CHRISTIE J 

LAS VEGAS NV 89119 23-01655 
BALLY TECHNOLOGIES KADIYALA, KALYAN 

RENO NV 89521 23-00603 
IGT KIDD, LUCIEN J 

LAS VEGAS NV 89119 23-01883 
BALLY TECHNOLOGIES MASON, JOHN P 

LAS VEGAS NV 89119 23-01882 
BALLY TECHNOLOGIES MODI, HIMIR A 

WEST CHESTER PA 19380 23-01314 
AUTOMATED CURRENCY 

 
MOSLEY, JASON K 

RENO NV 89521 23-01870 
IGT NEWMAN, RICHARD M 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 7 of 19 

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE 

RENO NV 89521 23-01869 
IGT PATEL, BHARATKUMAR N 

LAS VEGAS NV 89119 23-01876 
BALLY TECHNOLOGIES RAJA, RAMYA 

DRUMMONDVILLE QUEBEC 
   

23-01871 
BLUBERI GROUP INC ROBERGE, SAMUEL 

LAS VEGAS NV 89119 23-01884 
BALLY TECHNOLOGIES SZELAG, JIMMY J JR 

DRUMMONDVILLE QUEBEC 
   

23-01879 
BLUBERI GROUP INC TRINGLE, AARON R 

CALL CENTER REPRESENTATIVE 

PORTLAND OR 97204 32-00012 
CORNERSTONE ADMINISTRATIVE 

 
HERMAN, MICHAEL P 

PORTLAND OR 97204 32-00014 
CORNERSTONE ADMINISTRATIVE 

 
MILLER, HANNAH E 

PORTLAND OR 97204 32-00013 
CORNERSTONE ADMINISTRATIVE 

 
SPEER, LUKE C 

NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER 

EVERETT WA 98203-0000 61-04541 
FLEET RESERVE ASSN 00170 HARTER, CHERYL L 

VANCOUVER WA 98665 61-04516 
40 & 8  00099 SMITH, CHRISTIE L 

PASCO WA 99301 61-04463 
AMERICAN LEGION  00034 WELLIVER, TRACIE L 

SERVICES SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE 

ISSAQUAH WA 98029 63-00568 
SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC CANTU, JUAN M 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 8 of 19 

SERVICES SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE 

LAS VEGAS NV 89169 63-00584 
WG-WASHINGTON LLC LASWELL, AUSTIN R 

LAS VEGAS NV 89169 63-00583 
WG-WASHINGTON LLC SHADD, WAYNE M 

LAS VEGAS NV 89169 63-00582 
WG-WASHINGTON LLC WARD, JAMES P 

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

RENTON WA 98055 B 68-32270 
FREDDIE'S CLUB OF RENTON ALVARADO BALDOVINOS, ANGELICA 

SPOKANE VALLEY NA 
 

B 68-13127 
BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & 

  
AMSDEN, KIMBERLY A 

EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802 B 68-32267 
WILDCARD SPORTS BAR & 

  
ARNOLD, LLOYD A 

RENTON WA 98055 B 68-03551 
FREDDIE'S CLUB OF RENTON BAKER, KELLY A 

PASCO WA 99301 B 68-32244 
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO BARNETT, BARBARA N 

RENTON WA 98057 B 68-26250 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON CARGILL, ELIZABETH A 

LAKEWOOD WA 98499 B 68-32241 
CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD CHEUNG, ALAN D 

RENTON WA 98057 B 68-32273 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON CHOUNG, JENNIE 

SILVERDALE WA 98383 B 68-21708 
ALL STAR CASINO COMEAU, JEFFREY L 

EVERETT WA 98204 B 68-15384 
ROYAL CASINO COULDRY, ANGELA M 

LACEY WA 98516 B 68-23486 
HAWKS PRAIRIE CASINO DINH, TOAN H 

SEATAC WA 98188 B 68-21207 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC DOAN, VIET Q 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 9 of 19 

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

RENTON WA 98055 B 68-16121 
DIAMOND LIL'S DUMAGUING, WILMER C 

BELLINGHAM WA 98225 B 68-05686 
SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY ENGMAN, JOHN E 

SILVERDALE WA 98383 B 68-16581 
ALL STAR CASINO GARDNER, ADAM S 

SEATTLE WA 98178 B 68-03430 
LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO GOAG, NATALIE A 

LAKEWOOD WA 98499 B 68-32259 
CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD GOLUBICKAS, KEVIN J 

BURIEN WA 98166-2524 B 68-22392 
WIZARDS CASINO GRAFF, DAVID C 

SPOKANE WA 99208 B 68-32237 
ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT HAMERSKY, CONNOR A 

AUBURN WA 98002 B 68-25234 
IRON HORSE CASINO HARDCASTLE, JOHN R 

KENNEWICK WA 99336 B 68-30604 
LUCKY BRIDGE CASINO HATTON, CHRISTOPHER R 

YAKIMA WA 98901 B 68-32261 
CASINO CARIBBEAN HILL, JULIUS K II 

LA CENTER WA 98629 B 68-31624 
THE PALACE HODGES, BOBIE R 

TUKWILA WA 98188-2437 B 68-17651 
MACAU CASINO HOMSOMBAT, JANEY 

LAKEWOOD WA 98499 B 68-06149 
CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD HOR, SOPHAT 

SUNNYSIDE WA 98944 B 68-32254 
RC'S HOUSEHOLDER, ETHAN A 

PULLMAN WA 99163 B 68-32243 
Z'S RESTAURANT AT ZEPPOZ ISAAC, STEVEN M 

BURIEN WA 98166-2524 B 68-32247 
WIZARDS CASINO JAMES, AUSTIN N 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 10 of 19 

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

KENNEWICK WA 99336 B 68-29568 
LUCKY BRIDGE CASINO JOHNSON, CRAIG A 

KENNEWICK WA 99336 B 68-21218 
LUCKY BRIDGE CASINO JOHNSON, MATTHEW J 

SHORELINE WA 98133 B 68-03797 
CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO KHNOR, SORATH 

BOTHELL WA 98012 B 68-24176 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL 

 
KREUTZ, DUSTIN J 

LAKEWOOD WA 98499 B 68-32251 
CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD KRUSE, KRISTEL J 

SEATTLE WA 98178 B 68-09936 
LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO MARTIN, JASON M 

BURIEN WA 98166-2524 B 68-26267 
WIZARDS CASINO MARTINEZ, JUAN M II 

SEATTLE WA 98178 B 68-24999 
LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO MCCARTY, AARON K 

SEATTLE WA 98178 B 68-32246 
LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO MEYERS, PAULA F 

SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99216 B 68-32260 
OWL CLUB NELSEN, JORDEN D 

MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 
 

B 68-10192 
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO 

  
NGUYEN, DUNG N 

PULLMAN WA 99163 B 68-32242 
Z'S RESTAURANT AT ZEPPOZ NORDQUIST, GUNNAR D 

RENTON WA 98057 B 68-25323 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON NORN, JENDAVY 

PULLMAN WA 99163 B 68-32263 
Z'S RESTAURANT AT ZEPPOZ NUHN, PAULA E 

SEATTLE WA 98178 B 68-32239 
LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO PARK, GLEN J 

TUKWILA WA 98168 B 68-32272 
GOLDEN NUGGET CASINO PENG, XIAOHUI 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 11 of 19 

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

YAKIMA WA 98901 B 68-32262 
CASINO CARIBBEAN PEREZ, DAVID J 

KENNEWICK WA 99336 B 68-32274 
COYOTE BOB'S CASINO POITRA, MARY K 

LAKEWOOD WA 98499 B 68-32268 
GREAT AMERICAN 

 
REIL, JUDY D 

RENTON WA 98057 B 68-22133 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON REIN, CASSIDY C 

SHORELINE WA 98133 B 68-24085 
CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO RODEWALD, VAUGHN P 

LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024 B 68-32271 
CADILLAC ISLAND CASINO ROSS, MICHAEL A 

MOSES LAKE WA 98837 B 68-32255 
PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & 

 
RUTHERFORD, ANDREW C 

TUKWILA WA 98188-2437 B 68-32245 
MACAU CASINO SANDOVAL, YVONNE M 

RICHLAND WA 99352-4122 B 68-11772 
JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & 

   
SCHANEMAN, SUSAN M 

SILVERDALE WA 98383 B 68-29403 
ALL STAR CASINO SCHUMACHER, ANTHONY W 

BURIEN WA 98166-2524 B 68-32269 
WIZARDS CASINO SILULU, CARL M 

SPOKANE WA 99208 B 68-32258 
ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT SITTER, BETTY A 

MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 
 

B 68-22561 
RED DRAGON CASINO SMITH, GABRIEL T 

SPOKANE WA 99208 B 68-15117 
ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT SPESSARD AUCKERMAN, TERRANCE L 

SPOKANE VALLEY NA 
 

B 68-32248 
BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & 

  
STARR, RICHARD L III 

CLARKSTON WA 99403-2219 B 68-32240 
LANCER LANES/REST AND CASINO STEPHENS, ANDREA M 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 
PREMISES LOCATION 

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 12 of 19 

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

TUKWILA WA 98188-2437 B 68-32250 
MACAU CASINO THAO, TOU K 

RENTON WA 98055 B 68-07129 
FREDDIE'S CLUB OF RENTON THAVIXAY, KATE K 

RENTON WA 98057 B 68-32266 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON TOLENTINO, MARK A 

RENTON WA 98057 B 68-32264 
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON WALKER, JESSICA M 

LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024 B 68-32253 
CADILLAC ISLAND CASINO WALTON, LISA M 

TUKWILA WA 98168 B 68-32257 
RIVERSIDE CASINO ZHAO, HE 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

  

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 13 of 19 

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

CHEHALIS CONFEDERATED TRIBES 

69-36371 
BAILEY, LUKE O 

69-36360 
CINTRON, VIRGILIO R 

69-36359 
HALL, SARAH L 

69-36318 
HANSEN, JILLIAN A 

69-36319 
JACKSON, ROBERT M 

69-28547 
MALMBERG, NELS E 

69-20557 
MCNEAL, JUSTIN D 

69-15622 
MORTON, TAMALYN R 

69-36372 
PITZENBERGER, RYAN M 

69-36349 
PRUETT, SHELDON R 

69-36350 
ROBINSON, SANDRA D 

69-36373 
STONE, PAULA M 

69-36320 
TROTT, KAYLEY R 

69-36361 
WARNICK, DEBRA J 

69-36337 
WENZELBURGER, DEBRA L 

69-36317 
ZENKNER, JENNY M 

COLVILLE CONFEDERATED TRIBES 

69-36299 
BERCIER, SHANE D 

69-36322 
GROOMS, WINSTON J 

69-36298 
HUEY, BRANDEE L 

69-24049 
MARRY, TERRI L 

69-36324 
SIMPSON, GREGORY L 

69-33590 
TURK, JIANNAH K 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

  

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 14 of 19 

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

JAMESTOWN S'KLALLAM TRIBE 

69-36285 
HUFF, KEVIN M 

KALISPEL TRIBE 

69-36284 
BENSON-MUSQUIZ, HEIDI B 

69-32950 
BIRDTAIL, CHARISSA J 

69-36340 
CASTILLO, RASHAY D 

69-36388 
POND, DARRYL W 

69-36338 
REYNOLDS, KENDRA K 

69-36339 
SIZEMORE, AUDREY S 

69-36289 
VENSEL, ROBYN K 

69-36368 
WOOD, ANTHONY B 

LUMMI NATION 

69-20618 
HENSON, SABRINA J 

69-36363 
PETROSKE, DESTINY E 

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE 

69-36313 
CHAN, SITHA 

69-36314 
FONTES, KALEB D 

69-36291 
HERDA, JESSIE A 

69-36343 
IRWIN, JOSEPH F 

69-06224 
MCDANIEL, JESSE B JR 

69-36375 
MONTGOMERY, TREVOR C 

69-36290 
MOYER, HYTHYR N 

69-36292 
SIMONEAUX, JENNIFER A 

69-36315 
SIN, VANN 

69-36316 
SMARTLOWIT, ROBIN J 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

  

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 15 of 19 

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

NISQUALLY INDIAN TRIBE 

69-36366 
CARROLL, MATTHEW P 

69-36331 
CLERMONT, VIVIAN F 

69-36385 
CURRALL, EDWARD G III 

69-36365 
GERBER, TRAVIS C 

69-36335 
HUTSON, LESLIE J 

69-36333 
JONES, EIJIN D 

69-36332 
SIMMONS, BRANDI V 

69-36336 
SLAPE, INEZ D 

69-36334 
STILLWELL, SKYLER D 

69-36330 
WHITAKER, AMANDA N 

NOOKSACK INDIAN TRIBE 

69-36329 
BRAXTON, AERIAL L 

69-36376 
CORDOVA, EDGAR J 

69-36300 
DRAPER, KATHRYN L 

69-36302 
HARVEY, CODY L 

69-26448 
KENTNER, SHANNON C 

PORT GAMBLE S'KLALLAM TRIBE 

69-36352 
CAMPBELL, DENVER L 

69-36353 
EDWARDS, KAROLYNN N 

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS 

69-36278 
ARCEO, JAMIE N 

69-36325 
ARNOLD, DEBORAH A 

69-21916 
BOYD, LISA L 

69-36377 
BRUEMMER, CHRISTOPHER M 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

  

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 16 of 19 

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS 

69-15397 
ESPANA HUIZAR, MANUEL 

69-36382 
GRACE, MICHAEL R 

69-36304 
JACKSON, JENNIFER L 

69-36305 
ZARATE, GABRIEL G 

QUINAULT NATION 

69-36310 
IGO, JULIE M 

69-36354 
WILLIAMS, AMANDA J 

SHOALWATER BAY TRIBE 

69-36357 
COYNE, JONI L 

69-17930 
ROGERS, MELISSA L 

SKOKOMISH TRIBE 

69-36362 
SNYDER, CURTIS A JR 

SNOQUALMIE TRIBE 

69-36295 
BERRY, RACHEL L 

69-36370 
CAMPBELL, CRYSTAL L 

69-36369 
DUONG, DAVID K 

69-36309 
HOANG, TAO X 

69-36345 
LAU, MICHAEL L 

69-36296 
LYNCH, BRIAN E 

69-36344 
MARTIN, SARAH M 

69-06740 
SHIN, KYE H 

69-15551 
TO, PHAT T 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

  

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 17 of 19 

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

SPOKANE TRIBE 

69-36303 
ACKARET, ELAINE M 

69-28054 
TIMMONS, HONDO L 

SQUAXIN ISLAND TRIBE 

69-36348 
DOUGLASS, EMMETT D 

69-36307 
GOULEY, CLAUDIA J 

69-19059 
KANG, DAMNEL 

69-36392 
LAMONT, APRIL L 

69-36391 
MAIAVA, ELISAPETA C 

69-34241 
MAK, KATIE C 

69-23663 
PICKERNELL, WILLIAM J 

69-36308 
STRANGIS, FRANCO 

STILLAGUAMISH TRIBE 

69-36356 
INGHAM, EDWARD Z 

69-36355 
SHANKLIN, CURTIS L 

69-36306 
WHARTON, ROBERT T 

SUQUAMISH TRIBE 

69-36390 
EVALT, JENNIFER D 

69-36312 
MABE, SAMMY J 

69-36384 
MOCK, GAIL C 

69-36358 
MORROW, THOMAS G III 

69-07376 
PAVLOCK, JAMES M 

69-36383 
PURSER, SHENOWAH A 

69-36326 
SPRINGER, EMMA N 

69-36288 
TERRY, GREGORY W II 



 DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

  

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 18 of 19 

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

SUQUAMISH TRIBE 

69-36347 
WARNER, ARIANA C 

SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNITY 

69-05395 
BURWELL, DEAME M 

69-19433 
CAYOU, JANEL R 

69-36294 
SHELTON, DONALD R 

69-36321 
STRODE, MARK E 

69-10800 
TREVINO, ANITA M 

THE TULALIP TRIBES 

69-32178 
ALEJO, ALBERTO T JR 

69-36287 
CHERIAN, MATHEWS 

69-36328 
GRUBBS, GLENN W JR 

69-36374 
SCOTT, SALINA R 

69-36286 
SWEET, BRENDA K 

YAKAMA NATION 

69-36367 
ADAMS, DENISE L 

69-36293 
ALECK, JACOB A 

69-36346 
ARQUETTE, JORDAN R 

69-36379 
DEBOY, WILLIAM L 

69-36378 
GOUDY, TAYLOR J 

69-33583 
KEITH, SIGARD B 

69-07923 
MILLER, DESMONA M 

69-36297 
O'BRION, GERALD P 



 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

DATE: 03/21/2014 

PERSON'S NAME 
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER 

  

NEW APPLICATIONS 

Page 19 of 19 

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

YAKAMA NATION 

69-32184 
PETERSON, DARREN L 

69-36380 
SPENCER, GARY J 

69-36381 
TAYLOR, AUDRA E 

69-27358 
TELAKISH, LORILEE J 

69-15092 
WHITEFOOT, PATRICK W 

69-33943 
YELECHCHIN, KATHERINE 



PROBLEM 
GAMBLING

PRESENTATION
MATERIALS

WILL BE
A

HANDOUT
AT THE

COMMISSION
MEETING



Staff Proposed Rule Change 

• Gambling Equipment 

Apri l 2014 - Final Action 
March 2014 - Study Session 
February 20 14 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
January 2014 - Study Session 

ITEM: 6 

:•) Amendatory cctioo WAC 230-06-050 
Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment. 

h) New Section WAC 230-06-054 
Notification of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment malfunctions. 



Proposed Amendment: 
WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment. 

Proposed New Section: 
WAC 230-06-054 Notification of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment 
malfunctions. 

April 2014 - FinaJ Action 
March 2014 - Study Session 

February 2014 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
January 2014 - Study Session 

ITEM I (a) on the April 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda. Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who prop0sed the rule change? 
Staff 

Proposed Change 

The proposed changes to WAC 230-06-050 will codify our practice of: 

• Requiring the version of gambling equipment/software submitted for teview to be identical or 
substantially similar to what is to be marketed and used in Washington State. 

• Requiring all costs associated with the review of gambling equipment to be paid in full at the 
completion of the review. 

• Including any security and surveillance requirements in our approval letter that must be met to operate 
the equipment. 

It also clarifies that gambling equipment must be approved and the business licensed before selling or 
leasing may begin in Washington State. 

The proposed new rule WAC 230-06-054 will require licensees to hotify us within 72 hours of 
identifying or becoming aware of an electronic or mechanical gambling equipment malfunction. Staff has 
created a form for licensees to use to report the equipment malfunctions. 

ln June of 2013, staff proposed changes to WAC 230-06-050 and provided notice to manufacturers of the 
changes. Based on the feedback received, the initial rule change proposal was put on hold while staff 
reviewed feedback. Staff incorporated the feedback received, revised WAC 230-06-050, and added WAC 
230-06-054 to this rule change proposal. 

Staff sent a letter to stakeholders notifying them of the proposed rule changes and asking for additional 
feedback. Overall, the feedback received was positive. One concern was brought forward regarding 
reporting equipment malfunctions. The concern was regarding licensees being required to report minor 
malfunctions of equipment such as a shuffler jam. Based on this comment, staff added language to the 
Gambling Equipment Malfunction Report to specify that only shuffler integrity or randomness issues 
must be reported to us. 



Attachments: 
• Draft Gambling Equipment Malfunction Report. 
• Stakeholder notification letter dated November 5, 2013 sent to Group Ill, JV, and V bingo operators, 

manufacturers, house-banked card rooms, and Tribal Gaming Agencies. 
• E-mail dated November 5, 2013, from Victor Mena, Washington Gold Casinos. 
• E~mail dated November J 9, 2013, from Leonard Faircloth, SHFL Ente1tainment. 
• E-mail dated November 25. 2013, from Ryan Harris, SHFL Entertainment. 

History of Rule 

This rule was implemented in its original form in 2003. It was updated as part of the Rules Simplification 
Process in 2008. 

Impact of the Proposed Change 
1--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

The current rule change proposal will help accomplish our mission by ensming the integrity of gambling 
equipment by ensuring the same equipment approved by staff is what is used by operators. In addition, 
licensees will be required to notity us when gambling equipment malfunctions. Tius will al low us to 
identify potential issues with equipment in a more timely manner. 

The rule change provides more information to potential and current licensees about the process for 
submitting equipment for review. when they can begin selling or leasing approved equipment and 
operational requirements. 

W /\C 230-06-050 will assi!:;t manufacturers by outlining what they need to know before submitting 
equipment for our review, including: 

• The equipment they are submitting must be identical or substantially simi lar to what will be marketed 
and distributed in Washingion. 

• They cannot begin selling or leasing the equipment in Washington until they arc licensed, have paid 
aU review costs, and the equipment has been approved. 

'I11ere have been several instances where the manufacturer did not submit the same version of equipment 
for review that they intended to market in Washington. This resulted in the review process taking longer 
than expected and delayed the ability of the manufacttLrer to market their equipment. ln addition, 
manufacturers have modil'icd software on previously approved equipment without resubmitting for 
review. This rule change will ensure all manufacturers are aware that aU changes to equipment or 
associated software must be sent to us for review prior to operation. 

WAC 230-06-054 requires licensees to notify us of gambling equipment malfunctions. Staff created the 
Gambling Equipment Malfunction Report that the licensees will use to report gambling equipment 
malfunctions. The form outlines the types of equipment malfunctions that must be reported and asks for 
specific information about the equipment and the incident. Obtaining this information within 72 hours 
will allow staff to identi'fy issues with equipment sooner. It will also allow staff to identify whether the 
incident is isolated or may be occuning at multiple licensed locations. The proposed rule change wi ll 
allow staff to identify and investigate equipment malfunctions and work with the manufacturers to fix the 
problems. 

A ma ll Business Econom ic Impact Statement was not prepared because the changes to WAC 230-06-
050 do oot cbange the exis ting costs to licensees to have their equipment reviewed and the changes to 
WAC 230-06-054 do not add costs to licensees when reporting electronic or mechanical gambling 
equipment malfunctions on the form provided by staff. 



Regulatory Concerns 

• The amendment ensures the equipment deployed in Washington State has been approved as compliant 
with gambl ing laws and mies. 

• If the rule is not passed, equipment malfunctions may occur where staff is not notified which could 
impact the integrity of gambling. 

Resource Impacts 
The proposed amendment will save staff time responding to questions about the gambling eqwpment 
submissions process. 

Policy Consideration 
None. 

Statements Regarding the Proposed Rule Change 

Commission staff exchanged e-mails with three licensees (see below) over concerns with drafts of the 
proposed rule changes. These representatives were satisfied with the changes made by staff to address 
their concerns. 
E-mails dated: 

• November 5, 2013, from Victor Mena, Washington Gold Casinos . 

• November 19, 2013, from Leonard Faircloth, SHFL Entertainment. 

• November 25, 2013, from Ryan Harris, SHFL Entertainment . 
Statements Supporting the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Statements Opposing the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Licensees Directly Impacted By the Change 

Manufacturers and operators. 

Staff Recommendation 
Final Action. 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
July 1, 2014. 



Amendatory Section: 

WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mccluanicaJ gambling eqnipment. 
((#)-Persons who wisb to submit gambliRg equip1'ReRt, supplies, se11'ices, or games for our review to 
o;eril~· eomplianee v.•iili ehapler 9.46 RCW 0fld Title 230 WAC must pay the application deposit befure 
we perfonn the review. The~· mll5t also reimburse us for any additional easts ef the re\'iew. 
(2) We may requ:i:re manuiaettirers to submit certain eleetreaic or mechanical gwnblittg equ-ipmeRt for 
review. The eqHipment A'U:lst meeL technical standards for compliance. aceuraey. security, and ifltegrity. 
To allow for coRtinued testiflg and training, staff may keep any equipmeet submitted for review for as 
kmg-as-the equipment remai:ns iR play in Washiegt-00. The manu!aeturers eu1st-reimburse us for aAy 
easts of the review. The oommissfonem and commission staff are not liahle for any damage to 
equipment while in our p6ssessioR. 
t31-bicensees must operate equipment identical to the version the director ereireetor's designee 
ap13ro¥ed. 
(4) Jf persons submittiRg equipment do not agree with the direetor or direetor's desigflee's deeision. they 
may file a petition for deela:ratory order with the oommission to be heard as a full reviey; (de now,i) by Ml 

administrative lav,;jt:ldge. aooerdiRg to RC\V 3<1.05.240 aRd ehapter 230 17 WAC.)) 

(l) When you submit gambling equipment supplies. services. or games for our review to verify 
compliance with chapter 9.46 RCW and T itle 230 WAC, you m ust pay the application deposit before we 
perform the review. You musl also reimburse us for any additional costs of the review. AU costs must be 
paid in full prior to the completion of the review. 
{2) The gambling equipment submitted for review must be identical or substantially similar to what will 
be marketed, distributed and deployed in Washington. If the equipment is not sufficient for testing and 
review. we may require additional equipment or infonnation. 
(3) If your application is incomplete or we request additional information. you must provide us with the 
required items within thirty days of notification or we may administrativelv close your application. 
(4) You can begin selling or leasing the gambling equipment when you are licensed and the gambling 
equipment has been approved by the director or director' s designee. 
(5) We may include security or surveillance requirements as part of gambling equipment approval. 
(6) GambJing equipment must operate as approved by the director or director's designee. 
(7) We may keep equipment submitted for review to allow for continued testiug and training as long as 
the equipment remains in play in Washington. We are not liable for any damage to equipment while in 
our possession. 
(8) lf you do not agree with the director or director's designee's decision. you may file a petition for 
declaratory order with the commission according to RC W 34.05.240 and chapter 230-17 WAC. 

Ntiw Ruic: 

WAC 230-06-054 Notification of electronic or mechanical gambling eqnipment malfnnctions. 
Licensees must notify us, in the fonnat we require, withln seventy-two hours of identifying or becoming 
aware of an electronic or mechanical gambling equipment malfunction. 



Gambling Equipment Malfunction Report 
Notification within 72-bours of discovering malfunction 
Email to: get@wsgc.wa.gov Questions? (360) 486-3571 

DRAFT 

Check the box next to the gambling equipment you are reporting about: 

0 Progressive/Boousiog system 

0 Electronic Card Facsimile 

0 Electronic PuJJ-Tab Dispensing Device 

0 Electronic Raffle System 

0 Shuffler with Integrity or Randomness Issues 

(Excluding routine shufOer malfunctions/jams) 

O Electronic Bingo Dauber System 

0 Other 

Operator:. _____________________________ _ 

Submitter Contact#:. _________________________ _ 

System manufacturer!.-:--- ----------------------

Date/time of report: _______ _ Date/time of incident:. _ ________ _ 

Version of equipment and signature·.._--------------------

Description of malfunction._:------------- - ---------

Other helpful information: 

1. Was there an unusual event that preceded the incident? (Power outage, Surge)? 
Yes No 

2. Did you pull surveillance tapes? __ Yes _ No 
3. Were customers affected? Describe: ______________ ___ _ 

4. Describe troubleshooting attempts and any contact with equipment manufacturer. 

Attachments: 

Photos: __ y cs No 

Incident reports: _ _ Yes No 

System reports: __ Yes No 

GC (9113) 



ST A 1 E 01• \\ ASHINGT01 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

"Prote<:I tile Public by E11.rnrl11g that Gambling is Legal a11d Honest" 

November 5. 2013 

Dear Stakeholders: 

OPPORTUNITY FOR FEEDBACK ON PROPOSED RULE CHANGES 

We arc asking for your comments and suggestions on: 

• Revised Rule: WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling 

equipment. 

• New Rule: WAC 230-06-054 Notification of electronic or mechanical gambling 

equipment malfunctions. 

In June 2013, we began the initial stage of rule-making and provided notice to manufacturers 

about the proposed changes. Based on feedback we received, we have revised the rules. 

The proposed changes to WAC 230-06-050 will add our current practice to the rule by: 

• Rcquising all costs associated with the review of gambling equipment to be paid in full at 
the completion of the review, 

• Requiring the version of gambling equipment/software submitted for review to be 
identical or substantially similar to wbat is marketed and used in Washington State. 

• Including security and surveillance requirements for operating the equipment in our 
equipment approval letter, and 

• Clari fying that gambling equipment must be approved and the business licensed by us 
before the equipment can be sold or leased in Washington. 

This rule does not apply to Tribal Lottery Systems or Tribal Lottery System components; the 
process for these systems is outlined in Class III gaming Tribal-State compacts. 

The proposed new rule, WAC 230-06-054, outlines requirements for notifying us of electronic or 
mecharucaJ gambling equipment malfunctions. lf passed, you would be required to report 
equipment malfunctions to us. 



We've attached: 
• Proposed revisions to WAC 230-06-050; 
• New rule WAC 230-06-054; 
• A draft Gambling Equipment Malfunction Report. 

We welcome your comments and suggestions. Please forward your comments and suggestions 

about these mies and the report by November 26th to Jennifer LaMont at 

Jennifer.lamomca.wsgc.wJ.gov. 

There will be additional opportunities to comment on these rules at the Gambling Commission 

Study Session and the Gambling Commission Public Meetings, in January or February 2014. 
Please check our website for updated information on the rules and meeting dates and locations. 

Our website address is www.·wsgc.wa.gov. 

If you are interested in meeting to discuss these rule changes, let us know. If you have questions. 

please call Program Manager Jennifer LaMont at (360) 486-3571. 



NewerJ Susan (GMB) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Victor Mena [VMena@wagoldcasinos.com] 
Tuesday, November 05, 2013 4:34 PM 
LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) 

Subject: RE: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

Hi Jennifer, 

The only thing that comes to rnmd is shuffling Integrity and randomness excluding routine card malfunctions(jams). 

Thanks Victor 

G 0 L 0 

Victor Mena VP WA Operations Nevada Gold, Chief Operating Officer WA Gold VMena@wagoldcaslnos.com T: 425.264.1050 x100 
F: 425.264.1063 
711 Powell Ave SW, Suite 100 Renton, WA 98057 http://www.wagoldcasinos.com 

From: LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) [mailto:jennifer.lamont@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2013 4:05 PM 
To: VMena@wagoldcasinos.com 
Subject: FW: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

Victor 

I appreciate your quick feedback. I understand your concern and we considered this as well We thought 
adding the terms (integrity and randomness) would separate the issues we may be concerned with for 
regulatory issues and common malfunctions that would occur daily. 

Do you have suggested language to clarify your concerns? 

Jennifer 

Jenrnf er La Mont 
Tribal Certification Program Manager 
Licensing Operations Division 
360-486-3571 

From: Arrona, Hollee (GMB) 
Sent: Tuesday, November 05r 2013 3:54 PM 
To: LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) 
Subject: FW: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

From: Victor Mena [manto:VMena@wagoldcasinos.comJ 
Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2013 3:05 PM 
To: Arrona, Hollee (GMB) 
Subject: RE: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

Hi Hallee, 

1 



The one concern I have with the malfunctioning equipment form is the term Shuffler Integrity and Randomness. 
Shufflers are constantly getting out of adjustment for everyday wear and tear which causes them to jam. The machines 
that jam consistently we set aside for Shuffle to come in and adjust them to get them to work. This occurs almost nightly 
in property over property and I would specifically write this type of malfunction out of t he reporting scope as you will be 
buried with shuffler jams to all your agents. The term integrity becomes somewhat subjective in definition at that point 

as some might see shufflers jamming as an integrity issue. 

Thanks Victor 

G 0 l D 

Victor Mena VP WA Operations Nevada Gold, Chief Operating Officer WA Gold VMena@wagoldcasinos.com T: 425.264.1050 x100 
F: 425.264.1063 
71 1 Powell Ave SW, Suite 100 Renton, WA 98057 http://www.wagoldcasinos_com 

From: Arrona, Hollee (GMB) [mailto:hoflee.arrona@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, November OS, 2013 12:14 PM 
To: LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) 
Subject: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

The attached proposed rule changes may impact you. We are requesting your feedback to the attached by 

November 26, 2013. 

2 



Newer, Susan (GMB) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Leonard Faircloth [LFaircloth@shfl.com] 
Tuesday, November 19, 2013 3:28 PM 
LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) 

Subject: RE: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

Hi Jennifer 

This looks fine, I'm sure we are okay with the rule change. 

Thanks for such a quick response. 

Leonard Faircloth I Technical Compliance Engineer - Table Games & Utility Products I 5Hfl entertainment 

I Direct + 1 702 270 5308 I Mobi le+ l 702 375 4531 I Fax + 1 702 270 5194 I 6650 El Camino Road I Las 

Vegas, NV 8911 8 

**"This email (and any attachment) may contain confidential and privileged Attorney-Client communication for the sole use of the intended 
recipient(s). Any review, use, distribution or disclosure to third parties, without the prior written consent of SHFL entertainment's General Counsel, 
is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient of this document (or authorized to receive it for the intended recipient), please notify the 
sender by reply email and delete all copies of this communication from your workstation or network mail system.* .. " 

From: LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) [mailto:jennifer.lamont@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2013 2:55 PM 
To: Leonard Faircloth 
Cc: LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) 
Subject: FW: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

Leonard 

Thank you for your feedback. Here is a SHFL approval letter with security and surveillance requirements that 
are separated for the manufacturer and the operator: http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/activities/equipment/12-21-2012-
nexus-command.pdf. 

Does this address your concerns? If not. what rewording would you suggest to help clarify your concerns in 

the rule? 

Thank you- Jennifer 

From: Arrona, Hallee (GMB) 
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2013 1:35 PM 
To: LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) 
Subject: FW: Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

Feedback ... 

1 



f rom: Leonard Faircloth [mailto:Lfairdoth@shfl.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2013 1:17 PM 
To: Arrona, Hallee {GMB) 
Subject: Washington State Gambling C-0mmission - Proposed Rule Change 

Hi Hollee 

We have reviewed the documents and only have one concern. Jn the "WAC 230-06-050.pdf' bullet point 5 it states~ 

5) We may include security ur survefllance requirements as part of gambling equipment approval 

We would like to get this reworded since the gaming supplier should not be responsible for the casino to maintain 
surveillance equipment This should be a requirement for the tdsino and not a condition for approval. 

Please let me know what you think. 

Thanks 

Leonard Faircloth I Technical Compliance Engineer - Table Games & utility Prou1Jcts I SHfl entertarnmert 

I Direct + 1 702 270 5308 I Mobile + 1 702 375 4531 I Fax + 1 702 270 5194 I 6650 El Camino Road I Las 

Vegas, NV 89118 

.. ,. .. Thrs email (and any attachment) may contain confidential and privileged Attorney- Client communication for the sole use of the intended 

recipient(s). Any review, use, distribution or disclosure to third parties, without the prior written consent of SHFL entertainment's General Counsel, 
is strictly prohibited. If you are not the lntended recipient of this document (or authorized to receive i t for the Intended recipient), please nottfy the 
sender by reply email and delete all copies of this communication from your workstation or network mail system . ..,. 

.____ _ ____.J 0000000 

2 



Newer, Susan (GMB} 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Jennifer, Hallee, 

Ryan Harris [RHarris@shfl.com) 
Monday, November 25, 2013 4:52 PM 
LaMont, Jennifer (GMB); Arrona, Hallee (GMB) 
Jacqueline Hunter; Sheri Johnson 
SHFL Feedback on Washington State Gambling Commission - Proposed Rule Change 

We have reviewed the materials provided on November 5th and appreciate the opportunity to provide feedback on the 

proposed changes. We have no additional comments at this time and look forward to when the changes become 
effective. 

Have a great evening, 

Ryan Harris 

Ryan Harris 1 01rt?1 1 )r Techmcal Compliance & Product A~~uranLe I 11" rrvu,ninmtnt I Direct + 1 702 998 

3418 I Mobile + 1 702 241 9442 I Fax I 6650 El Camino Road I Las Vegas, NV 89118 

**"This email (and any attachment) may contain confidential and privileged Attorney-Client communlcation for the sole use of the intended 

recipient(s). Any review, use. distribution or disclosure to third parties, without the prior written consent ofSHFL entertainment's General Counsel, 
is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient of this document (or authorized to receive It for the intended recipient), please notify the 
sender by reply email and delete all copies of this communication from your workstation or network mall system.••• 

1~ 

1 



Staff Proposed Rule Change 

• Background checks on landlords. 

April 2014 - Final Action 
March 2014 - Study Session 
February 2014 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
.January 2014 - Study Session 
December 2013 - No Meeting 
November 2013 - Study Session 
October 2013 - Study Session 
September 2013 - Study Session 
August 2013 - Up for Further Discussion 
July 2013 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
June 2013 - No Meeting 
May 2013 - Study Session 

ITEM: 7 

a) New Section: WAC 230-03-061 
Fingerprinting persons holding an interest in the building ofbouse-banked card room licensees or 
charitable or nonprofit licensees in regulatory groups UL IV, or V. 



Proposed New Ruic: 
WAC 230-03-061 Fingerprinting persons holding an interest in the 
building of house-banked card room licensees or charitable or nonprofit 
licensees in regulatory groups TII, IV, or V. 

Apri l 2014 - Final Action 
March 2014 - Study Session 

February 20 J 4 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
January 2014 - Study Session 
December 2013 - No Meeting 

November 2013 - Study Session 
October 2013- Study Session 

September 2013 - Study Session 
August 2013 Up for Further Discussion 

July2013 - Up for Discussion and Possible Fil ing 
June 2013 - No Meeti ng 

May 2013 - Study Session 

lTEM 7 (a) on the April 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda. Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who proposed the rule change? 
Stall: 

Proposed Change 
RCW 9.46.070(7) states in pertinent part that "Provided further, That the commission shall require 
fingerpri11ting alld 11atio11al crimi11al ltistory backgrou11d checks on any person seeking licenses, 
certifications, or permits under this chapter or of a11y perso11 holdi11g an i11tere.Yf in any gambling activity, 
building, or equipment to be used therefore, or of any person participating as an employee in the 
operation of any gambling activity .. . The co111111isl·io1111111st establish r11/es to deli11eate wliiclt persons 
11ametl 011 tile application are subject to 11atio11a/ cri111i11a/ ltistory backgro1111tl checks.'' (emphasis 
added) 

This new rule ensures the WAC is consistent with RCW 9.46.070(7) by requiring persons holding an 
" interest" in a building used Jor a gambling activity to undergo background checks. The rule descri bes a11 
interest in a building used for a gambling activity is at least 51 %, or less than 51 % interest in a building 
when there is actual or potential influence or control of the operation of a house-banked card room or a 
charitable or nonprofit in regulatory groups Ill, IV, or V. 

Charitable or nonprofit licensees are assigned to regulatory groups based on the annual gross gambling 
receipts fo r their combined licensed activities (WAC 230-07-015, attached). 
The regulatory groups arc: 

(a) Group I Combined annual gross receipts up to three hundred thousand dollars. 

(b) Group JJ Combined annual gross receipts up to one million dollars. 

(c) Group m Combined annual gross receipts up to three million doUars. 

(d) Group IV Combined annual gross receipts up to five million dollars. 

(e) Group V Combined annual gross receipts over five million dollars. 



This new rule would apply to new applicants for a house-banked card room license and for a charitable or 
nonprofit licensee in regulatory groups ill IV. or V. 

House-banked card rooms and charitable or nonprofits in regulatory groups lU, IV, or V, that currently 
hold a license wou ld be exempt from this new rule, tmless there is a change in persons holding an interest 
in their building or they change location. We wi l I continue to require copies of leases so staff may review 
persons holding a "substantial interest'' as defined in WAC 230-03-045 (attached). 

In May 2013. staff proposed a rule change to require persons holding an interest in the building of a 
hou~e-banked card room (HBCR) to undergo a national criminal background investigation. A stakeholder 
notification letter was sent to all licensed house-banked card rooms regarding staff' s proposed change. 

In July 2013, the Commission tiled staff's proposal for d iscussion. 

On July 19, 2013, staff e-mailed all HBCRs the answers to questions that had been raised at the July 2013 
Study Session, a copy of the proposed rule, and a draft notification letter they could provide to their 
landlords regarding the new requirements. 

At the August 2013 Commission meeting, the Commissioners discussed the rule change and RCW. A 
licensee raised some questions and concerns about the rule. The Commission asked staff and stakeholders 
to discuss the rule and update the Commission on their progress. 

On September 13, 2013, staff met with HBC Rs to discuss their questions and concerns. 

On September 26, 2013. an e-mail was sent to all HBCRs inviting them to meet on October 3, 20 l3, to 
continue our discussion on the proposed rule. Staff also told the HBCRs they could bring their landlords 
to the meeting as well. 

Subsequently, staff resolved stakeholder concerns raised at the August 20 13 Commission meeting with 
the changes in this final proposed rule. 

In Jam1ary 2014, staff met individually with the e ight nonprofit licensees that would be impacted by this 
proposed rule change. 

• Three did not have concerns as they do not plan to sell their current locations; 
• Three bad no comments: 
• One thought their landlord may have concerns: and 
• One is currently in negotiations to purchase U1e building they are in. 

Attachments: 
• RCW 9.46.070 (7) Gambling commission - Powers and duties. 
• WAC 230-07-015 Regulatory group assignments. 
• WAC 230-03-045 Defining substantial in terest holder. 
• Stakeholder notification letter dated January 3. 2014, which e-mailed to house-banked card rooms and 

hand delivered to affected non-profit licensees. 
• Excerpt from the August 2013 Commission meeting minutes. 

History of Rule 
None. This is a new rule. 



Impact of the Proposed Change 

Persons holding an interest in the building of either a house-banked card room or a charitable or nonprofit 
in reguJatory groups III, IV, or V meeting certain conditions would be required to undergo a national 
criminal background investigation, which requires ftngerprinting. 

Only landlords that meet the definition of a ''person of interest,, as defined in the rule would be 
fingerprinted. Because the rule narrowly defines who would be a "person of interest," we believe very 
few landlords would be required to be fingerprinted. 

We intentionally defined --person of interest ' narrowly to ensure this new rule would not be cumbersome 
for new applicants or for existing licensees when there is a change in persons holding an interest in their 
building or they change location. We are not adding any new requirements for licensees to monitor or 
report changes to us beyond what required in this new rule. 

This change will not increase the application cost for applicants. The processing times of the applications 
will vary based on the responsiveness of the person holding an interest in the building to submit their 
fingerprints. 

A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was not prepared because this proposed rule change will 
not impose additional costs. 

Regulatory Co11cems 
Minimal. 

Resource Impacts 
Minimal. In 2013, we received three new house-banked card room applications and no regulatory group 
IJI, IV, and V bingo applications. Also, during the past year, the total number of charitable or nonprofit 
licensees in regulatory groups III JV, or V decreased from nine to eight, and of those remaining only two 
do not own their own building. TI1e resource impacts will, therefore, be minimal for both staff time and 
agency expenses. 

Policy Consideration 
None. 

Statements Supporting the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Statements Opposing the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Licensees Directly Impacted By the Change 

• Applicants for a house-banked card .room license or a charitable or nonprofit licensee in regulatory 
groups Ill, IV, or V: and 

• House-banked card room licensees and charitable or nonprofit licensees in regulatory groups IIJ, IV, 
or V when there is a change in persons holding an interest in their building or a change in location. 

Staff Recommendation 
Final Action. 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
July 1, 2014. 



New Section 

WAC 230-03-061 Fingerprinting persons holding an interest in the building of house-banked card 
room licensees or charitable or nonprofit licensees in regulatory groups m, IV, or V. 

( 1) This rnle only applies to house-banked card room licensees or charitable or nonprofit licensees in 
regulatory groups III, JV, or V licensed after July 1, 2014. 

(2) Persons holding an " interest" in the building of these licensees must undergo a national criminal 
history background check, including fingerp1inting. 

(3) An ''interest" means: 
(a) Having .fifty percent or more ownership in the building used for the gambling activity; or 
(b) Having less than fifty percent ownership in the building used for the gambling activity and 

having actual or potential influence over the gambling activity. 
(4) For house-banked card room licensees or charitable or nonprofit licensees in regulatory groups 

Ill, IV. or V licensed before July I, 2014,, this requirement applies when there is a change in: 
(a) Persons holding an interest in the building; or 
(b) Location of the house-banked card room; or 
(c) Location of the charitable or nonprofit licensee's gambling activity. 



RCW 9.46.070 (7) Gambling commission - Powers and duties 
(7) To require that applicationS for all licenses contain such information as may be required by the 

commission: PROVlDED, That all persons (a) having a managerial or ownership interest in any 
gambling activity, or the building in which any gambling activity occurs, or the equipment to be used for 
any gambling activity. or (b) participating as an employee in the operation of any gambling activity, 
shall be listed on the application for the license and the applicant shall certify on the application, under 
oath, that the persons named on the application are all of the persons known to have an interest in any 
gambling activity. building, or equipment by the person making such application: PROVIDED 
FURTHER, That the commission shall require fingerprinting and national criminal history background 
checks on any persons seeking licenses, certifications, or permits under this chapter or of any person 
holding an interest in any gambling activity, building, or equipment to be used therefor, or of any person 
participating as an employee in the operation of any gambling activity. All national criminal history 
background checks shall be conducted using fingerprints submitted to the United States department of 
justice-federal bureau of investigation. The commission must establish rules to delineate which persons 
named on the application are subject to national criminal history background checks. In identifying these 
persons, the commission must take into consideration the nature. character, size, and scope of the 
gambling activities requested by the persons making such applications; 



WAC 230-07-015 Regulatory group assignments. 

(1) We assign charitable or nonprofit licensees to regulatory groups based on the annual gross gambJjng 
receipts for their combined licensed activities. 

(2) Licensees must comply with requirements applicable to the regulatory group to which we have 
assigned them. The regulatory groups are: 

(a) Group 1 Combined annual gross receipts up to three hundred thousand dollars. 

(b) Group Il Combined annual gross receipts up to one million dollars. 

(c) Group Ill Combined annual gross receipts up to three million dollars. 

(d) Group IV Combined annual gross receipts up to five million dollars. 

(e) Group V Combined annual gross receipts over five million dollars. 



WAC 230-03-045 Defining substantial interest holder. 

(I) "Substantial interest holder" means a person who has actual or potential influence over the 
management or operation of any organization, association, or other business entity. 

(2) Evidence of substantial interest may include, but is not limited to: 
(a) Directly or indirectly owning, operating, managing, or controlJing an entity or any part of an 

entity~ or 
(b) Directly or indirectly profiting from an entity or assuming liability for debts or expenditures of 

the entity: or 
(c) Being an officer or director or managing member of an entity; or 
(d) Owning ten percent or more of any class of stock in a privately or closely held corporation; or 
(e) Owning five percent or more of any class of stock in a publicly traded corporation; or 
(f) Owning ten percent or more of the membership shares/units in a privately or closely held limited 

liability company; o r 
(g) Owning five percent or more of the membership shares/units in a publicly traded limited liability 

company; or 
(h) Providing ten percent or more of cash. goods. or services for the start up of operations or the 

continuing operation of the business during any calendar year or fiscal year. To calculate ten percent of 
cash.. goods. or services. take the operational expenses of the business over the past calendar or fiscal 
year, less depreciation and amortization expenses. and multiply that number by ten percen~ or 

(i) Receiving, directly or indirectly, a salary, commission. royalties, or other fbnn of compensation 
based on the gambling receipts. 

(3) Spouses of officers of charitable or nonprofit organizations and spouses of officers or board 
members of publicly traded entities or subsidiaries of publicly traded entities arc not considered 
substantial interest holders, unless there is evidence to the contrary. If so, then an investigation will be 
conducted to determine if they qualify as a substantial interest holder. 



Staff Proposed Rule Change 

• Holding stay hearing in 14 days, rather than 7. 

April 2014 - Final Action 
March 201 4 - Study Session 
Fcbmary 2014 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
January 2014 - Study Session 

ITEM: 8 

a) Amcndatory Section WAC 230-17-170 
Petition and hearing for stay of the summary suspension. 



Proposed Amendment 
WAC 230-17-170 

Petition and hearing for stay of the summary suspension. 

April 2014 -Final Action 
March 2014 - Study Session 

Febniary 2014 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing. 
January 2014 - Study Session 

ITEM 8 (a) on the April 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda. Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who prop0sed the rule change? 
Staff. 

Proposed Change 
The current rule requires the agency to hold a stay hearing within seven days after we receive a request 
from a licensee or permittee. The proposed change increases the length of time to hold a stay 11earing from 
seven to 14 days. The proposed change also clarifies stay hearings must be conducted as brief 
adjudicative proceedings (BAP) as required by WAC 230-17-150. 

History of Rule 

WAC 230-17-170 affords smnmarily suspended licensees or permittees an opportunity to request a 
hearing to stay their suspension and clarifies how the hearing will be conducted. The rule gives licensees 
or permittees a prompt opportunity to be heard on whether their license/permit should remain suspended 
pending the outcome of their administrative hearing, which usually occurs several months later. 

Stay hearings should be conducted as BAPs, where the Administrative Law Judge (AU) relies upon 
briefs and oral argument. Under the rule, the only issues for the ALJ to decide are whether to grant a stay, 
or modify the terms of the suspension. The licensee or permittee has the burden of demonstrating by clear 
and convincing evidence each of the following: 

• They are likely to prevail on the merits of the evidence at the administrative hearing . 

• Without relief, the licensee will suffer irreparable injury. Elimination of income from licensed 
activities must not be deemed itTeparable injury. 

• The grant of relief will not substantially harm other parties to the proceedings . 

• The threat to the public safety or welfare is not sufficiently serious to justify continuation of the 
suspension, or that modification of the terms of the suspension will adequately protect the public 
interest. 

impact of the Proposed Change 

Amending the mle to allow holding a stay hearing 14 days after a request for a stay will allow additional 
time for all parties to prepare for the hearing and is consistent with other state agencies. By comparison, 
the Department of Health boards and commissions that regulate health professions and the Liquor Control 
Board provide in their rules for stay hearings to be held within 14 days from the date a petition is 
received. 

Tb.is rule only impacts licensees/permittees who are summarily suspended. Summary suspensions are only 
used when a Jicensee/permittee has demonstrated they pose an immediate threat to public health, safoty, 
or welfare, such as cases involving physical harm, cheating and theft. Licensees/permittees may need to 
wait up to 14 days for a stay hearing under the proposed rnle change. 

A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was not prepared because it is not required under RCW 
19.85.025 as it is a ruJe related to a procedure, practice, or requirement relating to agency hearings (RCW 
34.05.3 l0(4)(g)(i)). 



Regulatory Concerns 
None. 

Resource Impacts 
The proposed rule change is a more efficient use of resources as it would allow the parties and the ALJ 
additional time for scheduling and preparation. 

Policy Consideration 
None. 

Statements Supporting the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Statements Opposing the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Licensees Directly Impacted By the Change 

This rule only impacts licensees/permittees who are summarily suspended. 

Staff Recommendation 
Final Action. 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
Staff recommends an effective date of31 days from filing the adopted rule. 



Amendatory Section: 

WAC 230-17-170 Petition and hearing for stay of the summary suspension. 

( 1) When the director swnmarily suspends a license or permit, the affected licensee or permittee may 
petition for a ''stay of suspension" as explained in RCW 34.05.467 and 34.05.550(1). 

(2) We must receive the petition in writing within fifteen days of service of the summary suspension. 
(3) Within ((se¥eB)) fourteen days of receipt of the petition. the presiding officer bolds a bearing. If 

an administrative law judge is not available. the chairperson of the connnission designates a 
commissioner to be the presiding officer. If the parties agree, they may have a continuance of the seven
clay period. 

(4) The stay hearing must use brief adjudicative proceedings as set out in WAC 230-17-150. At the 
hearing, the only issues are whether the presiding officer: 

(a) Should grant a stay~ or 
(b) Modify the tcm1s of the suspension. 
(5) Our argument at the hearing consists of the infonnation we used ro issue the summary suspension 

and we may add any infomlation we fmd after we order the suspension. 
(6) At the hearing. the licensee or perrninec bas the burden of demonstrating by clear and convincing 

evidence all of the following: 
(a) The licensee or pcl'mittee is likely to prevail upon the merits of the evidence at hearing; and 
(b) Without relief, the licensee or permittee will suffer irreparable injury. For purposes of this 

scclion, elimination of income from licensed activities must not be deemed irrepm·able injury; and 
(c) The grant of relief will not substantially harm other parties to the proceedings; and 
( d) The threat to the public safoty or welfare is not sufficiently serious to justify continuation of the 

suspension_ or that modification of the terms of t11e suspension will adequately protect the public 
interest 

(7) The initial stay of the summary suspension order whether given orally or in wTiting takes effect 
immediately unless stated otherwise. 



Staff Proposed Rule Change 

• Allowing pull-tab prizes of $20 or less to be added to cash cards used in 
electronic video pull-tab dispensers. 

April 2014 - Final Action 
March 2014 - Final Action, held over until April. 
February 2014 - Final Action, held over until March. 
January 2014 - Further Discussion 
December 2013 - No Meeting 
November 2013 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 

ITEM: 9 

a) Amendatory Section: WAC 230-14-047 
Standards for electronic video pull-tab dispensers. 



Proposed Amendment to 
WAC 230~14-047 Standards for electronic video puJl-tab dispensers. 

April 2014 - Final Action 
March 2014 - Final Action, held over until April. 

February 2014 - Up for Final Action, held over until March. 
January 2014 - Further Discussion 

December 2013 - No Meeting 
November 2013 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 

ITEM 9 (a) on the April 2014 Commission Meeting. Statutorv Authoritv 9.46.070 & 9.46. 110 

Who proposed the rule change? 
Staff. 

Proposed Change 
f--:---:-~~~~---:-~~~~~~-:--~~..i.....:._;__;.;__;_~_;,,,._---,-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--1 

TI1js rule proposal is in response to an October 2013 Thurston County Superior Court decision. where the 
court directed the Commission to allow a specific electronic video pull-tab dispenser, which permits the 
purchase of a pull-tab at the dispenser and allows pull-tab winnings of $20 or less to be added onto a cash 
card at the dispenser. 

This amendment adds language to WAC 230-14-04 7 to al low pull-tab prizes of $20 or less to be added to 
cash cards used in electronic video pull-tab dfape!llsers. Most prizes are below $20. 

Commission staffs review of this issue began in 2005 and has led to several court proceedings involving 
many different legal issues. The following is a brief summary of the Commission staff's, Commission's. 
Administrative Law Judge's (ALI) and judicial decisions as they related specifically to cash cards used in 
electronic video pull-tab dispensers: 

• ln April 2005, the manufacturer requested Commission staff approve an electronic video pull-tab 
djspenser ("VlP'') that would allow winnings of $20 or less to be put on a cash card. Staff denied 
the request. 

• ln September 2005, the manufacturer submitted a request to Commission for a declaratory action 
autborizing the VIP. 

• In October 2005. the Commissioners referred the matter to an ALJ for an Initial Order. 

• In May 2006. lhe AU issued his lnitial Order and concluded that the VlP was not a gambling 
device under RCW 9.46.0241, but that the pull-tab dispenser' s cash card features violated lhe 
Commission's then-current regulations. Both the manufacturer and the Commjssion staff sought 
final review by the full Commission. 

• In August 2006, the Conunission upheld the ALJ's determination that the VIP violated the 
Commission· s then-current regulations. The Commission "vacated and specifically disavowed'' 
the ALJ's decision regarding whether the VIP was an illegal gambling device. The Commission, 
however. did not issue a final decision on this issue having determined that the device violated the 
regulations. 



• In August 2007> the Thurston County Superior Court found that cash cards were equivalent to 
both cash and merchand ise and, therefore. were lawful under the Commission's regulations. The 
Commission appealed this decision to the Court of Appeals. 

• Jn August 2009, the Court of Appeals held that "substantial evidence did not support the 
Gambling Commission·s determination that the prepaid cards failed to satisfy the regulatory 
definition of cash." The Commission appealed this decision to the Washington Supreme Court. 

• ln January 2012, the Wash ington Supreme Court affirmed the lower court's decision, finding that 
ZOI met its burden of showing that the Gambling Commission "erred in concluding that the VIP 
machine violated then-in force regulations:' The Court remanded the matter back to the 
Commission for proceedings consistent with its opinion. 

• ln March 20 13, the Commission issued a final Order on Remand adopting the Washington State 
Supreme Court's findings with respect to cash cards and determining that the VfP was a gambling 
device under RCW 9.46.0241. ZDI sought judicial review of this decision. 

• ln August 2013. the Thurston County Superior Coun reversed the Commission· s Final Order on 
Remand. Among the superior court's findings, the court concluded that the VJP was not a 
gambling device under RCW 9.46.024 l and should be allowed. The superior court's order was 
entered on October J 8, 2013. 

Bold= Addition · made to the rules summary after the March 201 4 Commission meeting. 

Attachments: 
• Alternative # 1: Proposed amendment to WAC 230-14-047 Standards for electronic video pull-tab 

dispensers. 
• Alternative #2: Proposed ••lternative submitted by Mr. Gerow at the March 2014 Commission 

meeting. 
• Alternative #3 forwarded by AAG Callie Castillo to Ms. Mell, Mr. Gerow's attorney. 
• Thurston County Superior Court Order dated October 18, 2013 (Order on ZOI's ccond Petition for 

Judicial Review). 
• Supreme Court of Wash1n~ton Order (page 7 addresses cash cards and cash equivalents). 

l listory of Rule 
ln 2008. the Commission adopted WAC 230-14-047, which sets out standards for electronic video pull
tab dispensers. At that time, the Commission decided not to adopt language to allow electronic video puH
tab dispensers to add prizes of$20 or less onto cash cards. 

lmoact of the Proposed Change 
The rule change would allow other manufacturers to develop similar electronic video pull-tab dispensers. 
It is difficult to predjct whether other manufacture rs wiU do so. 

Resource Impacts 
• Because the feature of allowing pull-tab winnings of $20 or less to be added onto a cash card is new, 

we may receive an increased number of questions from the public and may experience an increase in 
complaints related to the electronic video pull-tab dispensers. 

• We will need to incorporate this new feature into our electronic video pull-tab dispenser regulatory 
program. 

Policy Considerations 
This rule proposal is consistent with the Thurston County Superior Court' s order. where the court directed 
the Commjssion to allow a specific electronic video pull-tab dispenser that allows pull-tab winnings of 
$20 or less to be put onto a cash card at the dispenser. 



Stakeholder Statements Supporting the Proposed Rule Change 
None. 

Stakeholder Statements Opposing the Proposed Ruic Change 
None. 

Stakeholder Statements Regarding the Proposed Rule CbanR,e 

• At the January 2014 Commission meeting, Amy Hunter, Administrator, relayed to the Commissioners 
that Mr. Jay Gerow was at the study session (but could not attend the Commission meeting) and Jet 
staff know that ZDI plans to offer alternative language. Chair Amos said Mr. Gerow had told him the 
same thing. 

• At the February 2014 Commission meeting, M r. Gerow asked the Commissioners to hold this rule 
(Alternative# 1) change over until the March Commission meeting. 

• The day before the March 2014 Commission meeting, Mr. Gerow distributed new language 
(Alternative #2) for the Commissioners' consideration, including a request to repeal the WAC 
that defines ''cash". 

• At the March 2014 Commission meeting, Joan Mell, attorney for Mr. Gerow, addressed the 
Commissioners. After much discussion, the Commissioners decided to hold the rule over for an 
additional month and asked staff to work on language with Nlr. Gerow. 

• AAG Callie Castillo proposed Alternative #3 to Ms. MeU and as of the time of printing bas not 
received a response back. 

Licensees Directly Impacted By the Change 
Licensed manufacturers, distributors, and pull-tab operators. 

Staff Recommendation 
Final Action. 

Effective Date 
31 days from filing the adopted rule change. 



Alte rnative #1 

Amendatory ection: 

WAC 230-1 4-047 Standards for electronic video pull-tab dispensers. 

Electronic video pull-tab dispensers must be approved by us prior to use, meet lhe requirements below. 
and may incorporate only the featmes below and not perform additional functions. 

( l ) Electronic video pull-tab dispensers must djspense a paper pull-tab as defined in WAC 230-14-0 IO 
and follow the rules for: 

(a) Pull-tabs; and 
(b) Flares; and 
(c) Authorized pull-tab dispensers. 

(2) Electronic video pu11-tab dispensers that use a reading and displaying function must: 
(a) Use a video monitor for entertainment purposes only~ and 
(b) Open all, or a portion ot: the pull-tab in order to read encoded data that indicates the win or loss 

of the pull-tab if the dispenser is equipped to automaticaJly open pull-tabs; and 
(c) Dispense the pull-tab to the player and not retain any portion of the pull-tab; and 
(d) Read the correct cash award from the pull-tab either when it is dispensed or when the pull-tab is 

reinserted into the dispenser; and 
(e) Display the cash award from the pull-tab. one pull-tab at a time; and 
(f) Provide: 
(i) An eJectronic accounting of the number of pull-tabs dispensed; and 
(ii) A way to identify the software version and name; and 
(iii) A way to access and verify approved components; and 
(iv) Security on the dispenser to prevent unauthorized access to graphic and prize amount displays. 

(3) ((Gift eertifieates or gift)) Cash cards used in electronic video pull-tab dispensers must: 
(a) Be purchased with cash, check. gift certificates. gift cards, or electronic point-of-saJe bank 

transfer before use in the dispenser; and 
(b) Be convertible to cash at a11y time during business hours; and 
(c) Subtract the cash value for the purchase of the pull-tab one puJl-tab at a time. 

(4) Electronic video puU-tab dispensers that accept cash cards m.ay award anv pull-tab cash prize of 
twenty dollars or less onto the cash card. 



Mr. Gerow's proposed rule amendments 
submitted at the 
March 2014 Commission Meeting. 
Page 1 of 2 

Amend WAC 230-14-047 as follows: 

Standards for electronic video pull-tab 
dispensers. 

Sec. 1: 

Alternative #2 

Electronic video pull-tab dispensers must be approved by us prior to 
use. The director may approve any dispenser that, meet§. the 
requirements below_. , and may incorporate only the features below 
and not pert-Orm additional functions Any feature or function not 
described below may be approved by an affirmative vote of three out 
of five commissioners for any dispenser that meets the requirements 
below when the additional feature or function either improves the 
commission's regulatory control or does not impair the commission's 
regulatory control of pull-tabs. 
(1) Electronic video pull-tab dispensers must dispense a paper pull-tab 
as defined in WAC 230-14-010 and follow the rules for: 
(a) Pull-tabs; and 
(b) Flares; and 
( c) Authorized pull-tab dispensers. 
(2) Electronic video pull-tab dispensers that use a reading and 
displaying function must: 
(a) Use a video monitor for entertainment purposes only; and 
(b) Open all, or a portion of, the pull-tab in order to read encoded data 
that indicates the win or loss of the pull-tab if the dispenser is 
equipped to automaUcally open pull-tabs; and 
(c) Dispense the pull-tab to the player and not retain any portion of the 
pull-tab; and 
( d) Read the correct cash award from the pull-tab either when it is 
dispensed or when the pull-tab is reinserted into the dispenser; and 
(e) Display the cash award from the pull-tab, one pull-tab at a time; 
and 



(f) Provide: 

Mr. Gerow's proposed rule amendments 
submitted at the 
March 2014 Commission Meeting. 
Page 2of2 

Alternative #2 

(i) An electronic accounting of the number of pull-tabs dispensed; and 
(ii) A way to identify the software version and name; and 
(iii) A way to access and verify approved components; and 
(iv) Security on the dispenser to prevent unauthorized access to 
graphic and prize amount displays. 
(3) Gift certificates or gift cards Cash cards used in electronic video 
pull-tab dispensers must: 
(a) Be purchased with cash, check or electronic point-of-sale bank 
transfer before use in the dispenser; and 
(b) Be convertible to easfi currency at any time during business hours; 
and 
( c) Subtract the cash value for the purchase price of the pull-tab one 
pull-tab at a time: and-: 
(d} Allow the purchaser to record a prize of twenty dollars or less 
automatically at the dispenser on the gift card. 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-03-052 (Order 621 ), § 
230-14-047, filed 1/11/08, effective 2/11/08.] 

Sec.2 

REPEAL the definition of "cash". 

WAC 230-06-003 



Alternative #3 

Amendatory Section: 

WAC 230-14-047 Standards for electronic video pull-tab dispensers. 

Electronic video pull-tab dispensers must be approved by us prior to use- eei.tht! 
-~atremt::r1ts- u.a1b'•~ tRtt -H.~rpr"'< tA • ~ _ '_ c.i;. 9e Jnrl ~- ~erform addiHet:ral 

ftffieltetlS _: 

(1) Electronic video pull-tab dispensers must dispense a paper pull-tab as defined in WAC 230-
14-010 and follow the rules for: 

(a) Pull-tabs; and 
(b) Flares; and 
(c) Authorized pull-tab dispensers. 

(2) Electronic video pull-tab dispensers that use a reading and displaying function must: 
(a) Use a video monitor for entertainment purposes only; and 
(b) Open all, or a portion of, the pull-tab in order to read encoded data that indicates the 

win or loss of the pull-tab if the dispenser is equipped to automatically open pull-tabs; and 
(c) Dispense the pull-tab to the player and not retain any portion of the pull-tab; and 
(d) Read the correct cash award from the pull -tab either when it is dispensed or when the 

pull-tab is reinserted into the dispenser; and 
(e) Display the cash award from the pull-tab, one pull-tab at a time; and 
(f) Provide: 
(i) An electronic accounting of the number of pull-tabs dispensed; and 
(ii) A way to identify the software version and name; and 
(iii) A way to access and verify approved components; and 
(iv) Security on the dispenser to prevent unauthorized access to graphic and prize amount 

displays. 
(3) ((Gift certificates or sift)) Cash cards used in electronic video pull-tab dispensers must: 

(a) Be purchased with cash, check, gift certificates, gift caf6s, or electronic point-of-sale 
bank transfer before use in the dispenser; and 

(b) Be convertible to cash at any time during business hours; and 
(c) Subtract the ~~•-villdC t-01 a:tl~purchase price of the pull-tab one pull-tab at a time. 

(4) Electronic video pull-tab dispensers that accept cash cards may award any pull-tab cash 
prize of twenty dollars or less onto the cash card. 



DEXPEDITE 
0No Hearing Set 

2 0 Hearing is Set 
The Honorable Gary Tabor 

. :_._u 
.). ; :.;no 1 ~ r: cu1n 
, • , .~ ; 1_· JUP r '(. W;~ 

2013 OCT 18 AM 8: L, 9 

BETT Y J. GOULD. CLEH!·~ 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

THURSTON COUNTY SUPERiOR COURT 

9 ZDI GA.MlNG, INC., 

l O Petitioner, 

11 v . 

12 THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, by 
and through the W ASHJNGTON 

13 STA TE GAMBLING COMMISSION, 

14 Res ondent. 

NO. 06-2-02283-9 

ORDER ON ZDI'S SECOND 
PETITION FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

IS On August 16th, 2013, the above captioned matter came before the Court for hearing 

16 on ZDl Gaming. Inc:'s Second Petition for Judicial Review. ZDI Gaming. Inc. appeared by 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

and through its attorney of record Joan K. Mell of Ill Branches Law, PLLC. The State of 

Washington. by and through the Washington State Gambling Commission (the "Commission") 

appeared by and through its attorneys of record the Attorney OeneraJ of Washington Robert W. 

Ferguson, and Assistant Attorney General Callie A. Castillo. The Court heard oral argument 

and considered the administrative record, the opening and reply briefs of ZDI Gaming, Inc., 

and the responsive brief of the Commission. 

The Cotlrt deeming itself fully advised enters the foliowing order: 

1.1 ZDI Gaming, Inc. 's second petition for judicial review is granted. 

ORDER ON zors SECOND PETIDON 
FOR JUDICIAL REV1EW 

A TIORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON 
1125 Washington Streer SE 

PO Box40100 
Olympia. WA 98504-0100 

(360) 664-9006 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1.2 ZDI's electronic video pull-tab dispenser upgraded with cash card features that (l)' 

penrut the pmchase of a pull-tab at the dispenser and (2) allow for any pull-tab prize of $20 or 

less to be added ro the cash card at the dispenser is allowed (hereinafter "ZDI's VIP"). 

1.3 The Commhssion did not comply with the Adm.inistrative Procedure Act ("AP A"), 

RCW 34.05.464(4) and .570(3)(t) when it did not decide all issues requiring resolution by the 

agency upon ZDI's petition for declaratory relief. Specifically, the Commission erred as a 

matter of law wben it failed to decide the issue of whether ZDI's VIP was a gambling device in 

its August 2006 Final Order. 

l.4 The Commission engaged in unlawful procedure or decision-making process under the 

APA, RCW 34.05.570(3)(c), when it considered the issue of whether ZDI's VIP was a 

gambling device in 201·2. 

1.5 The Commission's determination in its 2012 Final Order on Remand that ZDI's VIP is 

15 a gambling device under RCW 9.46.0241 is vacated as outside the statutory authority of the 

16 agency under the APA, RCW 34.05.570(3)(b), and as an erroneous interpretation or 

17 application 0f the law under the APA, RCW 34.05.570(3)(d). The portion of the 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Administrative Law Judge's Initial Declaratory Order determining that ZDT's VIP is not a 

gambling device is reinstated as the corred application of the law. ZDI's V1P is not a 

gambling device under RCW 9.46.0241. ZDT's VIP is not prohibited under the Gambling Act, 

RCW 9.46, or the Co1DD1ission's regulations. 

23 1.6 The Commission is ordered to allow ZDI 's VIP for manufacturing, distribution, and use 

24 

25 

26 

in the State. 

Ill 

Ill 

ORDER ON ZDl'S SECOND PETITION 
FOR JUDICIAL REYIBW 

2 A1TORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON 
1125 Wulungtoo Street SE 

POBox40100 
Otympl11, WA 98504-0 l 00 

(360) 664.9006 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

1.7 ZDI Gaming, Inc. shall be awarded its fees and costs incurred from the date of filing its 

petition under the Equal Access to Justice Act in the amount of $8,316.60. 

Dated this ti day of 0 C r , 2013. 

Presented by: 

ROBERT W. FERGUSON 
Attorney General 

Approved as to form: 

.. . v.::;t+t--e\e<:.~"'\\t 

( tJ.uL,LJC\.. Ch~"r ~{)..>~~-Qt_ 
JOAN K. rvIBLL, WSBA #21319 
ID Branches Law, PLLC 
Attorney for ZDI Gaming, Inc. 

ORDER ON ZDl'S SECOND PETffiON 
FOR JUDIClAL REVIEW 

3 ATfORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON 
l 125 Washington Street SE 

PO Box40100 
Olympia, WA98504-0100 

(360) 664-90(}6 



ZOI Gaming Inc. v. State ex rel. Washington State .•. , 173 Wash.2d 608 {2012) 

268 P.3d 929 

173 Wash.2d 608 
Supreme Court of Washington, 

En Banc. 

ZDI GAMING, INC., Respondent, 
v. 

The STATE of Washington by and through the 
W ASHfNGTON STATE GAMBLING 

COMMISSION, Petitioner. 

No. 83745- 7. I Argued Nov. 16, 2010. I Decided Jan. 
12, 2012. I As Corrected March 20, 2012. I 
Reconsideration Denied March 21, 2012. 

Synopsis 
Background : Gaming supply distributor sought review of 
state Gambling Commission's denial of application for 
permission to distribute electronic pull-tab machine 
incorporating cash card technology. After the Superior 
Court, Pierce County, Bryan Chushcoff, J. , transferred 
venue of case, the Superior Court, Tirnrston County, 
Christine- A. Pomeroy. J. , reversed and awarded attorney 
fees to distributor. Both parties appealed. Tbe Court of 
Appeals. 151 Wasb.App 788. 214 P.3d 938. affirmed in 
part and remanded. Review was granted. 

Holdjogs: Tbe Supreme Court, en bane, Chambers, J .. 
held that: 

fll statute providing that court in single state county bad 
jurisdiction over proceedings against stare Gambling 
Comm ission did not limit subject matter jurisdiction to 
single state county in violation of state constitution, and 

121 electronic pull-tab maclline that allowed player to 
purchase pull-tabs from machine using prepaid card and 
that either credited player's pull-tab winnings on to card or 
directed player to an employee of gaming estabUshment to 
receive payment did not violate former reguJatiou 
requiring that pull-tab player receive winnings in cash or 
merchandise. 

Affirmed. 

J.M_ Johnson, J., filed dissenting opinion in which Barbara 
/\. Madsen, C..J., Mary E. Fairhurst:, J., and Gerry 
/\lexand~r~ Justice Pro Tem,joioed. 

West Headnotes (11) 

Jl I 

IJI 

131 

Gaming 
Licenses and taxes 

Statute providing that court in single state county 
had jurisdiction over proceedings against state 
Gambling Commission did not limit subject 
matter jurisdiction to smgle state county in 
violation of provision of state constitution 
precluding subject matter jurisdictional 
restrictions as among state superior courts, as 
statute related to venue rather tban to subject 
matter jurisdiction. West's RCWA Const. Art. 4, 
§ 6; West's RCWA 9.4-0.095. 

Courts 
Washington 

Provision of state constitution vesting superior 
COLLrt with original jurisdiction in all cases in 
which jurisdiction was not vested exclusively in 
some other court precludes any subject matter 
restrictions as among superior courts. West's 
RCWA Const. Art 4. § 6. 

2 Case~ that cite this headnote 

Courts 
- Grounds and essentials of jurisdiction 

"Jurisdiction" is the power and authority of the 
court to act. 

1 Cases that cite this htmdnote 

Courl5 
Jurisdiction of Cause of Action 

"Subject matter j urisdiction" is a particular type 



ZDI Gaming Inc. v. State ex rel. Washington State ... , 173 Wash.2d 608 (201 2) 
268 P.3d 929 ----

151 

161 

of j111isdiction, and it critically turns on the type 
of confroversy; if tbe type of controversy is 
within tl1e subject matter jurisdiction, then au 
other defects or errors go to something other than 
subject matter jurisdiction. 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

Venue 
Nature and necessity or venue in action 

"Venue'' denotes the setting, location, or place 
where the power to adjudicate is to be exercised, 
that is, the place where the suit may or should be 
heard. 

Veoue 
Nature and nectissity of venue ill action 

If a court bas jurisdiction over the subject matter 
of a controversy, it need not exercise that 
authority if venue lies elsewhere. 

171 Venue 

181 

Nature and necessity of venue in action 

Court need not dismiss case for improper venue, 
even if the statute of Limitations lapses before the 
defect in venue is discovered. 

Constitu tional L:iw 
Prosumptionb and Construction as to 

Constitutionality 

Court interprets statutes as constitutional if 
possible. 

I Cases that cite this headnote 

191 

1101 

1111 

Courts 
Washingtou 

Vtnue 
Constitutional aml staturory provisions 

Legislature may impose limitations on venue, but 
11ot upon subject matter or original juri.sdjction, 
of individual superior courts. West's RCW A 
Const. Art. 2. § 26, Art. 4, § 6. 

I Cases that cite this headnote 

Gaming 
Prizes or premiums 

Electronic puJl-tab machine that allowed player 
to purchase puU-tabs from machine using prepaid 
card and that either credited player's pull-tab 
winnmgs on to card or ilirected player to an 
employee of gammg establishment to receive 
payment did not violate former regulation 
requiring that pull-tab player receive winnings in 
cash or merchanruse; card was functionally 
equivalent to cash in that card could be 
immediately converted into cash currency at 
establishment where player was playing. WAC 
230-12- 050 (2003). 

Administrative Law and Procedu re 
Scope 

Adm inistrative Law and Procedure 
"Limitation of scope of review in general 

In reviewing decision of administrative agency, 
Supreme Court reviews the agency record 
directly and shows aJJ due deference to tbat 
agency. 

.Ne.<'I © ._. .... 11 .mson ';.eure.rs Nn claim lo onnlnal lJ.S Government Works 



Z.01 G.ftmlng Inc. v. State eic re-I. Washington State •.. , 173 Wash.2d 608 (2012) 

268 P.3d 929 

Attorntys and Law Firms 

**930 J~rl') Af<tn Ai;lcnn:m, Office of the Attorney 
General, Ol) mpla. WA. for Petitioner. 

Joan f'\J'isrinc M~ II In Branches Law. PLLC. Fircrest, 
WA, for Respondent. 

Opinion 

**93 l Cl IAMBLRS, J. 

* 6 11 ~ I Th is case was Ii led in a county other than where it 
was to be adjudicated. We are asked today to decide 
whether, as a consequence, the case will not be *612 heard. 
We conclude that the proper forum is a question of venue, 
not the subject mat1er jurisdiction of superior courts. We 
affirm the Court of Appeals . ZDI Gaming, Inc: v Wayh 
St,t1•~ v"mblmg C°'""' ''· I) 1 Wash.App 788 '.:! 14 P.3d 
938 (2009). 

F CTS 

2 For many years ZDl Gaming Inc .. a family owned 
business, has provided " 'just about anything to do with the 
gambling industry in the state of Washington.' " 
Administrative Record (AR) at 410 (quoting Verbatim 
Report of Proceedings (VRP) at 88); Clerk's Papers (CP) 
at 18. This includes distributing pull-tabs and pull-tab 
machines. A pull-tab machine is a fairly modern gaming 
Jevice. A traditional pull-tab involves a paper ticket 
containing a series of windows that hide numbers or 
symbols. The player ' 'opens one of the windows to reveal 
Lhc symbols below to determine if the ticket is a winner." 
CP at 1026. If the 1icket's combination of numbers or 
symbols malchcs those listed on a sheet called a " flare" as 
a winning ticket, the ticket's purchaser is entitled to a prize. 
Id. Modem pull-tab machines can both dispense and read 
pull-tab tickets and can produce sounds and displays 
mimicking electronic slot machines. 

3 In 1973. when gambling was legalized in Washington 
State, the legislattJre declared pull-tabs, along with certain 
other games of chance, would bo authorized, but "closely 
controlled." Laws of 1973, ch. 218, § l (curren11y codified 
as RCW 9..16.010); AR at 410. Accordingly, the 
Washington State Gambling Commission (Gambling 
Commission) has heavily regulated puJ1-tabs and pull-tab 
machines. E.g .. former WAC 230-02-412(2) (2001); 
fonner WAC 230 08-017 (2003), former WAC 
230-12--050 (2003); Fonner WAC 230-08--010(2) (2004). 

4 I listorically, and broadly in lhe context of games of 
chance. the commission prohibited giving gifts or 
extending • 6 13 credit to players for the purposes of 
gambling. Former WAC 23(}-12--050. Accordingly, 
plnyers were required to pay the consideration ·-required to 
participate in the gambling activity ... in full by cash, 
check. or electronic point-of-sale bank transfer, prior to 
participation,'' with some exceptions not relevant here. 
Former WAC 230-12--050(2). The Gambling Commission 
also bad required a pull-tab player ro receive winnings "in 
cash or in merchandise." Former WAC 230- 30 070( I) 
(2001). 

~ 5 ZDI Gaming distributes the VIP (video interactive 
display) machine, an electronic pull-tab macbfoe featuring 
a video display screen, a currency bilJ acceptor, and (in 
later version) a cash card acceptor, all housed in a 
decorative cabinet. ZDI Gaming intentionalJy designed the 
current VCP machine to resemble a video slot machine and 
programmed it to use the same ''attractor" sounds used to 
lure players. Players see rows of spinning characters thac 
ultimately line up and stop in wim1ing or losing 
combinations. The version oflhe machfoe at issue allows a 
player to purchase pull-tabs from the machine itself using a 
prepaid card. The VlP machine credits pull-tab winnings 
of $20 or less back. to the card. If a player wins more than 
$20. the VIP macbine directs the player to an employee to 
receive paymenL A player who stops playing the VlP 
machine with a balance on the card can use it to purchase 
food. drink. merchandise, or tum it in for cash at the 
establishment featuring the VlP machine. 

ii 6 An earlier version of the VIP machine was approved by 
the Gambling Commission in 2002. However, once the 
cash card acceptor was added to 1be machine, things 
became more complicated. While initially. it appears 
Gambling Commission employees were "optimistic" that 
such 1echnology would be approved, once they w1derstood 
that a player's winnings would be credited directly back 
onto the card itself. they became concerned. AR at 14. 
After working with Gambling Commission staff for some 
time. ZDI Gaming submitted a formal application to the 
Gambling Commission *614 requesting pem1ission to 
distribute the new VlP machine, with the cash card 
acceptor. in Washington_ After the assistant director of 
licensing operations **932 fon:nally denied the 
applicacion, ZDJ Gaming filed a petition for declaratory 
relief with the Gaming Commission. An administrative 
law judge (AU) agreed with WI Gaming that the VIP 
machines did not violate gambling statutes. However, he 
found the machines extended credit and allowed gambl ing 
without prepayment by '' 'cash. check, or electronic 
point-of-sale bank transfer,· " violating then-operative 
regulations. AR al 419, 423 (citing fonner WAC 

ti tJNi!Jxt ~- 2013 nmrri!ion RPllters No r.:la1m to mtn1nA IJ s Gnvernn11~11f Works 



ZDI Gaming Inc. v . State ex rel. Washington State ..• , 17J Wnh.ld 608 (2012} 

268 P.3d 929 

23(} 12-050). ZDI Gaming strenuously contended the cash 
car~ utilized by its VIP machine was functionally 
equivalent to cash. The ALJ rejected the argument, 
reasoning that the "difficulty with a cash card is that it's 
only valid at one location. It is impossible to take the cash 
curd from the Buzz Inn to a local Harley Davidson dealer 
and purchase a ne~ helmet.... [C]ash cards are not cash 
because they require an additional step on the part of the 
consumer to utilize in any other location." AR at 420 21. 
ntc AU also found that the VIP machine violated a 
regulation that required that all pri~es be in either cash or 
merchandise. AR al 422 23 (citing Fonner WAC 
230 3~ 070).1 On August I 0, 2006. the full Gambling 
Commission issued a final declaratory order upholding the 
ALJ's decision that the VIP machine violated the 
regulations, though it disavowed the AW's decision diat 
the machine complied with lhc statutory requirements as 
superfluous. AR at 961 93. 

Perhaps pre!>cicntly. the '\IJ noted that .. ltlhc 
l ommission was ju~tifkd In denying approval for tl1e 
equipment bUS(.'(i on violation of the 11bo"e regulations 
but has the inherent authority to n:visc the rules lo bcucr 
comport with the mo<km realities of the industry if it 
elects lo do so.·· AR at 423 24. Since lhen. many of 
lhcse rules have been revised. 

7 On September 11. 2006, 7.01 Gaming filed a petition 
for judicial review in Pierce County Superior Court 
challenging the validity of the rules the AU and the 
Gambling Commission found it had violated. Ten days 
later, the State informed ZDI Gaming that, in its view. 
RC"' 9. 16.095 *615 t,rranted exclusive j urisdiction of the 
mutter to the Thurston County Superior Court and 
suggested that it may wish to withdraw its petition from 
Pierce County and file io Thurston Cowity before the 
statute of limitations would run on October 4. 2006. The 
State told ZDI Gaming that il would otherwise move to 
dismiss the c.ase for want of jurisdiction after October 4 
2006. ' ZDI Gaming declined. and the State so movei 
Noting that sometimes ''when the Legislature uses the 
word 'jurisdiction," it really mean[sJ ·venue: "' Judge 
CbushcofT denied the State's motion 10 dismjgs, but did 
transfer the case to the fhurston County Superior Court. 
VRP (Dec. I, 2006) at 5: CP at 8, 17. 

J 

We arc mindful of the fact that lhe State has acted 
forthrightly by bringing. this issue to ZDI Gaming's 
nltcnLion. 

Judge Chushcoff also obscrwd. with a gn:at deal of 
insight, Lhat ··sometimes when the stale Supreme Court 
uses the word 'jurisdic!tion, · they mean something elsi=.'" 
VRP (Dec. I, 2006) nt 5. 

8 fhe Thurston County Superior Court reversed tJ1c 
Gambling Commission. It found that cash cards were the 
equivalent to both cash and merchandise and thus lawful 
under the regulations. The court denied the Gambling 
Commission's motion for reconsideration. remanded the 
case to the Gambling Commission for action, and awarded 
lDf Gaming $18, I 85 in attomey fees under the equal 
access to justice act., RCW ·1.84 JSO, which was less than 
ZDI Gaming had sought. 

~I 9 Both parties appealed. The Court of Appeals affirmed 
in part, holding tJ1at lhe Pierce County Superior Court had 
subject matter jurisdiction over the appeaJ under the 
Administrative Procedure Act, ch. 34.05 RCW, and tJ1at 
substantial evidence did not support the Gambling 
Commission's determination that the prepaid cards failed 
to satisfy the regulatory definition of'·cash."" ZDI uunrm,.: 

51 \hshApp. t qs 21..J P Jd 938. The court remanded 
the case to the Thurston County Superior Court. directmg it 
to reconsider its decision to exclude fees that ZDI Gaming 
spent responding to the Gambling Commission's motion to 
dismiss. Id at 8P. 214 P.Jd 938. *616 The State 
petitioned for review. contending that the use of the word 
.. jurisdiction" in R( W l) t6 095 was unambiguous. that the 
courts below erred in concluding that "cash'" included cash 
cards, and that the Court of Appeals shifted the burden of 
proof to the Gambling Commission. ZDI **933 GamiJ1g 
answered the petition and sought review of the attorney fee 
award. We granted the State' s petition for review and 
denied ZDI Gaming's request for review of the attorney 
foe issue. ZDI Gamm8. Inc 1•. Wash. Stat~ Gamblin~ 

t'omm'n, 168 Wash.2d 10 10,227 P.Jd 853 (20 10). 

ANALYSIS 

Ill Ill 10 Whether Pierce County Superior Court had 
subject matter jurisdiction over this case is controlled by 
"lhoop 11. Kittitu., \011111), 149 Wash.2d 29, 37 65 P Jtl 
1194 (2003). ''fAJrticlc IV, section 6 of the Washington 
Constitution ... states in relevant part: 'The superior court 
shall also have original jurisdiction in all cases and of all 
proceedings in which jurisdiction shall not have been by 
law vested exclusively in some other court [.]' That 
provision precludes any subject matter restrictions as 
among superior courts." Id 

I I Among other things, jurisdiction is a fundamental 
building block of law. Our state constitution uses tJ1e term 
'jurisdiction" to describe the fundamental power of courts 

Nex• 20 I 111 •T1 on Reu1~rs N~ c • 1m to o 11::i1nAI t I R f.iovArr1m nt W rK 



ZDI Gaming Inc. v. State ex rel. Washington State ... , 173 Wash.2d 608 (2012) 

268 P.3d 929 

to act. Ou.r constitution defines the irreducible jurisdiction 
of the supreme and superior courts. 11' also defines and 
confines the power of the legislature to either create or 
limit jurisdiction. See WASH. CONST. art. IV, § 4 
(defining the power of the supreme court), § 6 (defining the 
power of the superior coui1s), § 30(2) (explicitly giving the 
legislature the power to provide for jurisdiction of the court 
of appeals). Our constitution recognizes and vests 
jurisdiction over many types of cases in the various courts 
of this State. WASH. CONST. art. IV §§ I, 4, 6, 30. 
Superior courts have original jurisdiction in the categories 
of cases listed in the constitution, which the legislaturn 
cannot take away. *617 WASH. CONST. art. JV,§ 6~ 
State v. Werner. 129 Wash.2d 485, 496, 918 P.2d 916 
( 1996) (quoting Blanchard v Golden Age Brewing Co., 
188 Wash. 396, 415, 63 P.2d 397 (1936)). As we ruled long 
ago, "Any legislation, therefore, the purpose or effect of 
which is to divest, ill whole or in pan, a constitutional court 
of its constitutional powers, is void as being an 
encroachment by the legislative department upon the 
judicial department.'' Bla11ch011d, 188 Wash at 4 15. 63 
P.2d 397. The legis lature can, however, expand and sbape 
jurisdiction, consistent with our constitution. WASH. 
CONST. art. IV1 § 6; Dougherty v Dep 11 of Lubur & 
Indus .. 150 Wash.2d 310, 316- 17. 76 P.3d l l 83 (2003). 
But Dougherty, Shoop. and )·011ng v. Clark. 149 Wash.2d 
130, 134. 65 P.3d 1192 (2003), all reject the principle that 
all procedural requirements of superior court review are 
jurisdictional. E.g., Do11gherty, 150 Wash.2d at 316. 76 
P.3d 1183. Simply put, the exfatence of subject matter 
j urisdiction is a matter of law and does not depend 0111 

procedural rules. 14 KARL B. TEGLAND, 
WASHINGTON PRACTICE: CIVIL PROCEDURE § 3. 
I, at 20 (2d ed.2009). 

~ l2 The term "jurisdiction" is often used to mean 
something other than the fundamental power of courts to 
act. The cun-ent edition of Black 's Law Dictionaty devotes 
six pages to different types of jurisdiction, ranging from 
agency jurisdiction to voluntary jurisdiction, touching on 
equity jurisdiction, in rem jurisdiction, and spatial 
jurisdiction. along with many others. BLACK'S LAW 
DICTIONARY 927- 32 (9th ed.2009). Sometimes 
·~jurisdktion" means simply the place or location where a 
judicial proceeding shall occur. Where jurisdiction 
describes the forum or location of the hearing, it is 
generally understood to mean venue. See, e.g., Werner. 
129 Wash.2d 485, 9 18 P.2d 9 16. 

Pl 141 ~ 13 fn Dougherty. 150 Wash.2d 310, 76 P 3d 11 83. 
we discussed the important distinction between 
jurisdiction and venue. "Jurisdiction ' is the power and 
authority of the court to act.' " Id. at 315, 76 P.3d J 183 
(citing 77 AM . JUR.2d Venue§ I, at 608 (1997)). Subject 

matter jurisdiction is a particuJar type of jurisdiction, and it 
critically tu.ms on "the 'type of controversy.' " *618 Id at 
316, 76 P .Jd 1183 (quoting Marley v. D11p 't oj labor & 
Indus., 125 Wash.2d 533, 539, 886 P.2d 1119 ((994) )." ' " ff 
the type of controversy is within tbe subject matter 
jurisdiction, then all other defects or en-ors go to something 
other tban subject matter jurisdiction." ' ' ' Marley 125 
Wash.2d at 539, 886 P 2d 189 (quoting Robert J. 
Martineau, Subject Maller Jurisdiction as a New Issue on 
**934 Appeal: Reining in an Unruly Horse, 1988 BYU L. 
RBV. 1, 28 (1988)). 

151 161 171 ~ 14 By contrast, as we explai.ned in Dougher(\', 
rather than touching on tbe power or authority o f courts to 
act on certain subjects, venue denotes the setting, location, 
or place " 'where tbe power to adjudicate is to be exercised, 
that is, the place where the sujt may or should be heard. ' " 
Dougherty. 150 Wasb..2d at 3 I 6, 76 P.3d 1183 (quoting 77 
AM. JUR. 2d, Venue § I. at 608). As we explained in 
Dougherty, if a court bas jurisdjction over the subject 
matter of the controversy, it need not exercise that 
authority if venue Ues elsewhere. Id at 315. 76 P.Jd 1183 
(citing Indus. Addition Ass 'n v. Comm 'r of l nrernal 
Revenue, 323 U.S. J I 0. 315. 65 S.Ct. 289, 89 L.Ed. 260 
(1945)). Nor need it dismiss the case even if the statute or 
limitations lapses before the defect is discovered. id. 
(citing lndrts. Addition As.v'n., 323 U.S.. atJ 15. 65 S.Ct. 189 
(noting that " [w]bere petition timely filed in circuit court 
as required by statute but in wrong venue, case need not be 
dismissed but can be transferred to circuit court with 
proper venue")). 

~ 15 With these principles in mind, we turn to the statute 
before us. It says: 

No court of the state ofWasb.ington 
other than the superior court of 
Thurston county shall have 
jurisdiction over any action or 
proceeding against the commission 
or any member thereof for anything 
done or omitted to be done in or 
arising out of the perfonnance of bis 
or her duties under thls title: 
PROVIDED, That an appeal from 
an adjudicative proceeding 
involving a final decision of the 
commission to deny, suspend, or 
revoke a license shall be governed 
by chapter 34.05 RCW, the 
Administrative Procedure Act. 

*619 RCW 9.46.095. Read as the State would have as read 
it, thls statute violates article rv, section 6 because it would 
limit the original ~isdiction of the superior court bench 

lrn :INP.:d <.Q 2013 Thomson Reuters Na clal!l1 l0 arm kll "'·-·_ever.. e 1 V:l• s ::-



ZOI Gaming Inc. v. State ex rel. Washington State ..• , 1'73 Wash.2d 808 (2012) 

268 P.3d 929 

cow1ty by county. Comra Dougherty, 150 Wash.2d at 317, 
76 P.3d l 183; Shoop, 149 Wasb.2d at 37, 65 P.Jd I 194; 
Young, 149 Wssh.2d at 13<1, 65 P.3d 1192 (finding that 
reading former RCW 4.12.020(3) (1941) to relate to 
jurisdktion reodt:red it unconstitutional). Just as our 
constitution does not allow tbe legislature to decree Lhat 
only King County judges have subject matter jurisdiction 
to hear child dependency actions or that onJy Pend Oreille 
County j udges have subject matter jur isdic..iion to bear 
sbareholder derivative actions, our constitution does not 
allow the legislature to decree that only Tburstou County 
judges have subject matter jurisdiction to hear cases 
involving the Gambling Commjssion. If RCW 9.46.095 
restricts the original jurisdiction of tl1e superior court to 
one county, it is unconstitutional. 

181 ~16 We interpretstatutes as constitutional if we can, and 
here we can. The legislature wanted to have cases 
involving the Gambling Commission heard in Timrstoa 
County. By interpreting the word "shall'" to be pennissive, 
RCW 9.~6.095 relates to venue, not jurisdiction. Cf In re 
Elliou, 74 Wash.2d 600, 607, 446 P.2d 347 ( 1968) 
(interpreting the legislature's use of the tenn "shall" as 
permissive to save the consti tutionality of an otherwise 
w1constitutional statute).t We therefore bold that the 
statute establishes the proper venlle for j udicial review of 
cases involving the Gaming Commission mling in 
Thurston County. 

lnterpreting jurisdiction as venue is precisely what the 
Pierce County Superior Court and the Coun ol' Appea.ls 
did below. ZDI Ga111111g. 15l Wash.Arp. at 801 , 214 
P.3d 9J8: VRP (Dec. I, 2006) at 14 ('·1 do think that 
although lhe word 'jurisdiction- is used here, the 
effective meaning of this is as a venue matter .... I will 
order that the venue be changed to Thurston County."). 

'1f 17 We recognize that here, the superior court was sitting 
in its appellate capacity. Our constitution suggests, and our 
cases have from time to time assumed, that the legislature 
has greater power to sculpt the appellate jurisdiction of the 
individual superior courts. See *620 WASH. CONST. art. 
JV, § 6 ("The superior court .... shall have such appellate 
jw-isdiction in cases arising in justices' and other inferior 
courts in their respective counties as may be prescribed by 
law.''). But whether or not the appellate jurisdiction of the 
superior court can be limited county by county, the s imple 
fact is, original jurisdiction may not be. Werner, 129 
Wash.2d at 494, 918 P.2d 916; Shoop, 149 Wash.2d at 37. 
65 P.3d 1194 (citing WASH. **935 CONST. art. IV,§ 6)_ 
Again, as we held in Shoop, "[t]hat provision precludes 
any subject matter restrictions as among the superior 
courts." 149 Wash.2d al 37, 65 P.3d I 194 (emphasis 
added). 

ARTICLE. II, § 26 
191 '1f 18 TI1e State contends that under article I!, section 26 
of the Washington State Constitution, the legislature has 
the authority to limit trial court jurisdiction to consider 
suits against the State. That provision says that "[t]he 
legislature shall direct by law, in what manner, and in what 
courts, suits may be brought against the state.'' CONST. 
art. II , § 26. It is true that prior to the general legislative 
abolition of sovereign immunity, we held tl1at the 
legislature could limit which county could hear suits 
brought against the State under one of the more limjted 
waivers, and often couched the legislature' s l'ower in 
te1ms of the court's jurisdiction. See, e.g., State e.t rel. 
1nie/icke v. Superior Court. 9 Wash.2J 309, 3 11 -12, 114 
P-2d I 00 l ( 1941 ); State e.x rel. Shvm4ker i·. Superior 
Court, 193 Wash. 465, 469-70, 76 P.2d 306 (1938); State 
ex rel. Pierce County v. Superior Court, 86 Wash. 685, 
688. 151 P. I 08 ( 19 J 5); Nw. & Pac. Hypotheek Bank v 
State, J 8 Wash. 73. 50 P. 586 (1897). The classic 
formulation appears in /'ierce County: 

the state being sovereign, its power 
to control and regulate lhe right of 
suit against it is plenary; it may 
grant tbe right or refuse it as it 
chooses, and when it grants it may 
annex such condition thereto as it 
deems wise, and no person has 
power to question or gainsay the 
conditions annexed. 

Plt!rce County. 86 Wash. at 688, 15 1 P 108; see also 
1'h1e.liclce. 9 Wash.2d at 311-12, 114 P.2d I 00 I ("when a 
suit against the state is commenced in a *621 superior court 
outside Thurston county, suc11 court does not have 
jurisdiction over the action"). 

~ 19 But in 1961, the Washington State Legislature 
aboUshed sovereign immunity. LAWS OF 1961 , ch. 136. § 
1, codified as RCW 4.92.090. We have recognized that in 
so doing, the State intended to repeal all vestiges of the 
shield it had at common law. See Hunter v. N. Mason High 
Sch, 85 Wash.2d 810, 818, 539 P.2d 845 (1975); Cook v 
State, 83 Wash.2d 599, 613 17, 521 P.2d 72...'5. ( 1974) 
(Utter, J., concurring). We noted long ago that the waiver 
of sovereign immunity was "uneqLtivocal" and abolished 
special procedural roadblocks placed in the way of 
claimants against the State. Humer, 85 Wash.2d at 818, 
539 P.2d 845 (striking a 120 day nonclaims statute that 
effectively operated as a statute of Umitations). Simply put, 
the State may not create procedural barriers to access to the 
superior courts favorable to it based upon a claim of 
immunity it has unequivocally waived. 

I ~l :.>o 13 Thorn~nn RA1 let!; Nn r. 111 to nrip1 11 J S .3~J ·.er. :i ~nt WOJ 11.s 6 



ZOI Gaming Inc. v. St.ate ex rel. Washington State •••• 173 Wnh.2d 608 (2012} 

268 P.3d 929 

20 Article II section .,6 and arttde IV, six"tion 6 may be 
hunnonized. ln order to give effect to both, we hold that the 
legislature can sculpt the venue, bul not the subject matter 
or original jurisdiction, of the inc.lividuaJ superior courts in 
this State. 

CASH CARDS AND CASH EQU fVALENTS 

11111 11 11 ~ 2 1 We must decide whether the agency erred in 
~oncluc.ling that the VIP machine violated these repealed 
regulations. We sit in much the same position as the trial 
court, reviewing the agency record directly and showing 
all due deference to that agency. Ingram l. Dep 't oj 
LI n.1111~ l62 Wash.2d 514. 521 22, 173 P.3d 259 
(:!OO"l. As the challenger. LOI Gaming bears the burden of 
demonstrating that the: agency erred. RC\\ 
31 O"i. "i70( l }(a1. We conclude it has met that burden. 

22 ZDI Gaming argues that its cash card is the functional 
equivalent of cash and that " (d]efining cash to *622 
exclude cash equivalents was an abuse of ctiscretion 
because cash equivalents are commonly accepted fonns of 
c.:ash.- Suppl. Br. of Resp'l ut 7. One can find several 
definitions of '·cash" in dictionaries: Black's law 
Dic:lionar}' and The Amerirnn Edition of the Oxford 
Diclionurv. AR at **936 420. Black's defines ·'cash" as·· 1. 
Money o; its equivalent. 2. Currency or coins, negotiable 
checks. and balances in bani.. accoums.'' BLACK'S. supra. 
at 245. According to the ALJ , ''ftlhe American Edition of 
the Oxford Dictionary defines cash as 'money in coins or 
bills, as distinct from checks or orders.' " A R at 420 
(quoting THE OXFORD DICTIONARY AND 
l'llESAURUS, AMERICAN EDITION (1996)). 

23 If a player wins more than $20 on a VlP machine, the 
machine directs the player to an employee of the 
establishment to receive cash, food, drink, or merchandjse, 
and a player who srops playing can similarly immediately 
receive cash or the credits to make purchases from the 
gaming establishment. While we agree with the State that 
an extra step is required to convert the cash card to cash, 
the step is de minimis. Unlike gift certi ficates, ~oupons,, or 
rebates, the player does not have to travel or wait to receive 
cash. Because the cash card can be immediately converted 
into cash currency at the establishment where the pJayer is 
playing, the VIP cash card is functionally equivalent to 

cash. 

24 ZDI Gaming's request fo r attorney fees under RAP 
18.1 is denied as untimely. 

CONCLUSION 

25 Despite its invocation of I.he word "jurisdiction ... we 
find that RC\\ 9 6.010 is a venue statute and that the 
couru below properly considered ZDI Gaming's suit. We 
find that ZDI Gaming has met its burden of showing the 
Gambling Commission erred in concluding that the VIP 
*623 machine violated then-in force regulations. 
Accordingly. we affim1. 

WE CONCUR: CJ IARLES W. JOHNSON. SW~AN 
O\VfNS, and Dh8RA I STEPHENS. Justices, 
RICH \RD 0 S \~l)l~f{S, Justice Pro Tern. 

J.M. JOI rNSON, J. (dissenting). 

26 In contrast to the majority's view, the question in this 
case is whether the Washington State Constitution 
prohibits tJ1e legislature from adopting a statute granting 
exclusive jurisdiction to Thurston County Superior Court 
to review appeals of certain decisions of the Washington 
State Gambling Commission (Commission). RCW 
9 .J6.095 limits rhe superior court's appellate jurisdiction 
rat.her than its original jurisdiction. AdctitionaUy, sovereign 
immunity concerns anach where the state or one of its 
agencies is named as a party to the suit. I would hold that 
RCW 9 46.095 does not violate the grant of general 
j urisdiction to superior courts found in article IV, :\Cction 6 
of the Washington Constitution, and thus dissent. 

ii 27 RCW 9.46.095 expressly grants Thurston County 
Superior Court exclusive j urisdiction to review the 
decisions of the Commission and provides that "[n]o court 
oflhe state of Washington other than the superior court or 
Thurston county shall have jurisdiction over any action or 
proceeding against the [CJommission ... (Emphasis add~d.) 
The Commission denied tJ1c application of ZDI Gaming 
Inc. to distribute its VIP (video interactive display) 
electronic pull tab machine. ZDI Gaming filed in Pierce 
County Superior Court to seek review. 1 would hold that 
Pierce County Superior Court lacked subject matter 
jurisdiction and dismiss the case. 

I. Tlte History of G"mbling in Washington 

28 I begin my analysis by briefly noting the history of 
gambling in Washington State. ln 1889, our state 
constitution *624 originally provided that " (t]he legislature 

dL I IN r' 



ZDI Gaming Inc. v. State ex rel. Washington State .... 173 Wash.2d 608 (2012) 

268 P.3d 929 

shall never authorize any Lottery .. .. " WASH. CONST art. 
JI, § 24 (orig.text) (emphasis added), amended by WASH. 
CONST. amend. 56. In subsequent cases, we interpreted 
the term " lottery'' broadly to encompass virtually any game 
involving " ' prize, chance and consideration'" so long as it 
did not involve ·· ·any substantial degree of skill or 
judgment .... ' " State ex rel. Evuns v. Bild qf' Friends, 41 
Wash.2d 133, 150, 247 P.2d 787 ( 1952) (quoting State v. 
Cams, 158 Or. 122, 132, 74 P.2d 1102 (1938)). 

~ 29 In 1972, the people of the state of Washington 
amended the state constitution to remove this broad and 
absolute prohibition. WASH. CONST. amend. 56. The 
runended article 11. section 24 pennitted lotteries, but only 
where affirmatively approved by a supermajority (i.e., 60 
percent) of tbe legislature. **937 Wash. Const. art. U, § 24. 
In light of this new constitutional authority, tJ1e legislature 
enacted ilie gambling act of 1973, chapter 9.46 RCW. 
Though the gambling act now authorizes some fonns of 
gaming, it expressly recognizes the potential dangers 
presented by legal.ized gambling and requires that all such 
activities be "closely controlled .... " RCW 9.46.010. Within 
this context, I tum to the issue presented. 

2. Subject Matier Jurisdiction over Claims against the 
Comm ission 

~ 30 WitJ1 respect to subject matter jurisdiction, tbe proper 
standard ofreview is de novo. "Whether a court has subject 
matter jurisdiction is a question oflaw reviewed de novo." 
Dougherty v. Dep '1 of Labor & /11dwi. , I 50 Wash.2d 310, 
314, 76 P.3d 1183 (2003) (citing Crosby v. Spokane 
Counry, 137 Wash.2d 296. 301. 971 P.2d 32 ( 1999)). 

,-r 3 1 The term "subject matter jurisdiction" refers to tbe 
power of a court to hear a case. Morrison v. Nat'/ Aust/. 
Bank Ltd., - U.S --, 130 S.Ct. 2869, 2877, 177 
LEd.2d 535 (2010). The subject matter jurisdiction of the 
superior courts comes from either the Washington 
Constitution or *625 the State's legislature. WASH. 
CONST. art. IV, § 6 (establishing jurisdiction of superior 
courts and autJ1orizing jurisdiction "as may be prescribed 
by law"); see also Residents Opposed to Kittitas Turbines 
v. Stale Energy Foc;/ity Sile Evaluation Council, 165 
Wasb.2d 275, 295, 197 P.3d 1153 (2008) (stating that the 
legislature may confer limited appellate review of 
administrative decisions to the superior courts); 
Doughel'ty, 150 Wac;h.2d at 314. 76 P .Jd 1183 (describing 
legislation tl1at grants appellate jurisdiction to the superior 
courts); Beilingham Bay Imp. Co. v. City of New Whatcom, 
20 Wash. 53, 63, 54 P. 774 (holding iliat an act conferring 
appellate review of adm inistralive decisions to the superior 
courts d id not violate the Washington Constitution), a.ff'd 

un reh 'g, 20 Wash. 231, 55 P. 630 ( 1898). The Washington 
Constitution distinguishes between two types of subject 
matter jurisdiction: "original jurisdiction" aud "appellate 
jurisdiction." See WASH CONST. art.lV, § 6. An appeal 
from an administrative agency invokes a superior court's 
appellate jur isdiction. Skinner v. Civil Serv Comm 'n, 168 
Wash.2d 845, 850, 232 P.3d 558 (2010). "Because an 
appeal from an administrative body invokes the superior 
court's appellate jurisdiction, 'aH statutory requirements 
must be met before jurisdiction is properly invoked.' " Jd. 
at 850, 232 P.3d 558 (internal quotation omitted) (quoting 
Fayv. Nw .. lidin~s. Inc .. J 15 Wash.2d 194, 197, 796 P.2<l 
412 (l990)). 

~ 32 ln addition to these broad jurisdictional 
considerations, special sovereign immunity concerns 
attach where the state or one of its agencies is named as a 
party to tbe suit as wel l. The state constitution provides tbat 
"[t]be legislature shalJ direct by law, in what manner, and 
in what courts, suits may be brought against the state." 
WASH. CONST. art. II. ~ 26. " rt may be said without 
question that an action cannot be maintained against the 
state without its consent.... Since the state, as sovereign, 
must give the right to sue, it follows that it can prescribe 
ilie limitations upon that right." 0 'Donoghue v. State. 66 
Wash.2d 787, 789, 405 P.2d 258 ( 1965). As we said 
regarding article LI. section 26: 

*626 "the state being sovereign, its power to control and 
regulate the right of suit against it is plenary; it may 
grant the right or refuse it as it chooses, and when it 
grants it may annex such condition thereto as it deems 
wise, and no person bas power to question or gainsay the 
conditions annexed." 

State ex rel. Shomaker v. Supedor Court, I 93 Wash. 465. 
469 70, 76 P.2d 306 (1938) (quoting State ex rel. Pitirce 
Cormty v. Superior Court, 86 Wash. 685, 688, 151 P. I 08 
tl915)). For these reasons. ifthe State chooses to subject 
itsetfto suit exclusively in Thurston County, tben "when a 
suit against the state is commenced in a superior coart 
outside of Thurston [C]ounty, such court does not have 
jurisdiction over the action." State ex rel. Thielicke v. 
Superior Court, 9 Wash.2d 309. 311- 12, 114 P.2d 1001 
(1941). 

~ 33 Thurston County Superior Cou1t possesses exclusive 
appellate jurisdiction over challenges ro the decisions of 
the Commission. The Washington State gambling act 
provides: 

**938 No court of the state o/Washington other than the 
superior court <~f Thurston county shall have 
jurisdiction over any action or proceeding against the 
commission or any member thereof for anything done or 

,~ .. Nd~ \'-- l _, T11 ir on M.ei.1 ti~ fl.a ,.1a1m lo ono nal u.S ;,;,overnment l/u111.s... 



ZDI Gaming Inc. v. State ex rel. Washington State ... , 113 Wash.2d 608 {2012) 

268 P.3d 929 

omitted to be done in or arising out of the performance 
of his or ber duties under this title: PROVIDED, That an 
appeal from an adjudicative proceeding involving a final 
decision of the commission to deny, suspend, or revoke 
a License sbaU be governed by chapter 34.05 RCW, the 
Administrative Procedure Act. 

RCW 9.46.095 (emphasis added). 1 ZDT Gaming 
challenged the Commission 's action in Pierce County 
Superior Court. "'627 Due to the legislature' s exclusive 
grant of jurisdiction to the superior court of' Thurston 
County, lhe Pien:e County Superior Court lacked s ubject 
matter jurisdiction over ZDI Gaming's appeal of the 
Commission's decision. "When a court lacks subject 
matter jurisdiction, dismissal is the only permissible action 
the court may take." Shoop v. Kil/ifas County, 149 
Wash.2d 29, 35, 65 P.3d 1194 (2003). Because the cow-t 
lacked jurisdiction, dismissal is the appropriate remedy. 

ZDI Gnming also argues that RCW 9.46.095 provides an 
exception to the 11rnrston County jmisdi<-1ional 
requirement for licensing tlecisions. This argument fails. 
FirsL the Commission licenses gaming businesses: it 
does not license gaming equipment. See WAC 
230 14 001 (defining •·ticensees" as "the business 
holding the punch board and pull-tab license."); see also 
WAC 230 14 -{)45( I) (defining the requirements for 
··1aJuthorized pull-tab dispensers"). Second, both the 
superior cout1 and the Court of Appeals applied the 
jurisdictional provision and lreated it as a veuuc 
provision with respect to ZDl Gaming's appeal. The 
cletcnninat-lon of the lower courts also warrants our 
review of this prnvision. 

~ 34 The Court of Appea_Is reached the opposite 
conclusion. It incorrectly rewrote the legislature ' s term 
"jurisdiction" in RCW 9.46.095 to read "venue." ZDI 
Gaming, Inc. v. Wash ${(,1/c Gamblin~ Comm 'n, 151 
Wash.App. 788, 801, 214 P 3tl 938 (2009). In arriving at 
this conclusion, the Court of Appeals relied heavily on this 
court's decisions in Dougherty and Shoop. Id at 801---03. 
214 P.3d 938. The Court of Appeals interpreted Shoop to 
preclude " ·any subject matter [jurisdiction] restrictions as 
among superior courts' " under article rv, section 6 ot' the 
Washington Constitution. Id. at 803, 214 P.3d 93S 
(aJteration in original) (quoting Shoop, 149 Wash.2d at 37. 
65 P.3d 1194). Based on this principle, the court concluded 
that a "constitutional reading'' ofRCW 9.46.095 "suggests 
tl1atthe statute was intended to govern venue .... " id. at 804. 
214 P.3tl 938. 

~ 35 The Court of Appeals misapplied the case law. In 
Dougherty, we held that the filing requirements of a 
different statute, RCW 51.52. l JO, referred to venue and 
not to subject matter jurisdiction. Dougherty, 150 Wash 2d 

ut .3201 76 P .Jd It 83. Dougherty was an injured worker 
who filed an industrial insurance claim for worker's 
compensation. Id. at 313, 76 P.3d 1183. The Department of 
Labor and industries (Department) denied the claim. Id. 
The statute2 at issue in Dougherty directed the claimant to 
file his appeal in his county of residence, the *628 county 
where the injury occurred, or Thurston County. Id at 3 15. 
76 P 3d 1183. Dougherty appealed the Department's 
decision to Skagit County Superior Court, but he did nor 
live in Skagit COLtnty, and the injury did not occur in Skagit 
County. Id at 313, 76 P.3d 1183. The superior court 
granted the Department's motion to dismiss and the Court 
of Appeals affirmed, holding that Skagit County Superior 
Court lacked subject matter jurisdiction. Id at 313- 14. 76 
P.3d 11 83. We reversed tlie Court of Appeals, holding that 
RCW 51 .52.110 refen-ed to venue and that Skagit County 
Superior Court did not lack subject matter jurisdiction over 
**939 Dougherty's appeal. /cl at 320, 76 P.3d l J 83. 
2 The text of the statute at issue in Dougherty reads as 

follows: 
"In cases involving injured workers, an appeal to 
the superior court shall be to the superior court or 
the county of residence of the worker or 
beneficiary, as shown by the [Department of Labor 
and lndustries") records, or to the superior court of 
the county wherein the injury occurred or where 
neither the cmanty of residence nor the county 
wherein the injury occurred are in the state ot 
Washington then the appeal may be directed to the 
superior court for Thurslon county." 

lJu11gT1er(v. TSO Wush.1d al 315, 7o P.Jc.l 1183 
(quoting RCW 5152. I IO). 

if 36 The statute at issue in Doug/wrty did not use either the 
term "jurisdiction" or "venue." Jd at 3 I}, 76 P .3d 1183. 
After engaging iu a conceptual analysis of the doctrines or 
jw-isdiction and venue, we announced a geueral canon of 
stalutory interpretation that "[u]niess mandated by the 
clear langu,age of the swlute, we generally decline to 
interpret a statute's procedural requirements regarding 
location oftilingasjurisdictional." Id. at 317, 76P3dJ183 
(emphasis added). Jn the case at bar, the statute is very 
different. Tb.e statute expressly reserves all "jurisdiction" 
over actions against the Commission to Thurston County 
Superior Court. RCW 9.46.095 (''No court of the state of 
Washington other than the superior court of Thurston 
cow1ty shall bave jurisdiction over any action or 
proceeding against the commission .... " (emphasis added)). 
Because tbe clear language of the statute addresses 
jurisdiction, the interpretive canon announced in 
Dougherty does not apply. 

~ 37 Only a few months prior to the decisjon in Dougherty, 
we decided S/Joop. ln Shoop, we beld that the requirements 

\li?SflaY.iN;e}ct © 2013 Tnomson Reuters No claim I.I) o n J IJ S Government Works 



ZOC Gaming Inc. v. St.ate ex rel. Wa.ahJngton State ... , 113 Wash.2d 608 (2012) 
268 P.3d 929 

of the statute there at issue, former RCW 36.01.050 
( 1997), 1 *629 related only to venue and not to subject 
matter jurisdiction. Shoop. 149 Wash.2d at 37, 65 P_3d 
1194. Shoop brought a personal injury claim against 
several urmamed defendants and Kittitas County. Id al 32, 
65 P.3d 1194. The statute at issue in Shoop directed lhc 
plaintiff to commence her action against Kittitas County in 
either Kiuitas County or one of the two nearest counties. 
Id ar 35. 65 P 3d 1194 n1e two nearest counties were 
Yakima County and Grant County. Id at 32, 65 P.3d 1194. 
Shoop brought her suit in King County. Id Kittitas County 
moved to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. Id 
The superior court granted the motion and the Court of 
Appeals reversed. Id. 11t 32 33, 65 P.3d 1194. We affirmed 
the Court of Appeals, holding that the requirements of 
former RCW 36.0 I .050 ( 1997) relate to venue rather than 
subject matter jurisdiction. Id at 37 38. 65 P.Jd 1194. 

r he text of the S18lUlC at issue in Mwop reads as follO~\ S! 
"(I ) All actions ugainst fill) county may be 
L-ommenced io the superior court of such county, or 
in the superior court of either of the two nearest 
counties .... 
"(2) The dctcnnination of lhc nearest counties is 
measured by the travel Lime between county seals 
using major surface routes, us detcnnined by the 
l)ffice of the administrator for the courts." 

Shoop. 149 Wnsh,2J at 35, 6'i P Jd I I 94 (alteration in 
original) (quoting former RC\\ 16.01 .050 ( 1997)). 

38 rhc primary issue m ~·hoop was our previous holding 
in l ossef '" Slcagit County. 11 tl Wasb.2d 434. 834 P .2d 609 
( 1992), overntled by Shoop v, Kittitas Coun(v, 149 
Wash.2d 29, 65 P.3d 1194 (2003). In Cossel. we held that a 
predecessor statute, former R<.:W 36.01.050 (1963), 
restricted the subject matter jurisdfotion of the superior 
courts. Shoop, 149 Wash.2d at 34, 65 P.3d I 194. In 
Shoop's case, the Court of Appeals distinguished Cosst!l 
on grounds that the 1997 legislative amendments 
transfonned former RC\\ 36.01.050 ( 1997) into a venue 
rnther than a jurisdictional statute. Id at 35. 65 P.3d 1194. 
We disagreed with the Court of Appeals' conclusion U1ar 
the I 997 legislative amendments transformed the stature. 
Id at 36 37 65 P.3d il 94 Nonetheless. we affirmed the 
Court of Appeals. Id. al 37 6'i P.3d 1194 Though Cossel'~ 
jurisdictional reading of RCW 36.01.050 (1997) sti ll 
controlled, such a reading would violate article IV. section 
6 ol the \Vasl1ingto11 Constitution. Id. To avoid lhis 
constitutional problem. we overruled Cossel and construed 
the statute as a restriction on venue *630 rather than 
jurisdiction. Id. In short. Slr(}(){J overruled Cos.Yi'/, 
derennined that a jurisdictional reading of former RC\\ 
36 0 I 050 ( L 997) violated the state constitution. and, for 
that reason, construed the statute as a restriction on venue 
rather than a limit on subject matter jurisdiction. Id 

~ 39 This case does not raise the constitutional issues al 
stake in Shoop. Shoop involved constitutional original 
jurisdiction of a superior court. Id at 32. 65 P .Jd I I '>4. So 
long as the amount in controversy surpasses the 
jurisdictional threshold.. a superior court's original 
jurisdiction comes directJy from the st.ate constin1tion. 
**940 WASH. COl-.Sl art. IV. § 6 ("'The superior court 
shall have original jurisdiction in all cases at law ... and in 
all other cases in which the demand or the value of the 
property in controversy amounts to three thousand dollars 
or as otherwise determined by law .... "). While the 
legislature can restrict the superior court's jurisdiction by 
changing the amount-in-controversy requirement or 
abolisbi11g the substantive law for a particular type of 
common law tort claim (see Dougherty, I 50 Wash.2d at 
314, 76 P.Jd 1183). the legislature cannot otherwise 
restrict the type of ton controversy tl1at a superior coun 
may adjudicate.' 

See l WILFRED J. AIREY, A HISTORY OF l'llE 
CONSTITUTION AND GOVERNMEN'I OF 
WASHINGTON rERRITORY 466 (June 5, 1945) 
(unpublished Ph.D. dissertation, University of 
Washington) (on lite with Washington State Law 
Library) (stating that lhe Consti tutional Convention ol 
I 889 fixed the jurisdiction of the Washington courts and 
that "[tjhe superior courts were always to he open and lo 
have original jurisdiction in practically all types ol 
criminal, civi l, and probate cases if the amount in civil 
actions exceeded $ 100"). 

~ 40 ln contrast to %00µ, the present case involves 
legislatively created appellate jurisdiction of a superior 
court to review an administrative agency decision. 
Appellate jurisdiction over adminisn<ltive decisions is a 
creature of statute. Residents Opposed to Kittitas l•irhinc.\, 
165 Wash.2d at 295. 197 I' 3d 1153 "This c.:ourt has 
consistently held that a right of direct review in superior 
court of an administrative decision invokes the limited 
appellate jurisdktion of the court.'' Id at :94. 197 P.Jd 
1153. The state constirution does not expressly provide for 
!his type of appellate jurisdiction; however, ''(ajllowing 
only limited appellate *631 review over adminjstrativo 
decisions, rather than original or appellate jurisdiction as a 
matter of right, 'serves an important policy purpose in 
protecting the integrity of administrative decisionmaking.' 
'' Id. at 295, 197 P.3d 115'1 (quoting KingCvtmty v. Wash 
S1<1te Boundary' Reviell' Bd, 122 Wash.2d 648. 66&. 860 
P.2d 1024 (1993)). "The legislature may confer such 
limited appellate review by statute." Id. 

41 With re-spect ro the Commission. the legislature 
clearly determined that Thurston County Superior Court 
possesses exclusive jurisdiction. Thus, Pierce County 



ZDI Gaming Inc. v. State ex rel. Washington State ... , 173 Wash.2d 608 (2012) 

268 P.3d 929 

Superior Court lacked subject matter jurisdiction. Shoop 
has defined the remedy: "When a court lacks subject 
matter jurisdiction, dismissal is the only permissible action 
the court may take." 149 Wash.2d al 35, 65 P.3d 1194. 

CONCLUSJON 

1421 wouJd hold lbat, under RCW 9.46.095 as written by 
the legislature, the Thurston County Superior Courl 
possesses exclusive subject matter jurisdiction to review 
Commission orders. Because the Pierce Counly Superior 
Court lacked subject matter jurisdiction, 1 would dismiss 
the case. 

End of Document 

WE CONCUR: MARYE. FAIRHURST, Justice, UliRRY 
L. ALEXANDER, Justice Pro Tern. and BARBARA A. 
MADSEN, Cliief Justice. 

Parallel Citations 

268 P.3d 929 

Q 2013 Thomson Reuters. No claim to ortg1nal U.S. Government Wort<s. 

We~tl;;wNext © 20 13 Thomson Reuters. No claim ta original U.S. Government Works. ·t 1 



Petition from the Public 
Submitted by: John Lowmon, licensed distributor representative 

• Requiring bingo and pull-tab manufacturers to make related products and 
equipment available to all distributors. 

April 2014 - Up fo r Discussion and Possible Filing 

ITEM: 10 

a) New Section WAC 230-16-003 
Bingo and pull-tab manufacturers must make related products an<l equipment available to 
all distributors. 



Proposed New Rule 
WAC 230-16-003 Bingo and puJl-tab manufacturers must make related products 
and equipment available to all distributors. 

April 2014 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
March 20 14 - Study Session 

tfEM 10 (a) on the April 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda, 

Who proposed the new rule? 
John Lowman, licensed distributor representative. 

Proposed Chang~ 
We have received a petition from a licensed distributor representative requesting the Commjssion adopt a 
new rnle to reqllire licensed manufacturers of bingo and pul I-tab products and equipment to make their 
products and equipment available to all rustributors for the same price and terms. The new rule also sets 
out the following: 
• ln the absence of an established line of credit with terms, all bingo and pull-tab products and 

equipment must be made available on a cash basis; and 
• Manufacturers must not dictate purchasing requirements to distributors, such as quantit ies and mix of 

products that must be purchased; and 
• Any denjal by a manufacturer to sell to a distributor must be detailed and provided in writing to the 

distributor with a copy provided to the Commission. 

The distributor representative states in his petition that there are licensed distributors who are unable to 
purchase bingo and pull-tab products from manufacturers. 

Attachments: 
• Proposed new WAC 230-16-003 Bingo and pull-tab manufacn1rers must make related products and 

equipment available to all distributors. 
• Petition for rule change and two-page letter from the petitioner date stamped January 31: 2014. 
• E-mail dated Febmary 20, 2014, from the petitioner requesting that his petition be held over until the 

April 2014 Commission meeting for fi ling. 
• Stakeholder letter dated March 27, 2014. 
• 2007 petition and summary for a new rule from Mr. Lowmon, which was similar to this new petition. 
• Excerpts from Commission meeting minutes when tills topic was previously discussed: June, August 

and September 2005; March, April, June and July 2006; January 2007; September 2009; July 2011. 
History of Rule 

The Commission has discussed rules about manufacturers being required to sell to all distributors 
numerous times since 2005. On October 10, 2005, WAC rules requiring licensed manufacturers to make 
their products and services availabJe to aU licensees without cliscrimination were repealed. The 
Commission repealed the discriminatory pricing restrictions in 2005 because, among other reasons, these 
restrictions did not have a direct impact on gambling. In 2009, staff reported on their follow up to 
comp laints about discriminatory pricing from licensees that were ultimately unfounded. In addition, 
licensees submitted three petitions in 2006, 2007_, and 2011 to reinstate the rules. Each time. the 
Commission denied the petition. 

The three petitions were denied (not fi led for discussion). in part, for the foUowing reasons: 
• Regulating business relationships between distributors and manufacturers is outside the Commission's 

authority and mission; 
• There are other legal remedies that the petitioner could pursue other than rely on Commission m ies, 

such as anti-trust laws; and 
• Before repealing the credit rules in 2005, the Commissioners carefulJy considered ail arguments and 

had given them due consideration over the course of several Commission meetings. 



Impact of the Proposed Change 

The petitioner' s proposal would require manufacturers of bingo and pull -tab products to provide products 
to all distributors for the same price and terms. 

Tn absence of credit, manufacturers would be required to make their products available on a cash basis. 

Manufacturers would not be able to dictate purchasing requirements to distributors and any denial by a 
manufacturer to sell to a distributor must be detailed and provided in writing to the distributor with a copy 
provided to the Commission. 

We are evaluating whether a Small Business Economic Impact Statement is needed. We are seeking 
input from stakeholders to determine whether the rule will impos.e more than minor costs. 

Regulatory Concerns· 
In order for the Commission to fully regulate this area, staff would have to add back provisions that are 
substantially similar to the credit/pricing rules that were repealed in 2005. 

For example, subsection (1) says if there is an agreement between the manufacturer and distributor for 
credit, then the Commission may not monitor the agreement. However, subsection ( 4) says if there is no 
agreement, the Commission will monitor the relationship between manufactw·ers and distributors. 

Resource Impacts 
Before the repeal of the pricing and credit restrictions in October 2005, staff spent an equivalent of . 5 FTE 
enforcing these regulations. When complaints are received, staff would be required to verify the prices 
and terms of products sold to distributors. Staff estimates this would require .5 FTE. 

Policy Considerations 

• The Commission repealed discriminatory pricing restrictions in 2005 because these restrictions did 
not have a direct impact on the gambling activity (See September 2005 Commission meeting minutes, 
whlch are attached). 

• Whether a problem exists that justifies rules that restrict a business' ability to set their own prices and 
make their own decisions as to credit. 

• There are other legal remedies that the petitioner could pursue other than rely on Commission rules, 
such as anti-trust laws. 

• Before repealing the credit rules in 2005, the Commissioners carefully considered all arguments for 
three months, and had given them due consideration. 

Statements Supporting the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Statements Opposing the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Licensees Directly Impacted By the Change 

Manufacturers, distributors and operators of pull-tab and bingo products and equipment. 
Staff Recommendation 

File for further discussion. 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
The petitioner requests the new rule become effective 31 days from filing. 



New Section: 

WAC 230-16-003 Bingo and pull-tab manufacturers must make related products and eg0_ipment 
available to all distributors. 

( I) Manufacturers must make all bingo and pull -tab products and equipment available to all 
distributors for the same price and terms. Credit terms are between U1e manufacturer and 

distributor and are not to be monitored by us. 

(2) In the absence of an established line of credit with terms. all bingo and puJ I-tab products and 

equipment must be made available on a cash basis. 

(3) Manufacntrers must not dictate purchasing requirements to distributors. such as lhe quantity of 

items and product mix to be purchased. 

(4) Any denial by a manufacturer to sell to a distributor must be detailed and provided in writing to 

the distributor with a copy provided to us. 



dAN 3 1 2014 

PETITION FOR ADOPTION, AMENDMEN~= 
OF A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE RULE 

~ Print Form 

In accordance with RCW 34.05.330, the Office of Flnancial Management (OFM} created this form for individuals or groups 
who wish to petition a state agency or Institution of higher education to adopt, amend, or repeal an administrative rule. You 
may use this form to submit your request You also may contact agencies using other formats, such as a letter or email. 

The agency or institution will give full consideration to your petition and will respond to you within 60 days of receiving your 
petition. For more information on the rule petition process, see Chapter 82-05 of the Washington Administra1ive Code (WAC) 
at http:Uap0s.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=82-05. 

CONTACT INFORMATION {please type or print) 

Petltloner's Name John Lowrnon 

Name of Organization ~Ma=Qi;:..c.=.D=.iStri::..:'=-bu::.::t.::..:fn._9 ______________________ __ _ 

Mailing Address 26018 25th Ave N.E. 

City Arlington 

Telephone 360-201-0255 

State WA --- Zip Code 98223 ~=:;,. _______ _ 

Email johnlowmon@gmail.com 

COMPLETING AND SENDING PETITION FORM 

• Check all of the boxes that apply. 

• Provide relevant examples. 

• Include suggested language for a rule, if possible. 

~ ~~~ 
~4' '"~ 

' J, ~o &fJM lo;1 
• Attach additional pages, if needed. %cs 

'11& 
• Send your petition to the agency with authority to adopt or administer the rule. Here is a list of agencies a~G 

their rules coordinators: hltp:llwww.leg.w;;.gov/CodeRevjser/Documents/RClist.htm. 

INFORMATION ON RULE PETITION 

Agency responsible for adopting or administering lhe rule; ~W.:...:S:....:G:....:C::._ ________ _________ _ 

[8] 1. NEW RULE -1 am requesting the agancy to adopt a new rule. 

Access to stamped pulltabs and bi1190 supplies without discimlnation 

~ The subject {or purpose) of this rule is: --- ------------ ---------

A monopoly exist whereby one company controls over 95% of all production and ls withholding 
access to the theie product line with directed discrimintation against our company only. 

[8J The rule is needed because: --- ------------------------=---
All pulltab distributors and manufaturers of pulltabs for the 
State of Washington 

~ The new rule would affect the following people or groups: ------------- -----

PETITION FOR ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, OR REPEAL OF A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE RULE 



John Lowman - Magic Distributing 1/28/2014 

360-201-0255 

Re: Access to pulltab and bingo supplies. 

In the issuance of the license transfer from Universal Manufacturing to Arrow International we 

are now denied the same product line that we had uninterrupted and continuous access to 

without prejudice or discrimination. 

In complaints and requests for implementation of a new rule through the petition process in 

2006, Magic Distributing brought forward ongoing issues of denial of access to pulltabs and 

bingo supplies from Arrow, Trade, Specialty, Bonanza Press and Douglas Press without cause. 

The follow up investigations by WSGC produced no active discovery or no physical evidence to 

support any of the offending manufacturers claims to our complaints. 

We have an honest and ethical company and whole heartedly disagree with the WSGC findings. 

Washington State requires that Pulltab Distributors will only sell pulltab series with their 

approved stamps. When a manufacturer places those stamps on their products and does not 

make them available as an authorized product there is a problem that must be remedied. 

WSGC historically would purport that they are sympathetic and rendered no alternative action 

to support our access to a fair and competitive marketplace. 

Arrow International obtained ownership of Universal Manufacturing in late 2013 under the 

approval of the WSGC. This created .a monopo listic corporation that now controls 95% of the 

available inventory in the State. 

Arrow's practices allow gender discrimination against Magic Distributing whose owner is the 

only female owner of pulltab distributorship in the State of Washington. 

The end user is being harmed as the charities and operators are also being denied the right to 

actively acquire any product they can legally place in play through their distributor of choice. 

As this was unfolding in late 2013 we obtained knowledge of WOW distributor representatives 

entering our accounts, namely Marion Gobatto at the Slo Pitch, and stating that Magic 

Distributing will be out of business by 2014. At t he same time they are distributing flyers of the 

Universal Games products we have always had access to but are now being denied the same. 



Prior to the change in ownership of Universal Manufacturing we had placed our usual order and 

that was purposery held up without notice and subsequently denied to us after the acquisition 

by Arrow with no good cause. 

These strong-arm tactics of Arrow International should not continue or be supported in any 

way. 

Where is the strong-arm of equity and regard for equal treatment for similarly situated 

persons? 

Suggest,ed WAC language could be as follows: 

Manufacturers shall make thei r pulltab and bingo supplies available to all distributors at all 

times without discrimination. 

In the absence of credit terms no product will be withheld for a cash purchase. Credit terms are 

between the distributor and the manufacturer will not be monitored by the commission. 

Manufacturers shall not require burdensome purchases that would deny access to their 

products in a reasonable manner and no distributor should be required to have a purchase 

larger inventory than they could reasonably manage for the sake of the health of the industry. 

Manufactures will not make historical games exclusive to the disadvantage of other 

distributors, namely Big Casino and Firemen's Fund Raiser which have been in existence for 

decades as well as others. 

Detailed denials of access shall be provided to the distributor in writing and a copy shall be 

provided to the commission to have on file. 

Thank you, 

John Lowman 



Newer, Susan (GMB) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Hello Susan -

John Lowmon Uohnlowmon@gmail.com] 
Thursday, February 20, 2014 8:06 AM 
Newer, Susan (GMB) 
Harris, Mark (GMB); coffey, ellie 
Rules Proposal follow up for Magic Distributing 

I recently proposed a new rule regarding requirements of manufacnirers of pulJtabs and bingo supplies to make 
their licensed products available to all distributors. I realize that it would be better to delay the hearing time 
frame into April as opposed to March in order to craft the rule language. 

So the purpose of this email is to let you know that our company would like it to be an April 2014 agenda item 
and not a Mar 2014 agenda item. 

Thank you for your work on this. 

John Lowrnon - Magic Distributing- 360-201-0255 

1 



March 27, 2014 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
"Protect the Pubfic by Emuflng that Gambling fs legal and Honest" 

To: Manufacturers and d istributors of pull-tab and bingo products and equipment 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED NEW RULE to require bingo and puU-tab manufacturers to 
make related products and equipment available to all distributors. 

We have received a petitjon from a licensed di stributo r representative requesting a new rule to 
require manufacturers of bingo and pull-tabs to make their products and equipment available to 
all distributors for the same price and terms. ln the absence of an established line of credit, 
manufacturers would be required to make their products and equipment available on a cash basis 
to distributors. Additionally, manufacturers would be prohibited from dictating purchasing 
requirements to d istributors. such as the quantity of item s and product mix to be purchased. The 
proposed new mle is attached. 

The petition wi ll be Up for Discussion and Possible filing at the Thursday, April 10, 2014, 
Commission meeting. The meeting will be he ld at the Vancouver Heathman Lodge, 7801 NE 
Greenwood Drive. Vancouver, Washington 98662. (360) 254-3 100. Please visit our website 
about one week before the meeting to confirm the date and start time, wbkh will be posted under 
Public Meetings. Commission meetings are open to the public and you are invited to attend. 

We are asking for your input in order to complete a small business economic impact 
statement. Please answer the following questions: 

(1) What kinds of additional professional services will you need to comply with the 
proposed rule(s)? 
(2) ls there an increased cost in equipment, supplies, labor or administrative costs to 
comply wit h the proposed ruJe(s)? 
(3) Will complying with the proposed rule(s) cause your business to lose sales or 
revenues? 
(4) Do you have an estimate for the number of jobs created or lost as a result of 
complying with the rulc(s)'? 
(S) About how many employees do you have? 

Any feedback we have in advance of April 10 will be presented at the April Commission 
meeting. If you are not able to respond by April 10, we would still appreciate your 
response as soon as possible. Send your comments to: 

E-mail: Susan.Newer@wsgc.wa.gov 
FAX: (360) 486-3625 
Ph one.: (360) 486-3466 
Mail: Susan Newer, WSGC, P.O. Box 42400, Olympia WA 98504-2400 

P.O. Box 42400 •Olympia, Woshlngron 98504-2400 • (360) 486·344-0 •TOD (360) 486-3637 •FAX (360) 486-363 J 



New Section: WAC 230-16-003 Bingo and pull-tab manufacturers must make related products 
and equipment available to all distTibutors. 

(1) Manufacturers must make all bingo and pull-tab products and equipment available to 

all distributors for the same price and terms. Credit tenns are between the 
manufacturer and distributor and are not to be monitored by us. 

(2) In the absence of an established line of credit with tenns, all bingo and pull-tab 
products and equipment must be made available on a cash basis. 

(3) Manufacturers must not dictate purchasing requirements to distributors, such the 

quantity of items and product mix to be purchased. 
(4) Any denial bv a manufacturer to sell to a distributor must be detailed and provided in 

writing to the distributor with a copy provided to us. 

P.O. iaJf4%400 rOlympia, Washington 98504·2400 • (360) 486--3440 • TOO (360} 486-3637 •FAX (J60) 4&-3631 



Petition for Rule Cliange 
Requiring Manufacturers to Sen Product to Distributors 

Up for Discussion and Possible Filing January 12, 2007. 

ITEM 17: 

a) New Section WAC 230-12-231 
Access to product, services, and supplies for the public interest. 

.. 
.t.· •':,. - • • • ~' I• ' 

... 



Ru~ Up For Discussion and · ssible Filing 

Proposed New rule 
WAC 230-12-231 

Access to product, services, and supplies for the public interest. 

... - .... .( ·~· , ··.' 

A Petition for Rule Change was submitt~_cl-by John Lowman, a licensed distributor representative, 
requesting that the Commission adopt a new WAC which would requi(e: · 

l. All manufacturers to make their licensed products available to any licensed distributor without 
prejudice. , 

2 . All manufacturers to accept any cash purchase in the absence of credjt terms. 
3. The Commission to indefinitely revoke the license of any manufacturer, d istributor and their 

representatives who interfere with this rule. 

The petitioner requests that manufacturers provide their prodti~t to '1newly" licensed and smaller 
punchboard/pull-tab distributors, which the petitioner indicates some have refused to do. 

Attachments: 
Memo to the Commission outlining their options for handling the petition. 
Letter notifying Mr. Lowmon that his petition will be up for filing at tl1e January 12, 2007, meeting. 
Petition for Rule Change dated November I.3, 2006 . 

.. Proposed new rule WAC 230-12-231 . 
·case Rep_ort concerning a complaint from Mr. Lowmon. 
· Minutes from the June, Au 11st, and September Commission meetin s 
~~-: r~~~~~~~- t¥.~i.r ·_ ·. f • ~*i~~~... ,,.;;;:· _7'.l·;mW:· • -r::7~~·.ri!i;>3""'"~·):.\::'.I: .• ~-""~;;;:r;'~·-;f.(;:;::~mx:'rn\l"7' .. :'£<~_£;1'1l~~~~~;::-~,'.'::';i"?~:::;::~c::;:~~~~i1f=:r., ~,~~~?Ii 
Prior to October 2005, the Commission had a rule which required manufacturers and distributors to offer 
their products and services to all licensees Without discriminat~on. ~ese n iles also prevented 
discriminatory pricing. The intent was to preyent market control. After discussion at tluee Commission 
meetings, the Commission voted to repeal this rule. The agency no longer is involved with pricing or 
determining which licensees manufacturers sell to, as long as the distributors and operators are licensed. 
See attached meeting minutes from the June, August and September Conunission meetings (Blue paper). 

A similar petition was submitted in March 2006, by Magic Distributing, Inc., requesting that 
discriminatory pricing restrictions be reinstated. The discriminatory pricing restrictions required 
manufacturers and distributors to offer their products and services to all licensees without discrimination. 
The petitioner stated, in part, that: 
1) Gambling equipment and related products should be available to aJl lic~nsees without discrimination; 

and · 
i) Reinstating the requirements would prevent a m onopoly, and unfair and deceptive practices. 

f..t that time, the Commission denied the petition, in part, fo r the following reasons: 
·l) Regulating business relationships between distributors and manufacturers is generally outside the 
Commission's mission; 
2) There are other le al remedies that the ·petitioner could ursue other than rely on Commission rules, 



such as anti-trust laws; and 
3) Before repealing the credit rules, the Commissioners carefully considered all arguments, for three 

months, and had given them due consider~tion. 

In June 2006, Special Agents contacted six distributors and two manufacturers to discuss what impact 
eliminating discriminatory pricing mies had on the indus:try. 

Distributors: 
1) Four sajd the rnle changes had no.in1pact on their business. 
2) One said the manufacturers bad reduced the discount they offered and it was also necessary to make 
very large purchases to geffhe discount (they didn't buy that much). They also were against aJ lowing 
credit to operators because operators can barely meet their day-to-day expenses as it is. 
3) One said Bingo King would not sell to him anymore because he's too small. 

Manufacturers: 
I) One said there was no· impact yet. They felt the imp act to manufacturers would be in 4 to 5 years -

there would be long tem1 credit/debt problems. Also felt if the rules changes allowing credit at the 
operator level the operators would over-extend themselves. 

2) One said things were going okay. They were making money now that they didn 't have to out do each 
other wilh a sale .of the week. They have heard grumblings from one smaller distrjbutor - Magic 

-Distri~utipg Didn' t say what the distributor's concerns were). 

The petitioner's proposal would require manufacturers to sell product to distributors regardless of the 
distributor's business practice, credit problems, or bad debt. In the past. credit restriction rules, which 
have been repealed, would have pre.vented the sale of more product to those with past due accounts. 

If the petitioner's request is adopted, it would add a new regulatory requirement and would require the 
commission to indefinitely revoke a manufacturer's license if they don't comply·. 



Deny the petition for the following reasons: 
1) Regulating business relationships betweell: distributors and manufacturers is generally outside the 

Commissi9n-'s mission; 
2) There are other legal remedies that the petitioner could pursue other than rely on Commission 

rules, such as.anti-trust laws; 
3) Before repealing the. credit rules, for three months, the Commissioners carefully considered all 

arguments and had given them due c·onsideratioo; 
4) It would require manufacturers to sell product to distributors regardless of the distributor's 

business practice, credit problems, or bad debt; and , 
5) lt would require the Commission to indefinitely revoke a manufacturer's license if they don't 

com I 

'I 

·' 

.. 

. . 

' . 



New Section: 

WAC 2~0-12-231 Access to produ,ct, services, and supplies for the public interest. 

1. All manufacturers licensed in Washington State shall make their licensed 
products available to any licensed distributor without prejudice. 

2. Any cash purchase shall not be refused in the absence of credit terms. 
3. Any manufacturer, distributor and their representatives who cause interference 

with this rnle will have their license revoked indefinitely. 



Excerpt from June 2005 Commission Meeting Minutes 

13. Credit and Pricing Restrictions; 
W AC 230-12-330, WAC 230-12-340, WAC 230-12-345, WAC 230-12-350, and WAC 
230-12-320: 
Ms. Cass explained that as a matter of background~ Items 13-A through 13-E are part of the 
Commission' s budget reduction plan. 

[tern 13-A is a proposed repealer to WAC 230- 12-330. The rule supports the budget 
reductions by removing pricing restrictions between manufacturers and distributors. The rule 
currently requires manufacturers and distributors to ofter their products and services to all 
licensees without disc1imination. Volume discotmts are allowed but on ly ir they are offered 
to all licensees and base<l on a single sales transaction. The intent of this rule was to prevent 
market control and predatory pricing. These proposed amendments open the market and 
allow the manufacrurers and distributors to !;ell their products for different prices to different 
customers. The agency would no longer be involved with monitoring and following up on 
product pricing and complaints. Staff would also stop conducting discriminatory pricing 
compliance checks. All of the entities would still be required to be licensed and undergo 
thorough background checks before they would be given a gambling license. 

There have been nwnerous manufacttu-es and distributors who have made statements against 
the proposed changes. There are several letters included in tbe agenda packet directed 
towards WAC 230-12-330 and WAC 230-12-340 which allows credit. In general, the 
comments include concerns over market instability, lack of control in the marketplace and 
adverse impacts on smaJl manufacturers and distributors. The small businesses state that they 
will not be able to compete Y-ith the larger businesses and will be forced out of business. 
Staffs current position is that these are not regulatory issues and that it is time for the 
industry to monitor itself regarding these issues. Staff's recommendation is to file for further 
discussion. 

Item 13-B has proposed amendments to WAC 230- 12-340. The rule cw-rently requires 
gambling equipment to be purchased on a cash basis only. One exception is allowed for 
punch-board and pull-tab manufacturers- trade account terms for 60 <lays are alJowed 
between manufacturers and distributors. The rule was originally put into place in the mid 
90's when clistributors incurred substantial debt with manufacturers. ~ fhe current intent oftht! 
rule was to prevent influence between manufacturers, distributors, and operators; and to 
prevent concerns of ir1fluence that they held over each other. Currently manufacturers report 
distributors that are past clue on their accounts to the Commission. If the distributor becomes 
past due on a trade account then the manufacturer notifies all the other manufacturers of the 
past due account and that distributor may only buy merchandise on a cash basis from all 
manufacturers. After the account is brought current, the manufacturers notify staff and other 
manufacturers and the distributor may again make purchases using 60-day te1ms. Staff then 
files the notice and monitors the situation, which creates quite a work load. 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 1of 10 



The proposed rule change allows credit to manufacturers and distributors but continues the 
prohibition of credit to operators. The agency would no longer be involved in the collection 
of debt from the manufacturers. A second amendment, which is under Subsection (4), allows 
operators to use credit cards to purchase, rent, or to lease gambling equipment. It also allows 
operators to have license agreements and to use manufacturer patented or copyrighted trade 
marking on credit. All entities would stiU be required to be licensed and undergo thorough 
background checks to receive a license. Nt.tmerous manufacturers and distributors are in 
opposition to this rule. They aTe concerned in particular that the changes may cause 
distributors to go into debt with manufacturers thus causing influence by a licensee over 
many marketing levels. Staff recommends filing the rule fot further discussion. 

rcommissioner Ludwig questioned why the rnfe was originally adopted. Ms. Cass 
' ~xplaincd that at the time there was on~ case in particular- a djstributor became deeply in 
I' debt to a manufacturer and the manufacturer crune forward with concerns that the distributor 
Lin essence had a hold on them. Commissioner Ludwig asked if it couldn't also create a 

situation that if a business operator was in jeopardy, that he might have to cut corners enou 
or do something else to try to solve the problem. Ms. Cass believed Commissioner Ludwig 
was refcn'ing to a previous situation where the manufacnirer and distributor colluded to 
determine where the winning tickets were; she didn' t believe these rules would impact that 
scenario. Commissioner Ludwig questioned how many staff FTEs it would take to monitor 
the present rule i f the proposals were not adopted. Ms. Cass responded that it currently takes 
one-third to one-half of a full time position. Commissioner Ludwig questioned if we have 
adopted n risk of further indebtedness. Ms. Cass advised that the staff believes the industry 
has matured, that they arc better able to monitor themselves, and there are also other Federal 
regulations that they need to comply with. Commissioner Ludwig questioned if they didn't 
monitor themselves properly, would the' Commission be right back with the same problem 
again. Ms. Cass affinned there is that potcrltial; however she noted there arc other ways of 
addressing the regulatory issues through the rules against hidden ownership and clauses about 
substantial interest holders which go directly to the influence over the company. 

Commissioner Ellis advised that he was curious as to how extensive the problems were on 
price discrimination issues and undercover discounting or trade wars; and how they were 
dealt with, either by staff/ field investigations or through information gathering and liling 
complaints. Ms. Cass tesponded that al this point it is mainly information gathering and 
follow-up when staff doesn't get the pricing list. If staff is in the field and discovers 
differences, then reports are written. She advised that staff was not aware of any price war or 
credit issues in the recent past. 

Ms. Cass stated that Item 13-C is a proposed repealer to WAC 230-12-345 which requires 
gambling equipment such as card tables to be used or rented on a cash basis. This rule was 
adopted in 1997, when house-banked card rooms were authorized to mirror WAC 230-12-
340 which prohibits credit between manufacturers, distributors, and operators. The rule 
currently requires manufacturers and distributors to report the delinquent accounts to the 
Commission. When staff receives notice of a delinquent account they investigate to 
determine if the operator solicited credit and staff takes appropriate action. Staff ensures the 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page2of10 



payments have been made or makes sUTe the operator stops using the game and the 
manufacturer must remove the game from the operators' premises in a timely manner under 
the current rule. The proposed amendment removes the restrictions on leases, rentals and 
licensed games, and the agency would no lo nger be involved in the collection of debt of the 
distributors for the manufacturers. AU of the entities would still be required to be licensed 
and to undergo a thorough background check prior to receiving their license. Ms. Cass noted 
the Commission received. several statements, but, not necessarily against this particular rule, 
and staff recommends filing this rule for 11.irther discussion. 

Item 13-D contains proposed amendments to WAC 230-12 - 350. This rnle sets out the 
guidelines for operators and distributors lhal use checks to purchase gambling equipment, 
supplies aod services. Disti·ibutors and manufacturers must follow specific procedures if they 
receive a dishonored check for gambling equjpment; including reporting it to the 
Commission. At that poinl it would be considered credit. Once staff receives the notice of 
the dishonored check, staff investigates and follows up. The rule change removes restrictions 
on how distributors and manufacturers handle dishonored checks and removes agency staff 
from the process. ft also allows operators and distributors to use credit cards to make these 
purchases. Ms. Cass pointed out that it does not allow players to use credit cards to purchase 
something in a gambling activity. Staff recommends fi ling the rule for discussion. 

Item 13-E is a repeal proposal to WAC 23 0-12-320. This rule limits the amounts of gifts 
that manufacturers, distributors, and operators may offer as incentives to purchase their 
goods. The original intent was to prevent the influence over one another in the different 
marketing levels and to limit the amount of gifts the differen.t levels may offer to each other. 
The rules were intended lo control the marketplace activities and the competition. The 
proposed amendment removes the restri ctions related to gifts and promotional items between 
the manufocturers, distributors, and operators, and the Commission would no longer be 
involved in how companies reward buyers with theiT merchandise. Staff recommends filing 
the rule fo r forther ruscussion .. 

Commissioner EUis read~lressed the limitations and credit issue, both in the context of the 
purchase of equipment and the rental and leasing of equipment. Since advanced cash 
payments are required by U1e rules, he inqwred whether the Commission received complaints 
or inquiries from small operators who were concerned about their ability to acquire 
equipment because of the need to pay cash up front. Ms. Cass advised she was not aware of 
any and noted Lbat mosl or the calls received relate to the distributor wanting their money. 
She explained it is not the Gambling Comm ission' s role to help people collect their money 
from each other. 

There were no adrutional comments and Cb a ir Niemi called for public comments. 

Mary Magnuson representing the National Association of Fund Rrusing Ticket 
ManufaclL1rers (an association of five manufacturers of primarily Bingo, pull-tab, punch
board, and Bingo related supplies), asked tbe Commission to oppose stafrs recommendation 
to repeal WAC 230-1 2-330 the prohibition against discriminatory pricing, and WAC 230-12-

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 3of10 



340 the rul e that prohibits credit. She repo1ied that she sent letters and some rule proposals 
with possible compromise language for Commission staf'£'Rules Team consideration and 
further discussion with the industry in an effort to reach a mutual agreement on addressing 
the staff's concerns while at the same time not deregulating this portion of the i11dustry. Ms. 
Magnuson noted the discriminatory pricing rule has been in effect since "day one"- to 
prohibit cli scriminatory pricing and require manufacturers to sell to aJl distributors in the 
marketplace on the same terms. Since that rule has been in place, other states have also used 
the rule to solve problems they experienced within their jurisdictions. 

Ms. Magnuson explained the credit rule was adopted in 1997 after considerable discussion 
with Commission staff. In approximately 1996 then Director Ben Bishop decided that a 
credit rule was necessary. The purpose of the credit rule Wt\S not to force the Commission 
not to become a collection agency for manufacturers or distributors, the purpose related to the 
$5.5 million in outstanding debt between dis ttibutors and manufacturers in rhe state. TI1at 
didn't happen overnight, it happened over a period of lime; however, the debt load tbat was 
held by the distributors in Washington was paralyzing. There were distributors that would 
never be able to pay that debt under the circwustances thal they found themselves in. There 
were manufacturers who would not collect, and there were manufacturers and distributors 
who perhaps were engaging in discussions and irrfluencing activities that were inappropriate. 
TI1e rule prohibited the extension of credit bet ween manufacturers and distributors for any 
period to exceed 60 days, and it aJso allowed distributors who found themselves (there were 
27) in financial debt- in difficulty with debt situations to actually turn that debt into 
promissory notes payable to the manufacturers over a period of five years. That was nor 
permitted until the mle was adopted. During those five years, the debt was paid, people 
became cun ent, and the debt between the manufactmers and the distributors has essentially 
been eliminated. Ms. Magnuson emphasized that is not to say that the industry has matured 
and there isn't a problem. She believed there isn't a problem because the rule is in place and 
the rule works very well lo prohil>it that kind of a problem. She suggested that hud the rule 
not been adopted, there would have been many distributors that would have had to file 
bankruptcy or go out of business because they never would have been able to pay the debt 
they owed to the manufacturers. 

Ms. Magnuson agreed there are other rules out there such as the Federal Anti-Trust Statute 
that prohibits various types of collusion~ price fixing, and all sorts of other things. However, 
she believed the problem in the area of credit is that companies cannot monitor credit. It's a 
vio lation of the L\nti-Trust Bill. She explained that if she was a manufacturer, and a 
distributor owed her a million dollars, she couldn 't tell anyone- they are not allowed to 
monitor that credit. She clarified she could cut the distributor off as a manufactw·cr; but, the 
distributor could go to the next manufacturer and obtain substantial credit and if they get cut 
off, they move on to the third and fourth manufacturer, etc., until they find themselves in a 
situation where they can never pay the debt. Manufacturers cannot communicate to one 
another that a certajn di stributor has debt issues. The only way around the Anti-Trnst Law is 
if a stat-.; agency prohibits the credit and allows the communication to occur. 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4of 10 



Ms. Magnuson addressed the proposed rnle noting the manufacturers attempted to keep the 
credit restrictions in place, tried to keep some sense of pricing control in place, and tried to 
take Commission staff almost completely out of the process. They acknowledged the 
Commission·s budget resource problems, and she advised they were trying to come up with a 
better solution that keeps the regulation in place, and, at the same time accepts the fact that 
the Commission needed to cut some people while facing difficult budgeting issues. The 
pricing proposal wouJd require the manufact1irers to file a price llst once a year. That may be 
done at any time; however it was suggested this be coordinated with the re-licensing or 
renewal application; and the manufacturers would be required to sell at the price list as filed 
with the Commission. Ms. Magnuson affirmed there are opportunities for some deviations 
such as a sale, and the manufacturer would s imply file that information with the Commission. 

Ms. Magnuson rep01ied the rule proposal she is offering is essentially from the Missouri and 
is also used in Minnesota. Both states have indicated the rule works very well and takes little 
to no stafling needs. They get the report, they look at the report, and in Minnesota the reports 
are filed for public information. Any company that files a report may look at all the other 
reports filed by the other companies, which essentially creates self policing. "Everyone 
knows what the prices are ~opposed to be, and if there is any deviation, they know they will 
be reported; therefore, everyone stays in line because they know they are being watched by 
their competitors." The pricing rule would uol apply to distributors, except there would be a 
requirement that if a distributor wanted to sell at below cost, they wouJd have to notify the 
Commission in advance. 

ln relation to the credit rule proposal, Ms. Magnuson advised the manufacturers u·ied to 
simplify the rule in such a way to take the Commission out of the pr<;>cess entirely. The 
proposal prohibits credit between manufacturers and distributors, and it incorporates the 
leasing changes and the crcait card purchases the Commission has proposed. Credit could be 
extended for only 60 days. and the rule only applies to manufacturers of conswnable goods
pull-tabs, bingo, and paper bingo supplies-and takes the Commission staff entirely out of 
the notification loop. Jr a distributor is delinquent on a payment, the·manufactmer simply 
sends out a notice to all the manufacturers and dist1ibutors notifying them of such, and that 
from a "go forward basis" aJl items should be so ld on a casll only basis w1til that distributor 
pays their debts. The onJy way that the Commission would get involved would be if someone 
didn't abide by the notification and a complaint was issued. The Commission would then 
decide whether to follow up with an enforcement action or not. Ms. Magnuso11 reported that 
she facilitated a survey of the association members, and in the last five years there have been 
no more than a handful of notices issued, which she' believed wa'l because of the fact that the 
credit rule exists and it works. She didn' t anticipate many notices would be filed. 

Ms. Magnuson emphasized that the rule proposals were not curved in stone- tl1e 
manufacturers are open to further discussion with the staff to reach a compromise where the 
staffing needs can be met without a complete deregulation of the W ACs to the point where 
distributors, manufacturers, and the public being hurt. Ms. Magnuson reported she represents 
large and small manufacturers-they believe if staff's proposal goes forward and the rnles are 
repealed in their entirety , the industry will go from a very controlled market to a very 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 5of10 



deregulated market. There will be considerable fallout for the small companies because they 
are not going to be able to compete with the larger companies and they will find it harder to 
get products at the prices that the big guys can get their products at, and ultimately they may 
not be able to remain in business. The larger manufacttffers and the larger distributors wi ll be 
fine. 

Commissioner Ellis advised that be had a number of questipns relating to some of the state 
and federal anti-trust implications. He affirmed this was pure anti-trust theory the 
Commission would be dealing with in terms of the cnrrent regulatory authority the 
Commission is exercising and the possibility of the Commission withdrawing from that area. 
Ile noted that if the Commission decided to authorize the publication of the rule proposals it 
would allow for a comment period and an environment to more satisfactorily and orderly 
address the issues in the context of the commentary. 

Dan McCoy from McCoy's Distributing, a mid-sized company which distributes pull-tabs 
and Bingo supplies in eastern Washington, also opposed the repeal of the pricing and credit 
rules, and pointed out the tremendous positive impact these rules have had on the industry. 
Mr. McCoy presented a solution that would keep the rules in p lace and allow the 
Commission to eliminate the position that has overseen lbe enforcement of this rules 
package. He addressed two letters included in the agenda packet making reference to the 
destabilizing affoct repealing these rules would likely have on the industry based on past 
history. He noted the Washington State Gambling Commission has required the 
manufacturers and distributors to engage in above-board, fair, and equitable marketing 
practices. This has with very few exceptions been working exceptionally well when 
compared to the multitude of problems before the rules were enacted. His letter also 
specifically describeq how the relationships wi ll change between the three marketing levels; 
it will likely result in fewer manufacturers, fewer distributors, fewer operators, fewer players, 
and ultimately less money would be generated from fees which the Gambling Commission 
uses in order to operate. He emphasized all this would be bad for the health of this industry. 

Mr. McCoy suggested that the distributors and manufaclurers fax their price sheets and sales 
announcements to a file clerk at the Gambling Commission. He believed it was a better ideu 
for the distributors and manufacturers robe responsible for posting their information on the 
Gambling Commission website themselves. The field agents would then be able to look at 
the infonn ation when they m.:eded it, and il would require little Commission oversight with 
the exception of the initial set up. 

Mr. Mc Coy distributed copies of the September 1997 Commission meeting minutes where 
he highlighted quotes leading up to the adoption of the pricing and credit rnles. He. stressed 
the importru1ce of considering why the Commission implemented the rules in the first place. 
He believed the reasons are still relevant today and are critical to the continued success and 
stability of the industry. He quoted Commissioner McLaughlin asking about the different 
gaming industry products and any other products; and then Director Miller's response that 
"the Commission and staff were here to regulate an industry that needs regulation because it 
is gambling and because historically it is one that nee<ls these controls." He aJso noted that 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commiss ion Meeting Minutes 
Page 6of 10 



Director Miller stated " the largest pull-tab market in the world is Washington State ... and 
the whole packet is designed to preserve and protect the market and the distribution process." 
Director Miller then explained that "in l 973, rules were passed to keep corrnption out. It was 
designed to keep business on a cash basis primarily with no control. It was not a free market 
system because gambling is not a free market. It is a highly regulated industry, probably the 
m ost highly regulated industry, some would say next to nuclear waste." Mr. McCoy quoted 
then Director Miller as saying that "over the years, and as this market has grown, distiibutors 
and the operators continue to have their cash basis. For the most part distributors and 
rnanufocturers have been on a cash basis. Four or five years ago, some disnibutors asked the 
Commission to do away with this rule. They Lhought it was too hard to enforce from a staff 
prospecti vc. Staff proposed to the Commission that they would let them get the best price 
they could with the market control and the Commission out of it because it was too costly for 
the agency to regulate. The Commission said they wanted to maintain control but did not 
want them to have free re ign and a few people controlling the market." Director Miller went 
on to discuss the impact the credit problems bas had on the industry and how to fix it. Mr. 
McCoy continued wilh quote #3 from then Director Miller noting that "over the last two and 
a half years they have gone from a no debt system to $5 or $6 million dollar debt by a few. 
Enforcement was not the problem. It happened quickly and they were caught off guard. As 
the complaints began to mount, it became a major issue over the last two years. They have 
been inundated with requests to help fix it because it was broken. This is the biggest market 
in the country but the pricing system in Washi11gton State is archaic ... the whole package 
was an attempt to clean up the problem and establish some good business practices... He 
continued by saying ''he thought part of their mission was beyond the player, it was also the 
public at large which he thinks includes the whole process of distribution, if the distribution 
process is hanned, ultimately he thinks the p layer could be hannecl, the operator, the 
charities, the tavern owners, it stru.is there in lhe sale of pull:-tabs." 

Mr. McCoy quoted then Director Miller as saying '~he Commission has many different roles 
and many hats to play. The time has come to fix the problem or to change policy and do 
away with it and allow the free market sysLem to dictate it. There is no middle ground. 
These rules give the staff guidelines that are fair. They give Lhe distributor guidelines; they 
give the manufacturer gu idelines to know what they ca11 and cannot do in Washington State 
anymore. This is where tl1cy are facing a hard time, if it is so broadly written. He believes it 
is heal.thier to have 25 distributors sell the product than Lhrec or four." Mr. McCoy then 
noted that Assistant Attorney General Jon McCoy pointed out that there is a speci fie statutory 
authority which gives the Commission authority to regulate in this area, and there was an 
argument being made that it was beyond the Commission 's authority and it would be beyond 
the Commission 's responsibility to regulate business practices. RCW 94.6.070 specifically 
states that it is the responsibility of the Commission to regulate and establish the type, scope, 
and the manner of co11ducti11g activities auth01ize<l under this chapter, whicb includes the sale 
of gambling equipment, and material. 

Mr. McCoy echoed that sentiment, noting the bottom line is that the Commission does have 
the authMity and the reason, and after several more pages o f discussion, a vote was taken 
unanimously passing and adopting the rules package. He rei terated that vote was taken eight 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 7 of JO 



years ago and since then there have been virtually no debt problems or complaints about 
predatory marketing. Mr. McCoy felt this was a very successful policy. He suggested the 
industry is in exceptionally good health from a regulatory perspective, which means the 
Commission could eUminate the position; however, still keep the rules package in tact ~d 
establish a section on the Commission's website allowing the manufacturers/distributors to 
post their pricing and sales notices and credit violations for all to see. This would give the 
field agents the audit information they need should a complaint arise. Mr. McCoy urged the 
Commission to deny the filing of these proposals and pursue the alternative solutions to the 
problem. Commissioner Ludwig thanked Mr. McCoy for the historical research on the rule. 

Walt Antoncicb from Tri~Focus Enterprises advised he has had a distributor license since 
1988. He reiterated the scenarios described by Ms. Magnuson and Mr. McCoy would 
absolutely be true. There will be fewer manufacturers active in the state, fewer distributors 
able to compete in this state, and ultimately the control will be in the hands of a few, which 
he believed would ultimately allow for questionable business practices. He also believed that 
as other deregulations have occwTed (communications, phone companies, cable companies, 
and trucking), ultimately prices have risen because when control gets in the hands of a few, 
prices increase. As prices increase there will be a falling out of more operators. Mr. 
Antoncich commented that the pull-tab imlustry has been declining and operators have been 
falli ng out due to competition and other factors which will increase resulting in a Joss ofta.x 
and revenue. 

Addressing the budgetary issue, Mr. Antoocich noted that if the rule was considered to be an 
unjust or ineffective rule he might understand; however, to take a rule that has existed and 
been crafted over a period of time and say for budgetary reasons that it is no longer needed 
seemed to be a little bit short sighted. He also noted the gambling tax revenue that is 
collected goes to the cities and the counties, a portion of which is targeted for enforcement 
and monitoring of gambling authorities by the local police departments. Mr. Antoncich 
advised that he conducted a poll of approximately 20 of bis accounts and reporLed that not 
one of them from about six or seven different counties have seen any law enforcement 
representatives do any monitoring of their gambling activities. He suggested the 
Commission explore the fact that all these j'misdictions are collecting gambling tax dollars 
und appear to have abrogated their responsibility to do anything for those dollars. which m:iy 
be a source of relief for Lhe Gambling Commission. 

Jay Gerow from ZDI Distributing advised that he has been a distributor for 23 years, and 
unlike everyone else, he was in favor of the repeal of this section. Over that time period lhe 
industry has gone up and down. He affinned that at one point U1ere were 27 distributors that 
were facing bankruptcy and his company was not one of them due to good business practices. 
He emphasized lhat he would like to sec a fair market. He noted thal in terms of size, his 
company is probably rated number three or four. He also noted his license fee is based on the 
volume of business they conduct and therefore he bas to pay a higher volume than a small 
distributor. However, he affirmed that right now, the small _distributor is unable to buy 
products at the same price as the larger distributors, which he believed was contradictory to 
wbat lhe rules are about. He reiterated that be would l.ike to see a rair market- noting it's 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 8of10 



very restricted and doesn't allow for a lot of marketing. Mr. Gerow advised the.market was 
very stagnant and he felt that prut of the decline was attributed to the fact that distributors 
weren ' t allowed to do any creative marketing~ and they would like to see something change. 
Commissioner EIJis addressed the restrictions on credit and verified if distributors were able 
toge~ bank financing to the extent Lhey were needed. Mr. Gerow affirmed: however, he 
reported his company has never needed to do so. Commissioner E llis verified that as a 
practical matter, that area was not an important concern. MJ. Gerow affirmed. 

Wendy Windsor from Estrada Distributing advised their company has held a gambling 
license since 1990, and they were similar in size to ZDI. She aJso addressed the "huge debt" 
incurred by everyone in 1977, and affirmed their company took advantage of the extended 
terms. She reported t})at at the time the new rules were put in place, there was a company 
that was s trong enough to repay the debt and her company dicln 't have to go with the five
year note and subsequently continued to operate at a profit. Ms. Windsor emphasized that by 
keeping the 60-day terms in place, it forces the distributors to continue to operate at a profit 
without allowing people to get their financing out of wl)ack. She encouraged rule adoption 
relative to the 60-day terms. 

Ms. Cass clarified stafrs rule proposal would allow distributors lo have trade accounts; 
licensees would simply need to enforce it themselves. Secondly, she affirmed that while the 
rules package came forward as a result of budget considerations, staff's first focus related to 
regulatory business concerns. After reviewing the industry submitted proposals, staff did not 
seen any regulatory concerns, and they noted the proposals didn't necessarily suve the staff a 
lot of work because they still require the Conunission to collect the information, which puts 
the agency back the position of needing to enforce the rules. Ms. Cass affirmed this is 
Commission policy decision. Commissioner Ludwig commented that the Commission staff 
members are the greatest staff of any state agency currently in existence. However, he noted 
this rules package appeared on the agenda sometime ago (wiU1in the past eighl to twelve 
months) and he felt the Commission sent a message when they declined lo fil e this mle at that 
time. Ms. Cass affirmed that rules addressed merchandise on pull-tab games and staff 
attempted to deregulate the requirements, which was when the Comn:Ussion dee! ined the 
packet. 

Commissioner Orr made a motion seconded by Commissioner Ellis to file WAC 230-12-
330, WAC 230-12-340. WAC 230-12-345, WAC 230-12-350, and WAC 230- 12-320 for 
further discussion. 

Commissioner Ludwig expressed his opposition to doing away with the current rules and 
advised he was very concerned about the proposed rule. Ile emphasized that he wasn't 
opposed to discussing the issue further, and he would support U1e motion for further 
discussion, with the affirmation that be still didn•t like the rule. Ile noted the Commission 
has heard from people reporting that the current rule is wor~ing, at a cost to lhc Commission 
of one fhird of a position. He emphasized his opinion that if the rnle kept any part of the 
gambling industry clean and properly conttolled, that was not too big of a price to pay. 

Excerpl from June 2005 
Commission Mceling Minutes 
Page 9of10 



Commissioner E llis commented that he very clearly sees the pros and the cons that have 
been presented orally and in the written materials and that he was impressed with the 
significance of these issues having spent many years in anti-trust enforcement. However, he 
advised he was uncomfortable mak'ing a decision today wh~ther or not to consider the rules 
further given the fact that this industry does need a lot more regulatjon than most American 
industries. He advised he would support the motion to file in order to have further 
opportunities to consider the considerations and their impacts. 

Commissioner Parker advised he was prepared lo vote for further discussion; however, he 
also had reservations based on the testimony that has been presented, and he looked forward 
to being enlightened further in terms of the possible impacts of the rule changes. 
Commissioner Pa1·kcr didn't think this was simply a budgeta.Iy issue and affirmed there is a 
policy consideration that underlines the rules package. He reported that ho wasn't sure 
whether or not he would personal ly support or oppose that policy until further discussion is 
conducted. 

Chair Njemi affim1ed that to a ce11ain extent she agreed with the comments expressed by 
each of the commissioners. She reminded the audience the next rneeling isn't scheduled until 
August and in the interim, she would like to have the staff get the relative information to the 
commissioners weU in advance of the August meeting in order to be better prepared, rather 
·than one week before the meeting. Commissioner Ellis thought it would be useful to seek 
input on the proposed repeal and the alternative rules from the Anti-Trust Division of the 
Attorney General's Ofiice. Mr. Acker man affirmed and suggested that the Commission not 
approach the Anti-Trust Division until after the next meeting in an effort to sec what further 
information has been developed and then detcnnine if that would be a productive thing to do. 
He thought it would be beneficial for the Anti-Trust Di vision to have the issues crystallized 
as much as possible so they know what it is thal they are commenting on since they may not 
be familiar with this particular segment of the gambling industry. Commissioner Ellis 
concurred. Vote taken; the motion passed unanimously. 

Dfrcctor Day agreed the rules package needs continued discussion. Ile clarified this was 
part of an overall budget reduction package, and essentially staff put togctJ1er a package that 
reduced approximately 21 f TEs through a combined process. Staff deliberated and looked at 
where the agency needed to focus the resources whjle continuing to do the best job with 
fewer funds. Ile stated that he appreciated the significant discussion regarding the history for 
this rule pack.age; however, he emphasized Lhc Commission is designed to regulate gambling 
activities in the interest of public protection. He was confident the continued discussion will 
be interesting, and he assured the commissioners information will be provided as it is 
gathered providing additional lead time for their review. 

Excerpt from June 2005 
Commjssion Meeting Minutes 
Page 10 of I 0 



Excerpt from Augus t 2005 Commission M eeting Minutes 

14. P r esentation - Ch anges in the Regulatory P r ogram fo r Manufacturers and Distributors 
Deputy Director Nuoam ~tker reported that at the June Commission Meeting. the 
Commissioners requested some history on the credit and pricing rule. In 2004. Gambling 
Commission staff prepared a proposed budget for the fiscal period 2005 to 2007. Revenue 
for that period, combined with our available working capital, did not support an agency of 
188 FTEs. so the proposed budget reduced FTEs to 169. Part of the agency's ability to 
reduce the FTEs came with the suggestion that staff bring before the Commission some 
regulatory changes. The changes to the credit and pricing rules are part of that package. 
Previous testimony has claimed that the proposals before the Commission wil I deregulate the 
indusn·y, but staff think that is an exaggeration. Many of current rules concerning prohibition 
of price fixing and exclusive supply agreements will remain. 

Effective January 1978, an addition was made lo WAC 230-12-200 that said that 
manufacturers and distribut01s shall make such items avai lable to all persons without. 
discrimination with the same price and tenns. That rule was in effect for 20 years until 1998. 
In the early 1990s a mm1ber of m<mufactw·crs had allowed distributors to become millions of 
dollars in debt. The manufactw:ers felt that WAC 230-12-200 which requ ired them to sell al 
the same prices and terms to everyone caused the problem. In the e~Jy 1990s, when the 
situation first surfaced, staff suggested that the agency get out of the business of rcguJating 
prices. ·me agency received a lot of reaction from the industry, and negotiations were held 
with the manufacturers and distributors and lhe mJes that are before the Commission are 
what cume out in 1998. Manufacturers and distributors have testified that repealing the rule 
would result in the loss of small operations and the central izarion of product availability. Ms. 
Magnuson claimed. in her letter of April 4. 2005, that large distributors would command 
bargain-based p1icing. 

Discounts for large purchases are already authorized in the rules and are pretty much indusLry 
practice. Many of the smal l distributors wi ll buy their products from larger distributors. who 
have been able to get the volume discounts, because the small distributor can get the product 
cheaper thru1 from the inanufacturer An0tJ1er concern was that competition would be 
adversely impacted. In 2004, the manufacturers market was about $22 million. Of the nine 
licensed manufacrurers, tlu-ce control 80 percent of the market and rwo control 68 percent of 
the market. Deputy Director Nunamaker did not see how the market would change that 
much. l.J1 1990, there were 15 licensed manufacturers; currently there are nine. In 2004, four 
distributors controlled 66 percent of the .sules for about $35 million. The lop two distributors 
have contro lled 40 percent of the market s ince the 1970s. 

Another concern expressed was that the current mle forces a separation between 
manufacturers and distributors and requires they both be independent and financi ally 
responsible. Without credit restrictions, it would be possihlc for manufacturers to effectively 
own a distributor. Although the agency docs not have rules regardi'.ng marketing levels, there 
is an exception that manufacturers may also be licensed as distributors. The gambling market 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Pagelof8 



has changed drastically over the past 15 years. In 1996, punchboards and pull-tabs 
comprised 36 percenl of the total market. Today they comprise 9 percent. While the 
agency's motivation to consider these changes began based on budget considerations, staff 
would not have moved this change fo rward if they believed these changes would cause 
regulatory problems. Commissioner Niemi commented that the written reports received 
through lhe Internet were very good. Commissioner E llis agreed and added that it appeared J 
these changes would not affect the Commission 's regulatory abilities regarding its core 
mission. 1 le asked i f there were any advantages as far as the Commission staff were 
concerned in keeping organized crime out of gamblmg in this state by having smaller rather 
than larger businesses. Deputy Director Nunamaker responded that staff attempt to address 
those issues fundamentally within ouI licensing program. Whether they are a large business, 
small business, sole proprietorship, or a major publicly-funded corporation, it is more a factor 
of how much investigation is involved1 and the agency does a thorough job investigating. 
These rules cover transactions between licensed entities that staff have aJready determined to 
be properly nm and properly owned. The agency also an ongoing program of inspection and 
financiaJ review of e.xisting licensees, and staff look for hidden ownership and infiltrntion or 
organized crime. Commissioner Ellis said he appreciated the extent of the financial analysis 
staff conduct with regard to licensees. Iris question addresses the argument being made that 
the Commission should preserve these rules in order to protect small clistributors and small 
businesses from being crushed by larger competitors. Commissioner Ellis questioned 
whether it is a legitimate function of the Commission give preference to either small 
businesses or large businesses so long as they are otherwise complying with the law. He 
added that his question really concerns whether it will be useful to the Commission in 
conducting its legitimate activities, such as analyzing the books of licensees to make sure that 
money is being properly accounted for and not being fed to organized crime. Deputy 
Director Nunamaker replied Lhat the agency prefers to consider aJI our licensees as 
legitimate; although we not only trust bul also verify. 

Chair Ludwig called for public comment. 

Roger Ff'anke, Director of Governing Affairs for Urban Intcmational Association of FlJ.Ild 
Raising Ticket Manufacturers (NAFTM) and President for the Association of l•\md Raising 
Ticket Manufactures testj lied that NAFTM opposes the prnposed changes and supports the 
status quo. Mr. Franke emphasized the good relationship NAFTM has with the distributors 
and with the activities of this industry and the state, and stated it would like to maintain it. 

Mr. Franke addressed some points Assistant Director Cally Cass raised in her· response to 
the supporting letter that he sent. The .first point was the goal ofthe Cornmjs:-;ion in doing 
business as simply as possible. Tne manufacturers or distributors send in notices to the State, 
which get .filed and responded to when issues come up. It could not be much more simple 
than that. TI1c next point concerned distributors having millions of dollars of debt. In 
conflict with that, Ms. Cass wrote that the distributors felt lhcy were onJy using the toots and 
terms provided by the manufacturers in a prudent business fashion. Mr. Franke asked 
whether staff thought distributors going in debt for over $5 million was a prudent business 
fashion. If so, then Mr. Franke differed with staff. It appears what is important is to 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page2of8 



maintain the status quo so the people involved in this business get a fair shake from 
everybody. Another point Ms. Cass raised was that it was not the duty of the Commission to 
regulate debt, to wlUch Mr. Franke agreed except that regulating the debt is a by-product or 
safeguard of these rules. Ms. Cass wrote that the current market is very good, better thru1 it 
was before. Mr. Frruik:e agreed that was true, but what is happening is the pie is getting 
larger bi1t the charitable grunbling.p01tion is not Ms. Cass wrote that less than a handful of 
notices of delinquencies were sent to manufacturers over the paSt couple of years. That 
seems to indicate that businesses are doing better at self-regulation in controlling the debt. 
Ms. Cass went on to say that it seemed logical these business practices would continue 
without the rule. Mr. Franke asked if it was logical that business practices would continue 
without the rule. then why did these business practices occur in the first place. ·n1at doesn't 
appear logical. Mr. Franke added that Ms. Cass suggested no one from the manufacturer or 
distributor licensees have been able to suggest how this would be a negative. Mr. Fraiik:e 
asked why they have to prove it is a negative. If staff wcu1t to check on negatives, look in the 
history books. What happened before this rule was enacted? If that is the condition the 
agency is asking for in the fµture. that is the condition it is going to get. 

M r . Franke expressed his concern about the .5 FTE and stated it did not appear to be a 
financial or staffing burden, that it would cost less than $30,000 in an annual budget of over 
$I 4 million. Mr. Franke pointed out lo the ex officio members an organization called the 
National Council of Legislators from Gaming States that ha_s model legislation for charitable 
gambling. Mr. Franke declared that within that model legislation is the exact program that 
the state of Washington has. 

• Commissioner E llis asked why the Commissioners should be concerned about competition 
in this industry. Competition is the lifeblood of the American economy and free market 
competition is normally how markets regulate themselves . The Commission has important 
functions to play in keeping out organjzed crime. but when discussing the pricing and credit 
practices that arc the issue in these rules, why should the Commission be concerned about 
more competition. Mr. Franke referred back to a statement made by Deputy Director 
Nunamaker at a previous commission meeting regarding not controlling widget operators. 
Mr. Franke said that if widgets were being manufactured, fingerprints and background 
checks on lhe administration would not be done .. Mr. Frruik:e stressed that gambling is a 
different kind of activity that requires oversight. Commissioner Ellis responded that the 
Commission should be concerned if organized crime is operating yottr company from the 
back room, but why should yom·prices be a concern of the Commission. 
Mr. Franke replied that it is the natural drive of a business person lo do everything possible, 
within the limits, to compete and succeed. If there are no limits, who knows what happens. 
Mr. Franke said he did not like what happened before there were limits, and pointed out that 
if the rule was removed) someone would come forward in a few years and petition for 
unother rule on pricing. When that happens, NAFTM will be there to support that rule. 

Commissioner Ellis said Mr Franke and his organization were very helpful in providing a 
legal analysis by Mark Jacobson, from Lindquist and Vennum, concerning the legal and anti 
trust implications with repealing these ru les. Commiss.ioner Ellis questioned how far the 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Conunission Meeting Minutes 
Pagc3of8 



analysis was carried by Mr. Jacobson, who emphasized that manufacturers and distributors 
could be subject to anti-trnst litigation for exchanging price or credit information if these 
mles were to be repealed. Commissioner Ellis commented that there is nothing in the 
existing rnles that would allow manufacn1:1·ers anti-trust inununity for exchanging price 
information among themselves. The price information must be filed with the Commission, 
who retains that information as proprietary and confidential. Commissioner El.lis asked Mr. 
Franke if he thought it operated differently and that the existing rules would provide 
immunity for exchanges of price infonnation b.etween manufacturers. Under existing rules, 
manufacturers are required to notify the Commission and other manufacturers when a 
distributor is in default under the trade credit. Mr. Jacobson referenced in his letter the 
immunity that is provided for exchanges of information about credit te1ms. Commissioner 
Ell is did not think current rules allow manufacturers to provide the actual credit terms being 
used with their distributors, as opposed to simply the fact of a default. Commissioner Ell is 
requested clarification, possibly at the next meeting, on how the immunity works and if it is 
being done ilifferently than Commissioner Ellis thought. Mr. Franke said he would contact 
Commissioner Ellis to find out specifically what information be wanted and provide a 
response at the next meeting. 

Monty Harmon, Harmon Consulting, reported that he was a former Gambling Conunission 
agent and verified that testing on credit pricing is a complicated and Lime-consuming process. 
Mr. Harmon stated that pricing information on file with the Commission is actually available 
through public disclosure. Mr. Harmon testified that he was in support of this pa11icular rnJe 
~hange. 

Gary Marray, Recreational Gaming Association (RGA) testified that the RGJ\ supports the 
intcrytions of all these rules. The free market society provides the ability to run a business 
like a business should be run. Mr. Murray commented that it wasn't the Gambling 
Commission's joh tu protect a business from going into debt, if that is part of their business 
plan. or to save them from their bad business practices. Buying something on 30~day net is 
standard business practice. I laving different offerings of the same product from different 
dislributors and knowing that business owners were going to get the best deal for Lbeir 
business is sound business practice. Competition creates a healthy industry. Mr. Murray 
addressed WAC 230-12-340, stating it was his understanding that the credit restriction was 
going to be an eliminated, but that restriction is still in U1c rule. Next, under capital leases the 
word " licensed" was eliminated. Was the Commission's intent to get involved in regulating 
the leases for non-gambling equipment or non-Ecensed manufacturers who provide 
equipment? Mr. Murray thought the Commfasion was only interested in licensed 
manufacturers that are providing licensed gaming equipment to licensed operarors and urged 
the Commission to look at the logic behind eliminating the word " licensed.'' 

Dan McCoy, McCoy's Distributing, reported that McCoy's Distributing is a mid-size 
company that distributes puJ I-tabs and bingo supplies in Eastern Washington. Mr. McCoy 
voict:d bis opposition to the proposed repeal of the pricing and credit rules. Ile referenced 
two letlers he had written describing the benefits and importanee of these rules to the health 
and well being of' the pull-tab industry and the chaos that eould ensue in the pull-tab industry 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4of8 



if these rules are repealed. Mr. McCoy said· that the Commission is not being asked to 
regulate or collect debt~ just to leave the credit rules as they are. As required, when 
distributors are out of compliance, the manufacturers communicate with each other. It is in 
their best interest to do so, and they will continue so Jong as the rules in place. Mr. McCoy 
quoled from the response lelter he received from staff: ''It is unclear to say that the cunent 
market would become unstable if we withdraw the rules." Mr. McCoy expressed his concern 
about the poten tial of repeating the past. Mr. McCoy commented that the percentage of the 
industry focused on pull-tab sales has declined 35 percent. ft is an undeniable fact that 
increased competition for the gaming dollar has caused a decrease in pull-tab sales. Equally 
undeniable is the fact that the top agency revenue source is generated by pull-tabs. Which fol' 
2005 was nearly double that of card rooms. Dedicating 1/3 to 1 /2 of an FTE to 
manufacturers and distributors of pull-tabs, does not seem excessive. Mr. McCoy asserted 
that changing the pricing mies would force smaJl businesses out ofbL1siness, und pointed out 
that the only two voices for distributors speaking in fovor of de-regulation were two of the 
largest four distributors in 01is state. ft is only these four distributors, out of the twenty, that 
are likely to benefit from de-regulation at the expense of smaller dfatributors. Mr. McCoy 
reminded the Conunission of their discussion on the health of the industry as it relates to 
anticipated revenue for the Commission budget. It is important for everyone to be working 
in a healthy industry. These pricing and credit rnles have been critical in creating and 
maintaining a healthy pull-tab industry in Washington State. Regardless of what is 
happening in other states, this system is working exceptionally well in Washington. It is 
truly remarkable that we have s'uch an orderly, problem free manufacturing and dis1Tibution 
network at a cost of only 1/3 to 1/2 of an FTE. Mr. McCoy urged the Commission to reject 
the proposal to rcpeaJ these rules. 

Walt Aotoncich, Tri-Focus Enterprises, has held a distributors license since 1988. Mr. 
Antoncicb testified in opposi tion to the change in these mies. He commented that there is no 
comparison betWeen the gambling industry and other industries in the state. Mr. Anloncich 
stated that competition in this industry is very important because of the tax dollars genernted 
by pull-tabs. [le argued that dollar-for-dollar, pull-tabs equal or exceed any tax dollars 
gcnetated for this state. Mr. Antoncich agreed with Deputy Director tvµ. Nunamaker's 
figures showing two of the 1nanufa.cn1rcrs controlling 66 percent orthe market al present and 
four distributors at 65 percent. Mr. Antoncich felt that if this proposal is passed1 there would 
be two manufacturers in the 90 percent range and four distributors in the 90% range. 
Operators have no contrnl over the cost of Lheir product, so when the cost goes up, there will 
bt: a decrease in licensees, which will cause a decrease in gambling lax to loeal municipalities 
and a decrease in sales and B&O caxes to 01e states, in addition lo loss of jobs. Mr. 
Antoncich argued that even today there are different credit limits existing for different 
distributors. Mr. Antoncich refened to a statement made by Mr. McCoy that two distributor 
licensees testified that deregulation wouJd help them, but what was not said was that nine 
other distributor licensees wrote or endorsed letters against deregulation_ Wbat could happen 
if this m1e is removed is an increased cost to the operators, fewer licensees, less tax dollars, 
and possible co1lusion and manipulation that do not now exist. Mr. Antoncich stated that his 
speculations arc based on fact, on history of other states, and on hfa 20-years of experience in 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 8 



this industry. He did not think all the ramifications were thoroughly considered by the staff 
of the Gambling Commission. 

Commissioner Ellis asked Mr. Antoncich if his comments were about the increased 
competition in the pull-tab industry or the overall gambling industry. Mr. Antoncich 
responded his comments were directed strictly to pull-tabs and punchboards. Commissioner 
Ellis asked whether Mr. Antoncich thought a manufacture and a djstributm of all pull-tabs 
and all punchbo.ardswould have their ability to increase prices at the consumer level be 
constrained by the availabiliiy of consun1ers to go to a casino and have access to pull-tabs 
and punch boards. Commissioner Ellis thought Mr. Antoncich's focus was rather limited as to 
what constitutes the industry? Mr. Antoncich agreed that he was testifying for the pricing 
from manufactmer, distributor, and the free market pricing in pull-tabs and punchboards. He 
added that the pull-tab and punchboard business is the most recreational form of gambling 
and that it helps support many small businesses, like taverns, lounges, restaurants, and 
bowling alleys. The custorneFs in their business that play $5 or $10 a day are usually-not 
going to leave if that business loses that industry,-that business just loses that particular sale. 
Commissioner Ellis wondered at what point, if the industry raised the cost of a pull-tab or a 
punch board chance to $I 0 or $15, the consumer investing $5 in pull-tabs or punchboards 
would decide it would be more fun to spend the money at a tribal casino or card room. Mr. 
Antoncich responded that the operators of the pull-tabs would be the ones that would give it 
up, not lbe players. He asked Commissioner Ellis if he was familiar with the tax structure of 
the gambling tax this year on pu ll-tabs? Commissioner Ellis replied that he was familiar with 
the revenue figures alluded to earlier between pull-tabs and punchboards vs. card rooms. Mr. 
Antoncich explained that a 5 percent tax on pull-tab gross eu<ls up being closer to a 20 
percent tax for the operator because of the definition of gross receipts. It's an arbitrary 
definjtion and the margins for the-operators are pretty small. They are nol making the money 
reflected by the figures. Commissioner Ellis commented it was another reason the 
monopolistic manufacturers and distributors were going to be limited on increasing prices to 
the consumer. They are not only going lo potentiall y lose the consumer, but they may also 
lose the operator. By raising prices, they would be cutting their own throats, which is a part 
of our free-market economy and how we en sum the prices remain competitive at the 
consumer level. 

Chair L udwig called a recess at 11 :25 a.m. and reconvened the public meeting at 11 :35 a.01. 
Commissioner Niemi stepped out during the break. 

Lane Gourley, Arrow International, representing one of U1e two large manufacturers lhat Mr. 
Antoncich referred to. The Com.mjssion should understand that both of those manufacturers 
have locations in Washington State and provide more variety than any of the other 
manufacturers. Mr. Gourley addressed the opportunity for the four large distributors to buy 
at volume pricing or volume discounts, which current rules allow so long as they are on one 
invoice and prutl with one check. He also explained that some smaller distributors are able to 
buy their product at Iess cost from another d istributor as opposed to the' manufacturer because 
they can pick one game at a time off the shelf and make the delivery. Those smaller 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 6of8 



distributors are typically paying 5 to 10 percent more than if they bought the full case from a 
manufacturer. 

15. Credit and Pricing Restrictions: 
WAC 230-12-330, WAC 230-12-340, WAC 230-12-345, WAC 230-12-350, and WAC 
230-12-320 
Deputy Director Nunamaker reponed that these rules are up for discussion. WA Cs 230-
12-330, 12-345 and 12-320 are for repeal and WACs 230-12-340 and 12-350 are to be 
amended. Deputy Director Nunamaker pointed out that there had been much discussion on 
these ru]es and they would be on the agenda again next month an<.1 would have an answer to 
the question raised about public disclosure of pricing information. Deputy Director 
Nunamaker explained that the .5 FTE included only the duties of the coordinator's position 
and did not include the tjme spent by d1e agency's special agents in checking the 
manufacturer aJ1d distributor price lists and the comparisons. There is considerably more 
time involved 1han the .5 FTE. Deputy Director Nunamaker explained that the portion of the 
rule prohibiting division of territories remains on the books. The rules being revised in this 
package primarily involve the terms of sales between rnanufactw-crs and distributors. Chair 
Ludwig ac;ked about the suggestion Mr. McCoy had made regarding the coordinator position 
and a simpler way to get information to the involve<.1 agency's field agents involved. Deputy 
Director Nunamaker explained that when information is submitted, staff have to do more 
than just file it. So, even if the mechanics of how the agent receives the information is 
simplified, the work still needs to be done, like verifying the information is accurate, 
checking price lists, and the condition of sales. Somu distributors have multiple price lists 
and different conditions of sale, which have different prices .. 

Lan.e Gourley, Arrow lntemational, asked which marketing level was under discussion, 
between manufacturer and distributor or between the distributor and the operator. Deputy 
Director Nunamuker replied that the rnle covers both. Mr. Gourley said if the rule covers 
both then how lhc rule is vvritten needs to be looked at. Most of the people te.stifying are 
arguing that this is going to cause upheaval in the industry, which it will. Mr. Gourley was 
not sw:e bow staff decided Lhese revisions woLLld not cause any change or instability in the 
industry because there will be major changes from the manufacturer/distributor side. Mr. 
Gourley suggested staff take another look at the issues between the operator and the 
cListributor and how those rules can ~e mudc more efficient. · He felt the issues need to be 
divided and added that it would probably address some of the concerns of the curd room amt 
recreational clubs. Mr. Gourley reported thal Arrow International has not had a price 
increase in the nine years he has been there. They have had to do things more e!1iciently, 
have discounted their products, and created more games than ever before. Mr. Gourley 
explained that the assumption that the rules protect the manufacturers from distributor debts 
is misplaced. IJ distributors cannot pay their bill to the manufacturer, they are not going to 
do it, and the cun-ent mle does not stop that. What the rule does is keep the honest distributor 
and lhe competitive nantre of the industry in place. Mr. Gourley took exception to the 
opinion that this was just a minor change, and he hoped that with alJ the testimony heard, the 
Commission understood that this is a big deal that requires more thought and another look at 
the approach being taken. 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Commission Mccling Minutes 
Page 7of8 



Gary M urray, Recreation Gaming Association, stated that WAC 230-12-230 allows credit 
for distributors and manufacturers but now excludes the operators from being .allowed to pay 
on credit. The licensed gaming operators are not afforded the same conditions as licensed 
manufacturers, distributors, or charities. It is only the commercial operators lhat have been 
left out of being allowed to buy their Jjcenscd gaming equipment on credit. 

Chair L adwig closed the public testimony, adding that this will be on the agenda again next 
month for testimony and final action 

Excerpt from August 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 8of8 



Excer pt from September 2005 Commission M eeting Minutes 

11. Credit and P r icing Restrictions: 
WAC 230-12-330, WAC 230-12-340, WAC 230-12-345, WAC 230-12-350, and WAC 
230-12-320: 
Deputy Director Nunamaker reported that Item 11 contains a series of five rules involving 
credit and p1icing restriction!ii, and they are all up for final action. He noted at the August 
Commission ml!eting there were three questions that were asked of the staff. ·n1e first 
question was whether the price lists filed by manufactw·ers and distributors were subject to 
the Public Disclosure Act. Mr. Nunamaker affirmed the lists are subject 10 public disclosure. 
The second question related to the Model State Charitable Gaming Act. Mr. Nunamaker 
explained the Model State Charitable Gaming Act was written by a subcommittee oftbe 
National Council of Legislators from Gaming States. The drafting began in 1997, and took 
approximately a year and a half. [n Section 8, the Act suggests that manufacturers report 
delinquent accounts to the ··department'' after 60-days, whi le distributors should report after 
30-days. Nothing in the Act calls for any further action such as stopping sales to delinquenl 
account holders. The third question was raised by a licensee who asked why the Commission 
did not address the issue of credit between distributors and operators in the amendment to the 
current rule. Mr. Nunamaker explained the rule amendments and repeals were suggested to 
allow for a reduction in staff workload as a result of the budget reduction package. 
Distributor to operator credit bas been prohibited since inception of regulated gambling in 
Washington) and staff saw no budgetary impact in changing 'the rule. 

Commissione1· Ellis referenced the Model State Charitable Act and questioned whether there 
was anything in the Act that ttddressed how firms may price their products. Mr. Nunamaker 
responded Urnt it does not address that issue at all. 

Mr. ' unamaker addressed WAC 230-12-330, noting the rule currently requires providing 
services and products to all licensees without discrimination, and lhat they shall be offered 
for the same price and terms. The current rule contains a number of exceptions including 
marketing level , short tem1 price reductions (such as sales), delivery location differences, 
discounts based on transaction size and payment methods, and minimum purchasing 
requirements. The staffis recommending repeal of this rule. 

WAC 230-12-340 currently requires that gambling equipment must be purchased on a cash 
basis. The current rule contains a number of exceptions from manufacturer or distributor 
sales. They may utilize trade accow1ts for Bingo cards and supplies provided payment is 
made no later than 30-days. The amended rule would allow operators to use credit cards to 
make pmchases and it i·emoves provisions for manufacttLrers reporting of delinquent 
distributor accounts. ft also allows a rental of non-consumable gambling equipment to 
licensed operators. Staff is recommending adoption. 

WAC 230-12-345 is a repealer. Sections of this rule have been moved to WAC230-12-340 
where Lhe principal issues arc covered. One item that was not included in the prior rule was 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Pagel of 9 



the provision for notification to the Commission should Jease or rental payments become 
delinq uent, and subsequent action by the Commission to commence administrative action 
based on receipt of credit. Tl1e agency will no 1011ger be involved in the collection of lease or 
rental payments. Staff is recommending repeal of this rule. 

Mr. Nunamaker advised that WAC 230-12-320 current] y prohibits gifts, free merchandise, 
service credit, or rebates by manufacturers and distributors. It prohibits the solicitation of 
gifts by operators. It provides a number of exceptions such as: promotiona l merchandise with 
nominal value, promotional merchandise to di stributors, and nominal value to operators that 
are $1 S in value. It provides exceptions for promotionaJ merchanruse to diso·ibutors of $25 
per item and $1,000 cumulative to distributor employees, and it provides exceptions for 
entertainment of distributors to a collective value of $ 1,000. There are exceptions for trips to 
manufacturer faci lities and exceptions for loaning equipment for displaying and Lraining 
purposes. The repeal removes the current restrictions. Staff is recommending repeal of the 
rule. 

WAC 230-12-350 stipulates how checks will be used to purchase gambling equipment 
services, and how these checks are handled to make sure that they are not utilized in a way of 
unauthorized crerut. The amendment would allow the use of credit cards as a use of payment 
an<l keeps the Commission from handling dishonored checks. Staff is recommending 
adoption of WAC 230-12-350. Chair Ludwig called for public comments. 

Dan McCoy, McCoy's Distributing, again voiced his opposition to the proposed repeal of 
the pricing and credit rules. I lis opposition to the proposal has been documented in letters 
and testimony over the last several months. He noted he has spoken about the 32-year history 
while the fi ve rules have been in place and the impressive results the credit policy had in 
stabi lizing an ·'out of control" industry. He also spoke about the importance of the pull-tab 
industry being the biggest revenue source to U1e Commission budget. The pull-tab industry 
has also offered overwhelming opposition to the proposed rule change. 

Mr. McCoy acknowledged there has been some support for this proposal for budgetary and 
phi losophical reasons. With regard to the staff's budgetary concerns; he noted a so lution has 
been presented which effectively takes Conunission staff out of any involvement and 
dissemination of the price li sl and the sales notices. That solution involves manufacturers 
and distributors being responsible for the promotion of their own price lists and saJes notices 
on the Commission web-site. Field agents would then able to independently access the 
information as needed. With regard to U1e an1ount of time a.gents dedicate to the auditing of 
mauufaclurers and distributors, Mr. McCoy explained that when the casino industry became a 
huge and necessary focus of Lime for staff several years ago. the amount of time dedicated to 
the auditing of the pulJ-tab industry correspondingly dimjnishcd. He agreed that. random and 
occasional spot checks are all that is needed. He affumed the industry has become 
accustomed to living with the rnles~ self regulating, and voluntari ly complying; however, he 
emphas ir.ed it will only work as long as lhc rules are in place. 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of9 



With regard to the phi losophical reasons for repealing these rules and why the prices shouJd 
be a concern to the Commission, M r. M cCoy believed the answer related to the fact that the 
Commission made it their concern 32 years ago when the rules were created. He noted 
licensees that have been involved in the ind us try for 32 years have made investments and 
business decisions based on these rules. McCoy's Distributing was one of the first ·· 
companies granted a license in 1973 and they have made the business decision to remain a 
regional mid-sized company based on the fact that the rules package made for a level playing 
field for big and sma.11 companies. Mr. McCoy emphasized his opinion that it would be 
highly inappropriate and very unfair to make such an industry changing rule given the 
successful history with the rules and rbe opposition which has stated the rules have created, 
not hindered. a highly competitive industry. He noted tJrnt Washington State is reported to 
have the lowest price per game of any state in the country; a direct result of the competitive 
nature of the industry. Mr. McCoy believed if the budgetary concerns could be solved 
effectively and the mies kept intact with a practical solution for all, 1he Commission 
shouldn·t be opposed to maintaining a set of rules that have had a beneficial impact on the 
industry. 

Responding to the casino industry suppo11 of the proposed repeal of the pricing and credit 
rules, Mr. McCoy offered an alternative resolution. He reported the original rules of l 973 
and in I 997 were written specifically for the pull-tab and bingo industry. The mini casino 
industry was not yet established. While the rules .have served lhe clistributors and 
manufacturers with exceptional results, he acknowledged they have caused the casino 
industry to be burdened with rules that don't work well for them. Mr. McCoy proposed that 
staff add language at the start of the pricing and credit WA Cs (230-12-320, 330, 340, 345 and 
350) to make the rules punch board/pul l--t1:1b and bingo specific. The pull-tab industry would 
be able to keep the much-desired rules in place, and the casino industry would be free to do 
business in a way more applicable to their needs. The proposal would aJso free Commission 
staff from collecting and maintaining price lists and sales notices, and would significantly 
reduce the time spent auditing manufacturers and distributors. Mr. McCoy respectfully asked 
the Commission to reject the proposed rules package repeal and to request that Commission 
staffhoJd industry meetings to pursue the recommendations presented as well as other 
possibilities. 

Cbair Ludwig asked l\11r. McCoy when he addressed ''casinos" whether he wa-; refening to 
card rooms or tribal casinos. Mr. McCoy responded strictly the mini-casinos/cnr<l rooms. 
Chair Ludwig inquired ii' Mr. McCoy' s suggestion was to reject the proposal and wait for 
some other proposal. Mr. McCoy affirmed. 

Commissioner Ellis asked Mr. McCoy if he has discussed his proposal to retain the rules ~s 
being applied strictly to the pull-tab, punchboard, and bingo industry with Commission stafI. 
Mr. McCoy advised he was new to the process; be wrote letters, attended the meetings, and 
provitled testimony when he became aware of the proposal and the potential impacts to the 
industry. Mr. McCoy explained that be formu lated bis proposal within the last ten days and 
therefore hasn't discussed the proposal with Commission staff. Commissioner Ellis said he 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 oC9 



appreciated Mr. McCoy's efforts in gat11ering rhe historical background material and 
information regarding the rules and the insights relating to the effect of the proposed changes. 

Commissioner Parker asked staff to comment on Mr. McCoy's proposal. Deputy Director 
Nunamaker didn 't believe it would be as simple of a fix as presented. The rules apply 
across tJ1e board for manufacturers and dfatributors; they are not only for pull-tabs. He 
suggested that segregating the rule to only make it applicable to pull-tabs would eliminate the 
regulation- then there would have to be new rules to regulate the rest of the industry. While 
the process would be more complicated than suggested, he affinned it certainly was a 
direction lhat could be pw·sued if desired. 

Director Day noted the basic question raised in U1is process hasn't been answered; whether 
the rules that are subject for amendment and repeal fit in with what the Commission is 
responsible to do within its mission and statutory foundation. Staff reached the conclusion it 
did not and subsequently proposed the rules package identifying the rules that could be 
eliminated. Director Day clarified this particular rule package represents five rules that either 
are being amended or reduced faisly significantly- the five ruJes require enforcement by this 
agency from agents, all the way through the specific designated half time position that was 
previously addressed. Director Day cautioned against focusing on just the half-time 
position. Ile recalled the budget decisions necessary reqnired the Commission to reduce over 
20 positions. In that process) staff identified the exact mission of this agency and tried to 
balance the budget/staff reductions against eliminating tasks and holding the line on fee 
increase:;. The budget reduction decisions resulted in a conservative budget based on a 
concept of eliminatfog tasks in the rnles that may not be directly connected to the statutory 
responsibility of the Commission. 

Chair Ludwig inquired how many staff members were involved j11st in credit and pricing 
responsibilities. Director D~•Y identified a coordinator that spent half her time specifically 
on that issue. However, he emphasized that each one of these rules is enforced by 
Commission agents: therefore that responsibility is spread U1roughout the entire agent staff. 
Ile noted the Comwission has not increased agent staff-. agent staffing has been reduced 
under the concept of trying to hold the line on some of these activities. Every rule adds 
another duty. and the question remains whether these rules are something the Commission 
wants the agents to enforce. 

Dan McCoy rebutted Mr. Nunamaker's comments suggesting a rewrite of additional rules 
for the casino industry. He commented that staff is proposing repealing three-fifths of the 
rules as it is- leaving the casino industry without a guideline anyway. He again suggested 
that by leaving the pull-tab industry as is and specifying specifically that the rules apply to 
the punch-board/puJl-tab bingo industry only wouldn' t aiJect what the future would have 
been for the casino industry. In response to the time spent in the field enforcing the rules 
pertaining to punch boards, pull-tabs, and bingo, Mr. McCoy reiterated that it is significantly 
less than it ever was-Commission staff have been doing this a long time, they know what 
they arc looking for, they know the random aspecls regarding audits, and they are very 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4of9 



efficient. l le emphasized that agents do not need to spend great amounts of time enforcing 
what he considered to be extremely effective rules that have served the industry well. 

Mary Magnuson representing the National Association of Fund Raising T icket 
Manufacturers (NAFTM)'affinned she also provided letters over the course of the last couple 
o f years. She thanked the Commission for their thoughtful and careful consideration on this 
issue. She noted that NAFTM is most concerned about two particuJar rules-they do not 
oppose the amendment to allow operators to pmchase products via credit card, and they don 't 
oppose the Recreational Gaming Association's desire to see the rules not apply to them. Ms. 
Magnuson agreed that if the rules simply were applied to manufacturers of pull-tab and bingo 
paper (which they were designed to apply to initially). that would be fine. f nan Ap1il 2005 
letter, Ms. Magnuson advised she attached some proposed amendments. Those amendments 
were written in such a way that the rules would have only applied lo manufaclurers of 
consumable gambling products- the producers of bingo paper and pull-tabs. Ms. Magnuson 
noted that during the May Study Session. a conversation \.Vas held about whether there may 
be a difterencc between consumable and fixed products, and whether or not it may make 
sense to apply these rnles to consumables rather than fixed products. She explained that 
when there is a fixed product such as tables and chairs and th ings like that, if somebody is m 
defauJt in payment, that product can be recovered-or at least a portion of what one may be 
entitled to-that would not be the case in consumables because the product is typically gone. 
Ms. Magnuson suggested one option might be to simply apply these rules to lhe consumable 
product vs. the Oxed product, or possibly apply them simply to pull-tab anc} bingo 
manufacturers, which again would be the people the rules were designed to apply to in the 
first instance. 

With respect to the staff time, Ms. Magnuson advised that NAFTM is very open and always 
has been very open to work with the staff to try to figure out how the rules might be able to 
stay in place with a very min imal impact 011 the staff. NATFM continues to be willing to sit 
down and try to work something out. Ms. Magnuson said she understood that the 
Commission has budgetary concerns. She a cknowledged every state has issues with 
budgetary concerns and everyone is grappling with fewer dollars to do m.ore work. She 
p ledged that NAFTM would do whatever U1ey could to acc<?mmodatc those concerns and she 
hoped to min.imi;,e the staff'~ concerns while at the same time keeping the rules in place. 

Ms. Magnuson agreed the philosophical issues were more djfficull. She stated it is the 
Commission' s business to control or at least regulate and oversee prices and credit. As 
previously stated, some of these rules have been in dfoct for 32-years and people have bui lt 
their businesses on the existing playing field. There has been control over who Jiccnsees may 
sell their product to> how they may sell that product, and lhe price at which the product may 
be sold. The credit rnle l1as only been in existence for appr9ximately 1 O-yea1'.s, but il was 
designed to deaJ with some very serious problems. She explained the scenario of a $5. 1 
mi llion debt-<.listributors who were not able and never eould have paid that debt had the 
Commission not intervened and allowed for the opportuni ty to convert that debt in to 
promissory not:es and pay over a period of time. NAFTM believes these rules make good 
sense from a regulatory perspective and that they should be continued to be pa1i of the 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of9 



Commission's regulatory activity to retain the s table competitive environment that exists. 
She emphasized the rules have created a regulated competition; but a good and fair 
competition for large distribulors, small distributors, large manufacturers, and small 
manufacturers. They bave a very competitive but a very level playfield in which to operate. 

Ms. Magnuson believed that by repealing the rules, it would create unfettered competition
competition that wouldn't be an equal playing field for the large and small companies to co
exist. She believed there will be some significant changes in the market if these rules are 
repealed and noted that some people think it' s a good idea that will bring about good 
changes. Most people think it would be bad-the small distributors and small manufacturers 
would be disproportionately a ffected. There would be some who would exist and would gain 
in business because they have the financial where-with-all t<> offer large pricing discounts, 
kick-backs, rebates, and other incentives to certain people who are capable of buying the 
product. Ms. Magnuson stTessed that it will be a big change, it is a big deal, and a very 
significant decision. She believed some industries such as liquor, utilities, and gambling, are 
better suited to reg11lation and a more contTolled environment. Historically they have always 
been more regulated. 

Ms. Magnuson commented that thi s industry has done very well. It is not as robust as it 
used to be from the pull-tab and bingo perspective. There is a lot of competition and people 
are trying very hard to keep their businesses intact. She suggested the repeal of these rules 
will be a major change in the way that business is conducted in Washington, and probably not 
for the best- there are going to be some people who will have to close their doors because 
they won't be able lo compete in the market place. 

Gary Morrey on behalf of the Recreational Gaming Association pointed that in WAC 230-
12-340, the operator or the end user, is not included in the repeal of the credit opport1mities. 
that exist between manufacturers and di stributors. I le questioned if there was a statutory 
responsibility to regulate whether or not credit may be used between manufacturers and 
distributors, why there is one between an operaLor and not t11c other levels. Regnrding staff 
time, he commented tbat additional staff time is needed to ensure that bills are paid on time, 
that invoices are paid immediately, and Umt the credit isu 't being extended. He inquired if 
the credit elimination was approved, why it wotddn't be eliminated for the industry rather 
lhan only the manufacturers and distributors. Mr. Nunamaker acknowledged that Mr. 
Murrey had raised this issue before, and frankly, the staff just didn't consider it- and 
affirmed it is something that could be considered. 1 le noted that credit bas never been 
allowed on this level and the Commission has bad very few problems. Because tl1erc 
would11't be a lot of savings in manpower by changing the rule, it was simply put off the table 
and never considered for its own me1its. 

Commissioner Parker inqui red if this is a policy consideration that staff is now aware of 
and giving fuller consideration. Mr. Nunamaker responded that staff bas not discussed the 
matter further. He indicated that he was aware there may be a petition submitted to the 
Commission requesting a change to the rule--or that it may be something staff could discuss 
with the licensees and it might be handled at the lime staff addresses the mies within the rules 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 6of9 



simplification process. Commissioner Parker commented that since the rules were up for 
final actibn, wouldn't il suggest holding off on that particular piece of the package. Director 
Day clarified that the package of rules are primarily directed to the manufacturers and their 
general relationships. The question is whether the Commission should go further than that 
and eliminate credit restrictions at the operator level. Director Day believed that staff was 
prepared to recommend that may be the next logical step; however, because it is a larger 
issue, the staff would want to address it at a later time. He affirmed there are two separate 
issues--credit vs. operators and essentially wholesale manufacturers. 

Mr. Muney alfirmed that the distributor cannot deal credit to the licensee. As an example 
be explained that he could not bui anything from a distributor on credit as the rule is 
proposed; however, that distributor may buy on credit from the manufacturer, and he must 
sell it on a cash basis. He questioned why the distributor (in the middle in this example) is 
allowed to buy on credit but bas to seU on cash- and why they can't extend tlrnt credit-basis 
to the operator/end user that is really using the item. I Ie suggested the middleman gets all the 
benefit. Mr. Nunamaker replied that WAC 230-12-340 currently allows operators to use 
credit cards to pmchase items- that would be recognized as making a cash purchase. 

Mr. McCoy responded to Mr. Murrey 's concern about the Jack of credit being offored to the 
operator level, and reiterated that his proposal solved this issue for the casino industry. He 
went on to say that separating the industry from the casino industry is reasonable when it 
comes to Mr. Mull'cy's concerns. The end user of pull-tabs actuaJJy consumes the product, it 
can no longer be repossessed- it has been opened and it is a ·dead product. Ms. McCoy 
affirmed the casino industry has hard goods; therefore, adopting the proposal he presented 
makes sense for Mr. Murrey's concerns. Credlt being offered to the operators of pull-tabs 
allows for the product to be consumed and not retrievable 

Mr. Ackerman commented that the Commission was about to consider a number of policy 
arguments from the industry and from staff. He affomed the Commission is wclJ informed 
with regard to the policy on the issues the presenters have raised ; however, he foll obliged to 
remind the Commission thut lo the extent the Commission makes policy decisions, the 
Commission must do so within their legal authority. The Commission exists to effectively 
regulate gambling-that is the authority for the Commission's ability to promulgate rules. 
Mr. Ackerman advised he was not involved in 1993 or I 997 when lhe rules came into effect. 
J lowever, he has considered them to be within the Commission's rulemaking authority 
because when tJ1e rules were enacted, they were deemed to be necessary to the regulation of 
gambling. Mr. Ackciman commented that U1e Commission is not the Federal Trade 
Commissiou, it is not the Utilities and Transpo11ation Commission. and it doesn't exist to 
control monopolies or to do anti-trust work. The Commission exists by statute to make sure 
that gambling is honest and legal. It does not exist to level playing Lields or to control 
commewial competition. Mr. Ackerman suggested that if the Commission can no longer 
identify a regulatory purpose for these rules. then these rules no longer fit within the 
Commission's statutory authority. On the other hand. if they are deemed to be necessary and 
right for the effective regulation of gambling, then he 0ontinued to believe tbat they were 
within the Commission's authority. 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 7of9 



Commissioner P arker concurred that Mr. Ackerman's comments were very much on point. 
l le advised he wasn' t entirely comfortable about whether or not there is an unforeseen 
consequence to withdrawing a regulatory system that might have some impact on the public 
beyond that wbich the Commission can identify at this point and time. Commissioner Parker 
also expressed concern regarding an appearance that the Commission was '·'backing into" this 
issue-the Commission was forced to do some budget cutting-and management came up 
with a good proposal to cut the budget. He questioned if the Commission would be making a 
policy change as a consequence of budget cutting that rea!Jy is a different issue than budget 
cutting issues. l le believed the policy that is on the table is questionable as to the proper roll 
of the Commission given the environment of the 21st Centw-y. Commissioner Parker advised 
U1at he was comfortable with the proposaJ to put the rules into place because he agreed with 
lhe interpretation of the Commission's role and the policy that was attempting to be achieved. 
I le explained that he was not particularly comfortable with how the Commission got here in 
the first place. Commissioner Parker advised he would be prepared to vote in favor of the 
rules package because of the policy issue and that he would Jike lo keep that a~ a separate 
issue from the budget issue. I le acknowledged the arguments made on behalf or the 
proponents not to adopt thi::; rule change; however, the argument that he was persuaded by 
was that this was an appropriate way to refine the role of the Conunission given the 
environment the Commission is currently operating in. and, he was in favor of these changes. 

Commissioner E llis agreed with much of what Commissioner Parker said and be indicated 
that he could understand Commissioner Parker's concern. Commissioner Ellis suggested the 
tail might be wagging the dog in the sense of the regulatory issues and the issues concerning 
the appropriate role of the Commission, the associated legal issues that Mr. Ackerman 
outlined, as well as the lo ng n m lo cure the Com.mission's budget issue. He acknowledged 
that the Commission was having to cut back (as are other state agencies), and therefore 
identified some areas that do not appear to be crucial to the central mission. Commissioner 
Ellis didn't think the enforcing of the credit or the pricing rules was crucial to the 
C..:ommission's performance. He advised that he has not been able lo identify any way in 
which they directly or indirectly fwther the Commission's important business of keeping 
organjzed crime out of gambling and protecting the public from fraudulent gambling 
practices; therefore, these cuts were certainly easier Lhan most. 

Commissioner Ellis expressed concern after listening to Mr. M cCoy and o ther speakers 
about the potential impact on small business; however, he felt that would lead to the question 
of why small businesses in this industry need price and credit reguJation by a government 
agency in order to avoid being fo rced out of business. I le explained this country relies on 
free enterprise and free economic systems, and nonna11y small businesses come before the 
Legislature or an agency to complain about t he impact of regulato ry rules that are being 
imposed on them by government- rather than asking government to retain the rule. 
Commissioner Ellis affinncd it was 1.musua.l that the roles were reversed in this case. While 
concerns have been expressed that perhaps consumers could be impacted by the repeal of 
these rules in the form of higher prices from a concentration in the industry; he suggested that 
economically speaking, the quick answer to that scenario is that if concentration develops and 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 8of9 



if prices are raised to non-competitive levels, then absent any entry barriers, new firms will 
enter the market and take advantage of the unreasonably high prices-and that shouldn' t be a 
long tenn problem. He affirmed that he understood the legal issues raised by Mr. Ackerman; 
but, preferred to not proceed on that basis a11d not to spend a lot of time examining whether 
the Commission has the authority to maintain these rules. Commissioner Ellis believed the 
underlying policy considerations were paramount;, that it is difficult to justify the different 
types of restrictions on a firm's ability to set their own prices and make their own decisions 
as to credit. He didn't believe that a real showing had been made to continue that kind of 
restrictive business enviroruncnt. Therefore, based on the policy question_ and not the 
question of the agency's authority, he advised he would vote in favor of the proposals as 
made by staff. 

Commissioner Niemi questioned whether the Commission should look at the economics in 
relation to the staff cutbacks. She believed a good argument was made that if the 
Commission was trying to save a half an fTE, this probably wasn't the correct way to go. 
She emphasized that if the Commission experiences staff problems that interfere with the 
Commission 's regulation of gambling, something besides cutting things that are important 
wil l need to be done-and, if this is an important issue, it is-worth doing something about. 
Commissioner Niemi expressed concern that in the future this issue might have some effect 
on gambling which directly related to the Com.mission's prime mission. She advised she 
would also vote in favor of this package. 

Commissioner Ems made a motion seconded by Commissioner Niemi to adopt an order 
repealing WAC 230-12-330. WAC 230-12-345. WAC 230-12-320. and amending WAC 230-
12-340. and WAC 230-12-350, in the form recommended by staff. to be affective 31 -davs 
after adoption. Vote taken; the motion passed with four ave votes; Chair Ludwig voted nay. 

Excerpt from September 2005 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 9 of9 



Excerpt from March 2006 Commission Meeting Minutes 

11. Petition for Rule Change- Magic Distributing, Inc. - Discriminatory Pricing Restrictions: 
WAC 230-12-330: 
Mr. Nunamaker reported this petition was filed by Magic Distributing Inc. They have requested 
that the restrictions formerly found in WAC 230-12-330 which were repealed in October 2005, be 
reinstated. The petitioner believes that gambling equipment and related products should be 
avajlable to a ll licensees without discrimination. Discriminatory pricing restrictions were repealed 
effective October 10, 2005, which opened the market and allowed manufacturers and distributors to 
seJJ their products for different prices to different customers. The agency is no longer involved in 
how companies price their products. Staff no longer conducts discriminatory price checks; 
however, the restoration of this rule would reinstate the agency's role in pricing scbeduJes for 
manufacturers and distributors. Before pricing and credit restricrions were repealed in October 
2005, staff spent at least an equivalent of a halftime FTE enforcing the regulations. Approximately 
that equivalent would again be required to monitor these restrictions if reinstated. Staff 
recommends denial of the petition for the reasons set forth in the September 2005 Commission 
Meeting Minutes, which were the basis for tl1e repeal of the' rules in the first place. 

Commissioner Parker commented that che Commission settled this issue after quite a bit of 
discussion. l le suggested that if the Commission wanted to reconsider the rule, that would normally 
only be done if there was some significant new development or change. He inquired if there were 
any. Mr. Nunamaker responded that he was not aware of any. Mr. Ackerman commented that he 
understood Commissioner Parker·s comment; however, for APA purposes the petition 11a') been 
filed and presented to the Commission for possible filing. He advised that it has to be treated as if it 
has never happened before in terms of the action the Commission must take; whether or not to tile 
the petition, ~md to state the reasons which may be exactly as ~ticulated-that the Commission sees 
no reason to revisit the matter. Chair Ludwig called for public comments on the proposed petition. 

Eleanor Coffey form Magic Distributing, Inc. thanked the Commission for reviewing the petition. 
She reported that since the rule was repealed in October, she has had a hard time getting prodncts 
from any of the manufacturers. She affirmed that she was aware that several of the larger 
distributors asked for the rule to be repealed. Ms. Coffey shared her belief that that it is the job of 
the Washington State Gambling Commission to regulate pull-tabs. With the current environment of 
the restrictions being repealed, she felt it created an unfair and uneven market. She believed it 
co110icted with many federal and state laws such as the Shennan /\ct, the Clayton Act, general rules 
of reason~ anti-trust laws, illegal practices, and boycotts. Ms. Coffey affomed that Mary 
Magnusson, Dan McCoy, and Walt Antoncich did an excellent job in June 2005 when they asked 
the Commission not to repeal the restrictions ; but, it was done, wh ich has resulted in allowing the 
large distributors and manufacturers to cut off the smaller distTibutors. Chair Ludwig asked ir Ms. 
Coffey bad any examples of specific distributors. Ms. Coffey responded that she had been advjsed 
by her customers that other djstributors contacted them and told them that as of November 2005> the 
smaller distributors would be cut off and no longer around. She noted this occurred before the rule 
was even put into effect- as a way of getting rid of the smaller distributors. Specifically, Ms. 
Coffey reported that a representative from Wild Distributing told customers that Magic Distributing 

Excerpt from March 2006 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page l of 2 



would no longer be around as of November 1 and tbeir customers should buy from Wild 
Distributing since Magic Distributing would not be able to get the product. Since the larger 
distributors called the manufacturers, they refused to sell to several smaller distributors. She 
reported that a total of five manufacturers would not sell to her. 

Chair Ludwig noted Ms. Coffey's attorney wrote a letter to one specific manufacturer. Ms. Coffey 
affirmed a letter was written to Trade Products and they responded by stating that due to the 
Commission repealing the rules, they didn't have to sell to Magic Distiibuting- and they are not. 
Chair Ludwig inquired if Ms. Coffey made any effort to file a complaint with the Commission staff 
about Trade Products and she reiterated that her attorney wrote to the manufacturer. 

""C'ommissioner Niemi commented that in her opinion, at least her vote al the meeting last year was 
based on the fact that U1is function was nol within the Commission's mission. She ernphasizc..:d that 
Ms. Coffey had not given her any reason to believe that it is, and she suggested there may be other 
places Ms. Coffey could go Lo for relief. Commissioner Niemi expressed her opinion that il is the 
Commission's mission lo make sure that gambling is fair and to make rules dealing with gambling. 
She said the Commission is not here to regttlate the market. Commissioner Bierbaum concurred 
with Commissioner Niemi that the mission of the Commission is Lo protect the players not 
necessarily the members of the industry. She had no idea why a manufacturer would not want to 
sell to someone who has money; and she suspected that there are other agencies that might be able 
to assist in that endeavor. 

Commissioner Niemi made a motion seconded by Commissioner Bierba um that the Commission 
opposes fi ling the petition for the reasons previously stated~ and which also relates to the fact that it 
is not the mission of the Gambling Commission to regulate the market. 

Mr. Ackerman noted the Commission has heard from Commissioner Niemi ancl Commissioner 
Bierbaum and that it would be an appropriate time for those who have not spoken to the issue to 

make a comment so that il may be reflected in the record. The AP A requires that if the Commission 
denies a petition, it must do so in writing (through the minutes that are transcribed), unless the 
Commission would rather submit something. later in writing. 

Chair Ludwig reported that he felt the same way he did when he voted against the repeal in 
October. If the motion is to deny, he advised he would probably vote against that motion for the 
same reasons. Commissioner Ellis stated he would be consistent with what he said when the issue 
was before the Commission in October. He emphasized that attempting to police relationships 
between manufacturers, distributors, and retailers js not pai·t of the mission of the Cormnission. ·He 
preferred, raU1er than addressing that sort of a jurisdictional issue, to simply indicate his feeling that 
there are other legal remedies available for the petitioner. Accordingly, he felt that it would be 
inappropriate for the Commission to use its resources and staff jn that area and that he would adhere 
to the same rational in voting to deny the petition. 

Com missione1· Parker advised that he supported the motion for the reasons he stated earlier. 
Chai1· L udwig closed the public testimony. Vote taken,· the motion passed with !Our ave votes
Chair Ludwig voted nav. 

Excerpt from March 2006 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of2 



Excerpt from April 2006 Commiss ion Meeting Minutes 

5. Allowing C redit between Operators and Manufacturers/Distributors 
WAC 230-12-340 and WAC 230-12-350 
Ms. Hunter reported the proposed rules relate to repealing the credit restrictions between 
operators and distributors, and manufacturers. At the September meeting, rhe credit ruJes 
that dealt with credit between distributors and manufacturers were repealed. At tl1at time, the 
Commissioners asked staff to look into the rules that prevent credi t between operators and 
distributors and whether those could be repealed as well. Staff concluded that the rules could 
be repealed- staff does not have regulatory concerns with allowing this type of credit. 
Repealing the rules would allow the operators to pay on credit and they would also be able to 
use credit cards for their purchases. 

Ms. Hunter explained the second rule repeal proposal deals with the acceptance of checks 
and how many days the licensee has to bring them to the bank. She noted if the Commission 
gets out of the bt1siness of being involved in the credit issue, the existing rules are not 
necessary. The staff checked with four other states as to whether they allow credit. New 
Mexico didn ' t' have any regulations on this matter, AJaska required payment within 30 days. 
and Idaho and Oregon requires buying lheir pull-tabs from the state-in approximately thr1.;c 
weeks (after they receive the product) an electronic transfer is executed for payment. 

Letters were S<!nt to all of the manufacturers and dis l.ributors letting them know about the rule 
proposal . Staff recommends filing both rules for further discussion. Chair Ludwig 
questioned how these rules related to the rule passed in September. Ms. Hunter replied these 
rules deal with a different person in the chain- it deals with the operators (the restaurant or 
tavern that has the pull-tab license), and their business relationship with the 
manufacturer/distributor they are buying their pull-tabs from. Tt involves different marke1ing 
levels. Chair Ludwig asked if it was the same people regar4ing credit between the 
manufacturers and distribntors. Ms. Hunter explained the d ifference now is the rule adds the 
operators; the actual person (restaurant owner or tavern) who is selling the pull -tabs to the 
playi ng public. Director Day recalled thnt at the t ime of the discussions regasding the 
pricing and credit restrictions the Commissioners repealed, the operators asked staff to look 
at the similar restrictions between distributors and operators and to determine whether or not 
those should go forward for the same treatment. Staff has looked at the rules as requested 
and is now suggesting that these restrictions should be removed as well. --

M r. Ackerman inquired if the repealers were intended to apply to anything other than pull
labs. He noted the proposed mles appeal' to talk in very sweeping terms about gambl ing 
equipment devices, related supplies, paraphernalia, and services. Ms. Hunter affirmed it 
would apply to all activities, not just pull ~ tabs. There were no further questions or comments. 

Commissioner E llis made a motion seconded by Commissioner Bierbaum tlrnt the 
Commission accept the proposed rule change to be filed for further discussion. Chair 
Ludwig call ed for public testimony. 

Excerpt from April 2006 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page I of2 



Dolores Chiechi, Executive Director for the Recreational Gaming Association (RGA) 
thanked staff for bringing the ntle forward. She commented that since last fall when the rules 
were discussed and then eventually repealed, the RGA felt it wasn' t consistent to allow for 
credit to be offered to one segment of the industry and not apply those rules across the board 
for the rest of the industry. Ms. Chiechi affirmed the ROA believes this is a business 
decision- if a dish·ibutor wants to have an operator pay in cash, they still have the 
opportunity to do that. This ruJe doesn't require them to do that; however, it a llows them to 
continue to make that business decision. Ms. Chiecbi reported that the ROA looked forward 
to further discussion about this mle, and an eventual change of the rule. . 

With no further discussion; Clrnir Ludwig called for a vote. Vore taken; the motion passed~\ 
unanimously. ·\Q) 

Excerpt from April 2006 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of2 



Excerpt from Jun e 2006 Commission Meeting Mfou tes 

13. Allowing Credit Between Manufacturers/Distributors: 
WAC 230-12-340 and WAC 230-U-350: 
Ms. Hunter a<lvi$ed that Item 13 is a nile to repeal the credit restrictions between 
operators and distributors. She noted the credit rules between distributors a11d 
manufacturers were repealed last fall. At that time, the Commission asked ·staff to look at 
whether the rules preventing crerut between operators and djstributors could be repealed 
also. Staff has conc!uded the Commission wouldn't have regulatory concerns abom 
allowjng this sort of credit. Currently the operators must pay for products such as pull-tabs 
in cash- repealing the rules will allow operators to pay on credit. They would be able to 
follow business practices or they could also use credit cards. 

The second rule staff is rcconunending be repealed deals \vi th checks and how they have to 
be presented for payment. If credit between the operators is aJlowed, staff won't need to 
have all of the detailed requirements about checks and how they have to be accepted. Staff 
checked with other states as to whether c:hcy allow credit or not. New Mexico's regulations 
don't address this issue, Alaska allows 30 days to pay, and in Idaho and Oregon they are 
required to buy their pull-tabs from the sta te and there is an electronic fund transfer that 
occurs about three weeks after the product is received. Ms. Hunter advised that staff sent 
letters to all of the manufacturers and distributors letting them know about the rule 
proposal and haven' t heard anything back. Staff recommends filing Lhe rule for further 
discussion. Chair Ludwig called for pl.lblic comments, there were none, and he noted the 
item would be scheduled for the July meeting. 

Page l of I 



Excerpt from JuJy 2006 Commission Meeting Minutes 

11. AJlowing Credit between Operators and Manufacturers/Distributors: 
WAC230-12-340 and WAC230-12-350: 
Ms. Hunter reported the rules package to repeal the credit restrictions between the 
operators and the dislributors/manufacturcrs are up for final action. The credit rules 
between distributors and manufacturers were repealed last fall . At that time, the 
Commission asked the staff to look into whether or not the rules preventing credit between 
operators and distributors could also be repealed. The staff concluded the reg11 lations could 
be repealed-staff does not have regulatory concerns with allowing this type of credit 
Repealing these rules would allow operators to pay on credit. Item 11 (b) deals with very 
specific information about how checks have to be presented for payment. If credit is 
allowed, the restrictions on checks aren't 11ecessary. Staff checked with other states on 
whether lhey allow credit: in New Mexico the rules don't address it, in Alaska operators 
have 30 days to pay, and in Idaho and Oregon, they buy the pull-tabs from the state and are 
bilJed through an electronic funds transfer that happens about three weeks aller they get the 
product. 

Letters were sent to all of the manufacturers and distributors letting them know of this 
proposal and the Commission didn't recci ve any response. Staff recommends final action. 
Chair Ellis called for public comments. 

Dolores Chiechi-Recreational Gaming Association (RGA) reiterated their request for an 
effecti vc date 31-days after filing. She noted that since the other credjt purchase rules for 
manufacturers and distributors has been repealed since last October, the RGA was hopeful 
this package could become effective sooner than January I . 

' 

Commissioner Niemi made a motion seconded by Commissioner Bierbaum to repeal 
WAC 230-12-340 and WAC 230-12-350, to become effective 31 -days after filing. Vote 
taken: the moiionpassed with (our ave votes. 

Page 1 of l 



Excerpt from January 2007 Commission Meeting Minutes 

17. Petition fo r Rule Change-Manufacturers Selling Product to Distributors: 
WAC 230-12-231 
Assista nt Director Mark Har ris : Chair EUis, Commissioners. Item number 17 is a 
petition for rule change by John Lowmon requesting that would require all 
manufacturers to make their licensed product available to any licensed distributor 
without prejudice. The petitioner is also requesting that aU manufactures be required 
to accept any cash purchases in rhe absence of credit terms; and for the Commission 
co indefinitely revoke the license of any manufactlll'er, distributor, and their 
representatives who interfere with this rule. He reported tliat prior to October 2005; 
the Commission had rules that required manufacturer/disti·ibutors to offer their 
products and services to all licensees without discrimination. The rules were intended 
lo prevent discriminatory pricing and to prevent market control. After discussion at 
three Commission meetings, the Comm:ission decided to repeal these rules and the 
agency is no longer involved with pricing or determining which licensee 
manufacturers sell to; as long as the distributors they sell to are licensed. 
[Commissioner Parker left the meeting at 11: 15] 

A similar petition was submitted in March of 2006 by Magic Distributing, requesting 
discriminatory pricing restrictions be reinstated, and that discriminatory pricing 
restrictions required manufacturers and distributors to offer their products and 
services to all licensees without djscriminatioo. The Commission denied that petition 
fo r the following reasons : regulating business relationships between distributors and 
manufacturers is generally outside the Commission 's rnfasion, and because there are 
other legal remedies (like antitrust laws) the petitioner could pursue instead of relying 
on the Commission. Before repealing the credit rules. the Commission carefully 
considered all the arguments for three months. 

Mr. Harris noted that in June of2006, Special Agents contacted six distributors and 
two manufacturers to find out bow things were going now that the ruJe had been 
repealed. Four of the distributors said there was no impact. One said that a 
manufacturer had reduced the d iscount and required larger purchases from them; and. 
one said that one of the manufactures wouldn' t sell to them anymore because they 
were too small. Of the two manufacturers that were contacted one said that there was 
no impact and the other said things were going okay. The impact of this proposal 
wou ld require manufacturers to sell 1heir products to distributors regardless of lhe 
distributor's business practice; credit problems, or bad debt. In the past, crc<lit 
restriction rules (which have also been repealed) would have prevented the sale for 
products on past due accounts. The ret,11.tlatory concems--regulating the business 
practices between manufacturers and dis tributors are generally outside the scope of 
the Commission 's mission co keep gambling legal and honest. Mr. Harris stated that 
if th(.; request is adopted, it would add new regulatory requirements that would require 
the Commission to inclefinj rely revoke the manufacturer' s license if they don't 

Excerpt from January 2007 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 1 of 7 



comply. He noted that prior to the rule being repealed it took approximately half an 
FTE to enforce the regulations; that half of an FTE would again be required if the rule 
is reenacted. Licensees that would be directly impacted would be the manufacturers, 
distributors, and operators. 

Mr. Ha1Tis advised the Commission has three options for the petition, to file the 
petition, deny and state reasons, or file an alternative version. Staff recommends 
denying the petition for the similar reasons discussed with the prior reconunendation. 
Regulating business relationships between ilistributors and manufacturers is generally 
outside the Commission's mission; and, there are other legal remedies that licensees 
could pLu-sue outside Conunission rules. The petitioner would request Lhis rule 
become effective 31-days after filing. Chair Ellis cal led for questions and public 
comments. 

John Lowmon licensed with Magic Distributing advised that he has been in the 
gambling business for about 20 years. Approxim ately three months ago, he and five 
of the seven other people that work for Mr. Ed's Distribtlling in Bellingham received 
a phone call on a Monday saying that as of Thursday the business sold, and they were 
terminating staff by that Friday. Another distributor bought: the business and put two 
of the remaining people in the field. Mr. Lowman noted that in the 20 years working 
wi01 his customers he developed quite a few personal relationships- they always 
relied on him to be the person to_ bring them their product. When he found out he was 
no longer employed, he was forced oul of distributing b?cause that was the closest 
distributor servicing Whatcom County, Skagit County, and Point Roberts. He also 
repotted that he called Ed Finnegan, the sales rep at Trade, who advised him their 
cred it department decided they were not going to take on any new distTibutors in the 
SW.le of Wasrungton even if they pay cash. He affirmed there are distributors who 
want products and they are willing pay cash. 

Mr. Lowmon stated that his original proposal reads "access to devices, materials, 
products, equipment or services defined. All manufactures licensed in Washington 
State shall make their licensed product available to any licensed distributor without 
prejudice provided that the distributor is current in the agreed upon method of 
purchasing tenns, wherein there is an established credit. However, if the distributor 
has not previously entered into.a credit method and is purchasing C.0.0. or F.0.B. 
them wi ll be no interference by the manufacturer with respect to inventories and 
distributors access to the same.'' When the proposal didn't get anywhere, he reported 
that he contacted the Attorney General via e-mai l and asked them to look into the 
antitrust matter, and he waited. When he followed up on his reques~ the Attorney 
Gene ral's Office advised Lhey had no record of it and they suggested he resubmit his 
proposal and his request to look into the antitrust complaint. Surprisingly, they found 
it and responded; they said this wasn' t an antitrust issue. Mr. Lowmon indicated be 
resubmitted his request with the WAC regarding the g1ievance for buying self 
prohibited (WAC 230-12-230); and asked if his complaint wasn't indeed valid. At 

Excerpt from January 2007 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2of7 



f ~at point, they refel'Cd Mr. Lowmon back to the Gambling Commission, which I 
\;esulted in the request for anew rule. .:...J 

Addressing the WAC, Mr. Lowmon felt the first section of WAC 230-12-230 clearly 
says " no person sha ll enter into any agreement expressly or implied with any other 
person which prohibits any person from purchasing or selling to any person any 
devices, materials, parts, equipment or services which are used or offered in any way 
with any gambling activity." Mr. Lowmon emphasized this rule is important because 
it will protect manufacturers that may not sell to some distributors- perhaps due to 
some outside influence or for their O\:vn reasons. He indicated that some of the 
manufacturers don' t want to lose business from their customers that buy more product 
volume. Mr. Lowman stressed the importance for the manufacturers to have a tool 
that allows them to soy, " Hey Mr. Big Distributor, the Gambling Commission says I 
have to sell to everybody and I don ' t need your pressure." 

Don Harris - H & I I Pull-Tab in Yakima advised he was one of the lit1le guys ·'they" 
said was too small to seil too-apparently $800,000 worth of product a year was not 
en<>ugh for Trade. He reported that Trade, Paramount, and Douglas will not sell to 
him for any reason. As a result, he reported he lost over $140,000 by not being able 
to get his product. l lis salesmen apparently said that he couldn't talk about the issue, 
and the sales manager would not return Mr. Harris ' calls. Ue emphasized that even 
the little guys have lo have product. He expressed his belief this was a discriminatory 
practice. As a former law enforcement o fficer, it was also his opinion this was 
racketeering. Don Harris emphasized the Gambling Commjssion needed to do 
something about this issue-if not, wby have a Commission; and he assured the 
Commission there will be federal suites . initiated that might jnvolve the Commission; 
because in his v iew the Commission was allowing the larger companies (Mr. Ed ' s, 
Gasperetti's, and ZDI) to break tbe antitrust laws and Lhc Rico Act. He advised that 
he argued against repealing the rule in 2005 along 'vvith Danny McCoy and Jim 
Lowmon. 

C hair Ellis acknowledged there were.a number of pages of material thal were =\ 
submitted to the Commission and distributed in connection with this petition which 
involved a rather extensive discussion o f what was and what was not the 
Commission's job. The Commission has concluded twice in the recent past Lhat it is 
ryot. If in fact there is an agreement between distributors and a manufacturer to refus 
to deal with other distributors- that is an antitrust violation, assuming other 
requirements are met. Chair Ellis explained U1at is a matter for which there ore 
extensive antitrnst remedies, including tliple damages, attorney fees, and etc, and 
state agencies and federal agencies may pursue those remedies as well as private 
litigation. Regarding the Conunission' s decision to repeal the rule, Chair Ellis 
clarified bis rational in voting in favor of previous limitations in this area of the 
Commission 's responsibility--noting Lhat the Legislature, at least arguably, bas not 
authorized the Commission to get involved in th.is area and that it was not central to 
the Commission's mission. Chair Elli s affirmed that clearly the Legislature wants the 

Excerpt from January 2007 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 3of7 



Commission to deal with keeping organized crime out of gambling and keeping any 
criminal element out of gambling. However, the Legislature has not made it clear 
that the Commission should be involved in terms of dealing with business 
relationships between manufacturers, distributors, and operators. Chair EU is noted 
that some of the other Commissioners felt very strongly that way, ru1d there is 
background on the Commission's thinldng. 

Don Harris responded that he has talked to Alex Deccio, Jim Clements. and Mary 
Skinner, and they all agree with him. He reported that then Representative Clements 
was an ex officio member of the Commission, ru:td, '~he said that is bull, you can't be 
doing that stuff." Mr. I larris became argumentative stating the Commission should 
know this is discrimination; that it is violating people's civil rights, and that 
racketeering is involved. He emphasized that the Commission charges enormous 
fees and "now you want a raise, why should we pay you guys-T mean, you guys 
aren't earning it." 

Senator Prentice affirmed that now "Senator" Clements was briefly on this 
Commission and left when then "Representative" Cheryl Pflug was appointed and she 
served out the rest of his term. She also reported that Senator Alex Deccio and 
Representative Mary Skinner were very good friends and have never bad anything to 
do with this gambling issue. Senator Prentice advised Mr. Harris Lhat i r she were his 
senator, she would be extremely sympathetic; however, ·she agreed with Chair Ellis 
and made it clear there are laws and agencies tJ1at deal with those remedies. The 
applicable laws are not initiated by the GambJiJ1g Commission, and it was her 
understanding U1at the Legislature has never even attempted to include that 

sponsibi lity upon the Commission. Don Harris disagreed, stating the Legislatme 
leaves it up to the Gaming Commission because that is what the Commission is for. 
He reiterated that he brought this scenario to Alex Deccio and Jim Clements; and: 
while they have not gotten involved they are saying this is what the Conunission's job 
is supposed to be. Mr. Harris demanded to know why the Commission even passed 
this law; and who the people were that were for and against the law. -
Director Day responded that Commission staff proposed the change because it was 
staff's determination during the deba{e and after looking at the rules and Jaws, that the 
regulation of the business practice between the manufacturers and distributors was 
not the Corrunission,s direct responsibility- there were other agencies that had a 

U
irect responsibility. Director Day assured Mr. Harris that if there was some threat of 

violence or some criminal practice going on behind the scenes of gambling, that may 
mplicate something the agency is responsibJc for; however, at this point the 

Commiss_ion hasn't received any evidence that has occuned. 

C hair Ellis advised Mr. HaiTis that he had hjs oppo1tunity to speak. l lc asked Mr. 
Harris to please sit down so that any other citizens who wouJd like to address this 
proposal could have the same opporlUnity- he then caJJed for other public comments. 

Excerpt from January 2007 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of7 



Evonne L aisure - a licensed distributor representative for over 10 years from the 
Bellingham area reported that she was also part of the people that were let go when 
Mr. Ed's djssolved. She advised that she was given 48 hours to relinquish her license 
and position. Ms. Laisure reported that she and other employees that were released 
had a base of customers for 10, 15! and 20 years; and none of the people released 
were prepared to be without a job in 48-hours. She commented that the staff released 
didn't know that ·'our company, M r. Ed's had been taking part in business practices to 
work with other manufacturers and distributors to keep the smaU gtJy out." She 
advised that she was told by representatives and manufacturers that Mr. Ed's, ZDI, 
and Weill were all very instrumental in making compacts with each other to get rid of 
the smaller guy. Ms. Laisure thought that when a small company can' t get products, 
it borderlines on criminal, especially when the licenses have been paid for and the 
licensees are operating legally. She emphasized the importance of having an equal 
opporttmity to go to another distributor or even open a company of her own in the 
Bellingham area. Ms. Laisure explained she currently works for Magic Distributors 
and she reported that Douglas Press won't sell to Magic Distributors. She questioned 
who the licensees should go to in order to present this case, and how cru1 they get 
products to sell. She said she felt like she was being forced out of business, and now 
she was beginning to feel like the Washington State Gambling Commission was 
becoming a pait of that force to force her out of business. She reported the General 
Attorney ' s Office is referring the licensees back to the Gambling Commission and the 
Gambling Commission's response is that it isn't the Gambling Commission 's 
responsibility. She inquired if there was there anything that could be done in order to 
help her stay in business. 

Cbair Ellis responded that contacting the Attorney General's Antitrust Division and 
contacting the Seattle RegionaJ Office of the World Trade Commission would be the 
most immediate ways to determine whether or not the affected licensees have a case. 
I le assured Ms. Laisure that the Commi:-::sion was very sympathetic with the situation 
and the Commission was aware that the business world i::: a tough world. Jn reference 
Lo the people being out of business and in this situation being out of jobs, he affinned 
everyone was sympathetic ·with that; however, at the same time the Commission must 
deal with a legal siructure and an authorization from Legislature. Ile emphasized the 
Gambling Commission does not have a universal band-aid to take on every 
conceivable problem in the gaming industry. 

C hair Ellis explained that the Commission looked at this issue very carefully about a 
year ago and reached some clear cut understandings of the Commission's authority. 
He staced that in our economic system, companies that manufacture products are 
going to sell to companies that distribute the products. The basic understanding is 
tl1at you don' t need any laws to ensure that distributors get products because 
manufacturers can't make money making products and putting them in warehouses 
and not selling them to anybody. If Lhere is a problem and the distributors 1Jren't 
getti ng the product; for it to become an a ntitrust problem, it requires in classic 
province a conspiracy. An agreement 1.;lassically between the manufacturer and a 

Excerpt fr9m January 2007 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 5of7 



dominant distributor tJ1at the dominant distributor is going to be the only distributor in 
an area and to the exclusion of all others-and if that agreement can be proven, it 
may be an antitrust issue and the Attorney General's Office or the Federal Trade 
Commission should he willing to sit down and see whether it is something they 
believe they can pursue. Chair Ellis cautioned that these aren't easy cases. People 
aren' t stupid. The manufacturers and dominant distributors don't enter into written 
contracts invariably, although in some cases they do. He explained that exclusive 
dealing arrangements can be lawful. -
C ha ir Ellis advised this was a tough area and while the Commission was 
sympathetic, it is not something the Commission is mandated to deal with. Ms. 
Laisure responded thnt when powerful distributors get together and threaten and 
work with manufacturers to put the little guy out of business, she believed that did fall 
under the Commission's heading. Chair Em s again responded that was an antitrust 
issue and the licensees should contact the Attorney General >s Office, or the Federal 
Trade Commission, or perhaps the Antitrust Division of Lhe Federal Department of 
Justice; and, to infonn them that the Gambling Commission has responded to the 
effect that they have no jurisdiction in this matter. He then called for Li.Jrther public 
testimony. 

E leanor Coffey Owner, Magic Distributing referenced Case Rep011 #2006-02016, 
noting that Special /\gent, Jennifer Kapp talked to some of the manufacturers and 
they s tated that they bad credit issues with Magic Distributing. She suggested there 
might have been some confusion and went on to explain there used to be a company 
called Bingo Magic solely owned by Wayne Crumb. Ms. Coftey advised she was one 
or f'our employees that worked for Mr. Cmmb, and when he closed that company in 
May of2005, she started Magic Distributing in June of 2005. Ms. Coffey advised she 
owns Magic Distributing solely and there has never been a credit issue with Magic 
Distributing and her company has an excellent credit history. Ms. Coffey stated that 
she agreed with the comments offered by the other speakers today. 

C bair E llis inquired if' anyone else in the audience would like to address this petition. 
Seeing none, he closed the public hearing. He asked ifthere was a motion concerning 
the proposal that the Commission accept for filing and further discussion, the petition 
for the rule change. l learing none, he announced the request for the Commission to 
accept the petition for the rule change for filing and further discussion will be denied, 
on the grounds that no Commissioner moved that the petition be accepted. 

Assistant Attorney General Jerry Ackerman noted that Chair Ellis spoke at some 
length explaining the Commission's reasons regarding the proposed petition. The 
agenda packet also contains the minutes from the last two decision making hearings 
that were held on this topic. Mr. Ackerman noted that under the rules, the 
Commission is required to state the reasons for deny ing the petition even though there 
was no vote. The fact that no motion was made effectively denies the petition. He 
suggested that if any of the individual Commissioners wish to add to what Chair Ellis 

Excerpt from January 2007 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 6of7 



has already said, and to what is in the packet, they should do so. However, if the 
Commissioners wish to rely upon the Chair's comments and the information which is 
in the packet, then that is an option for them also. He affirmed the written minutes 
and the transcript of this heating will serve as the writing that is required under the 
APA. 

Commissioner Niemi responded that her comments have also been included in the 
packet in the other meetings. She emphasized that as sympathetic as she may be to r the people who spok~ regarding this matter, she firmly believed that this is not within 
the mission of the Gambling Commission. This matter has nothing to do with 

\ 

gambling- it has a lot to do with antitrust. She totally concurred with Chair Ellis th~t 
the Attorney General, the Federal Trade (FTA), and the·U. S. Attorney should put in 

l
writing why they won ' t lake this matter lip because they are the agencies that should 
be involved in this issue. 

Commissioner Bierbaum commented that she practices law and often times she will 
have clients that ask her to do something that she is not good at. It may be something 
that she just don't know enough about; and while they really need her help. she sends 
them somewhere else to somebody who knows more about that area of law. She 
explained that bankruptcy is a good example- it is very complicated and it is like 
antitrust where there aren't that many lawyers that are good at it. Commissioner 
Bierbaum emphasized that in this case, it isn't that the Commission doesn't want to 
help; it's just not somethjng the Commjssion is charged with doing, and it is 
something the Commission isn't necessarily good at doing. 111e other organizations 
identified would be so much better suited to serve the affected licensees. The 
Commission's agents are not trained in this area, the Commission doesn't have the 
resources, and it's not within the Conunission's central mission. She hoped the 
licensees didn't feel put off by this vote. 

Excerpt from January 2007 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 7of7 



2. Agenda Review I Director's Report: 

Director Day asked for a moment of silence to acknowledge the passing of Joel Wong, 
Muckleshoot Tribal Gaming Agency Director. Staff wanted to extend sympathy and prayers 
lo Joel's family and co-workers. Many peop le had the privilege of working with Joel and he 
will be missed. I Jc was a friend and constant advocate of effective and fair regulation. 

Director Day briefly reviewed the agenda, noting the "60 Minutes" video clip would be 
moved forward, followed by the Texas Hold' em demonstration. 

Representative Alexmuler flfrived at 1:50 p.m. 

''60 Minutes " Video Clip 

Director Day explained Version Two of the "60 Minutes" video c lip is about an internet 
gambling poker cheating operation and describes some of the threats to internet gambling 
which is not really monitored or regulated. The only difference staff could see between the 
two versions was that Version Two clarified that 110 action had been taken und that nobody 
suffered any consequences. 

Summary of Reaea/ o[Manufacturer/Distributor Credit and Pricing Rules 

Director Day explained the Commission repealed the manufacturer/cl istributor credit 
pricing rules a number of years ago. Chair Rojccki requested a report summarizing the 
Commission's actions regarding the repea l of and subsequent complaints about 
manufacturer/d istributor credit and pricing restrictions. 

Assistant Director M~rk Harris explained his report summarized the staff proposed rule 
changes, the complaints received, some public proposed rule changes, and meetings held 
with the Attorney General's Office, Fraud Division. AD Harris provided a brief conclusion 
regarding his research, which basically indicated there appeared to be legitimate business 
reasons why certain manufacturers were not selling to certain distributors. The Attorney 
General's Office, Fraud Division, said there was nothing they could do because it appeared 
there were legitimate business reasons and there was no legal stah1tory authority under the 
RCW to enforce anti-trust rules. The Commission wou ld have to request the statute be 
changed to give them authority to enforce those types of activities. One ortbe complaints 
was against a manufacturer that did not have manufacturing capac ity. That manufachirer 
has since had more capacity and has started sell ing to the couple of distr ibutors that were 
complaining about the manufacturer not sel ling to them in the past. It was a legitimate 
reason that basically came foll circle. 

Chair Rojecl<i asked i !'Mr. [Don] Harris or any other distributor had contacted staff in the 
past month inquiring about lhis. Assistant Director Harris replied staff had not been 
contacted. 

rcommissioncr Reichert asked if there was a door or loophole, if there was a problem f~;i. 
/ strong anning on the part of distributors, tha t some unethical player might be able to use l 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
September 1 0- J 1, 2009 
Approve.d Minutes 
Page 2 of23 



regarding, although notwithstanding, the fact of three instances that were not a problem 
according to the Attorney General 's office in our the review. Assistant Director Harris 
replied that, not being a lawyer, he could not specifically answer that question and defen-ed 
to AAG Ackem1an, bul imagined that under any circumstance there would be an opportt.mity 
for somebody to do something. AAG .Jerry Ackerman thought the conversation with the 
Anti-Trust Division or his office indicated it was possible to come up with combinations of 
businesses, individuals, or entities to do things that would violate anti-trusl laws. AAG 
Ackennan noted he was not a party to the conversations that took place with the Anti-Trnst 
Division, so did not know exactly what they said, but that was what he understood from the 
reports he received. No specific instances of that type of activity were conveyed to the 
Attorney General's Office, and it was decided not to open an investigation at that point. But 
the anti-trust laws are out there and, as far as AAG Ackerman knew, they apply the same to 
gambling businesses, gambling manufaclurers, and distributors as to everyone else in the 
world in an appropriate case. Those laws could be violated and investigations and sanctions 
cou ld follow. But lhe issue for th is Cornm ission is whether they have the statutory authority 
to regulate otherwise lawful business conduct between these entities. which was the subject 
of the initial discussion. The conclusion was that there really was not anything in the 
Commission 's authoriz ing legislation that provided that Could abusive practices take 
place? Sure. The question would be whether they violate anti-rrnst consumer protection or 
other fair business practice type statutes. Commissioner Reichert clarified his question 
was geared more toward whether there was something this Commission should do by way of 
alerting the Legislature or saying there was the potential for abusive behavior on the part of 
wholesalers that might lead to corruption in the gambling industry. AAG Ackerman 
recalled that at the time this fast came forward one of the reasons staff asked the 
Commission, as a whole, to revisit the then existing rules was that they had not found the 
type of activities being described. Staff reported to the Commission that, given the agency's 
mission statement of keeping gambling legal and honest, they were not finding this to be an \. ) 
issue or a problem. und the reviews entai led the use of resources that could be bener __J 
expended elsewhere. 

Commissioner Ellis indicated the one thing that struck him, given his anti-trust background. 
was that all of this was apart from the fact that in most instances the evidence did not 
suggest anti-trust violations. But with regard to the Magic Distributing complaint, the report 
indicated that on1.: of the manufacturers that was no longer doing business with Magic had 
received complaints from other distributors that Magic was undercutling prices, and the 
manufacturer did nm want to be a loss leader for Washington State. If th is type of issue 
arises again, a.nd staff are talking again to the Attorney General ' s office, that is certa inly 
anti-trust smoke that an anti-trust investigator or lawyer would want to pursue. The 
manufacturer has the right to make a unilaLeral decision that they do not want their market in 
the state to be undercut with lower prices, which happens quite a bit. But at the same time, 
ifthere was any co1.:rcio11 on a distributor to adhere to a manufacturer' s recommended 
pricing schedu le, particularly if manufacturers jointly set that pricing schedule, it would be 
an anti-trust violation. Chair Rojecki did nol think that would be anything this Commission 
would undertake. Commissioner Ellis agreed, indicating he was putting it in the context of 
discussions with the Attorney General 's Anti-Trust Division or the Federal Trade 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
September 10-1 1, 2009 
Approved Minutes 
Page J of23 



Commission. Assistant Director Harris affirmed staff would keep that in mind if the issue 
resurfaces. 

Director Day reported the intent of the demonstration on Texas Hold 'ern was to provi(le 
something that would depict the concept of "all-in'' wagers for the Commission. 

Commissioner Ellis pointed out that Senator Prentice had a very strong interest in this topic 
and wondered if it would be possible to hold this presentation until she arrives - if staff has 
an idea of her schedule. Neither Chair Rojeck.i nor Director Day knew her schedule, but it 
was assumed she would al ready be here. Commissioner Bierbaum was almost certain she 
had seen Senator Prentice earlier in the hotel. Chair Rojecki said the presentation would be 
held until Senator Prentice arrived or staff was informed she was not attending. 

Correspondence 
> Commission Fact Sheet 
> Licensee Comparison Chart 
> I listory of Card Room Regulation and Wager Limits 
> Mini-Baccarat Approval Update & Financial Impact of Increasing Betting Limi ts 
> Government Reform - Small Agency Cabinet 

Director Day referred the Commission to the final version or the Fact Sheet about the 
history, authority, and duties of the Gambling Commission. This has already been used with 
legislators as a reference about why the Commission was formed, several of its current 
funct ions, and how it compares to other agencies inside and outside Washington State. 
Director Day explained that as pan of the consolidation study process, Directors' meetings 
arc being held with the four directors of the Liquor Control Board, Lottery. Horse Racing, 
and Gambl ing Commissions. Part of what is being looked at is cost savings issues, 
duplication, or regula1ion, which includes processing licenses. Part of the concept was 
whether there was an overwhelming appearance, either actual or in perception, of 
dupl icating each other's work. There are distinct differences between the organizations. 
These agencies issue over 44,000 licenses, but there are no licensees in common to all fou r 
agencies. There arc a smal I number of licensees that some of the agencies have in common 
- with Lhe largest number being between the Washington Gaming Commission and the 
Liquor Control Board, but about a thin.I of th'ose (2,000) arc amusement games. The Liquor 
Control Board and Lottery Commission do not license individuals, but the Gambl ing 
Commission licenses over 17,000 individuals in Washington State and the I lorsc Racing 
Commission licenses individuals. 

Representative Gary Alexander commented that, even though it looks like there is not 
total duplic ity here, there probably is some. He guessed he .was going back and wearing his 
UBI hat when he was asked by the Governor to look at how to bring businesses together in 
terms of one-stop licensing operations. Representative Alexander asked if staff had thought 
aboul form ing some s~>t1 of a task force to look at where the burden could be eased on 
businesses in terms of duplicate license requirements. Everywhere he goes, Representative 
Alexander hears that of the licenses that have to be issued, some of the licensees have the 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
September I 0-1 L 2009 
Approved Minutes 
Page 4 of23 



Excerpts from the July 2011 
Commission Meeting Minutes 

9. Petition From the Public - Robert Bearden - Reinstating Requirements that 
Manufacturers Must Sell to Distributors 

a) New Section WAC 230-xx.-xxx - Avai lability and pricing of gambling equipment and 
related products and services 

Assistant Director Harris reported the petitioner was requesting that the portion of former 
WAC 230-12-330 requiring manufacturers to make their products and services available to 
distributors without discrimination be reinstated. AD Harris corrected a statement made by 
Mr. Bearden that there was only one licensed manufacturer of bingo paper. There are 
actually two licensed manufacturers that produce bingo paper. The Commission has 
discussed the rules about manufacturers being required to sell to all distributors numerous 
times since 2005. TI1ese include the staff proposal to repeal the rules that were adopted in 
September 2005. There were two petitions from the public to re instate the rules, both of 
which were denjed in 2006 and 2007 for the following main reasons: regulating business 
relationships between distributors and manufacturers is generally outside the scope of the 
Commission's authority, and there are other legal remedies that petitioners could pursue 
other than the Commission rule, such as anti-trust laws. 

In September 2009, a staff report was prepared, which he believed Commissioner Rojecki 
had requested, that summarized complaints that staff had received from licensees on this 
issue. AIL those complaints were determined to be unfounded. ln June 2006, the staff 
completed a survey of manufacturers and distributors to find out how that mle being 
repealed had impacted them. Six distributors and two manufacturers were contracted. Four 
of the distributors said that the rule change had no impact on their business; one said that the 
manufacturers had reduced the discount they offered and basically increased the amount 
they require to make a purchase. They were against allowing credit to operators because the 
operators could barely pay the day-to-day expenses. Another one said Bingo King would 
not sell to them anymore because he was too small of a business. Of the two manufacturers, 
one said it had no impact at all on them, and one said that things were going okay. In June 
2011, staff again contacted four distributors and three manufacturers to determine how they 
had been impacted and whether or not they were for or against reinstating the rules. Two of 
the distributors said they would like to keep the rules as tJJey are. They fe lt it helped 
improve the business, and stated it a llowed them to recapture their travel costs. Two said 
they would like to see the old rules reinstated. One said that the manufacturers would not 
sell to them anymore and was trying to drive them out of business. The other stated they 
had not noticed a difference, but they felt that the ruJe change might help smaller 
distributors. Of the three manufach1rers contacted, one said they did not do a lot of business 
in Washington so there realty was not an impact on them. One said it would hurt their 
business if the rule was reinstated~ they did not have a problem with selling to all, but felt it 
would impact their ability to do discounts and specials to different distributors. One said 

-- ----1 
Gambling Commission Meeting 
July 14, 2011 
Approved Minutes 
Page 16 of24 



(ti1ey would like the rules to be left as they are, and they did not believe that the Commisj ion 
l.§110LLld be messing with the free market as it is. 

The proposal would require manufacture rs to offer gambLing equipment devices and related 
paraphernalia and supplies and services to any distr ibutor wishing to purchase them at the 
same price. The petitioner used the statement d iscriminatory practices are prohibited in the 
rule, but d id not define what discriminatory practices were. Staff contacted the petitioner 
who verbally stated that d iscriminatory practices were self-explanatory and sufficient, and 
people would know what that meant. The impact on licensees is unknown. 

\ 
Regulatory and lawful business practices between licensees are generally outside the scope 
of the Commission's authority. The restoration of the rules would reinstate the agency's 
role as regulating sales, services, pric ing schedules, and credit terms between licensees. 
This would also have an impact on our resources. Before the credit rules were repealed, ow· 
agency devoted half o f an fTE to do that type of work. 

The Commission repealed discriminatory pricing restrictions because the restrictions did not 
have a direct impact on gambling and should no longer be part of a regulatory program. The 
Commission may want to consider whether the problem has been shown to justify rules and 
restrict the business's abiJity to set their own prices and make their own discount decisions. 
There may be other legal remedies that the petitioner could pursue other than the 
Commission rules such as anti-trust laws. Before repealing the rule in 2005, the 
Commissioners carefi.Jlly considered and discussed all the arguments for three months, and 
gave it due consideration. 

Staff recommends denying the petition based on the policy considerations. 

Chair Ellis asked in here were any questions; there were none. He asked if Mr. Bearden 
wou ld like to speak. 

Mr. Bearden stated there were two more letters in favor of the petition change. There are 
several people, expert distributors, and those who have wo1·ked in the industry for quite 
some t ime, that have some real feelings concerning this and getting back on line. They 
wonder bow chatities got involved in this because this is really a distributor issue to 
(inaudible). We are at the bottom of the food chain here. We are the ones who have to pay 
the increased fees because there is not any competition out there that we can go to for a lot 
of stuff. He thought that down in South Tacoma there was one distTibutor that they could 
basically use, even though thete may be 47 licensed in this state. Each one has their 
assigned region. Tf we cannot have additional competition out there, or be able to get quality 
stuff because only one or two distributors have that quality stuff or the materials and 
equipment that we need, then once again, there js no competition. And we cannot take 
advantage because we cannot pass on these charges to our customers. We will s imply Jose 
them. We are losing them as it is now. But r do want to really kind of give up the floor as 

Gambling Commission Meeting 
July 14,2011 
Approved Minutes 
Page 17 of 24 



soon as possible on this because he knew there was a Jot of public comment that the 
Commissioners were probably going to have from the people that are here. 

@air Ellis asked Mr. Bearden if he reaHzed that the eftect of those regulations could~ 
ssibly be to reduce competition if manufacturers decide 'it is s imply not worth putting up 
th the regulations that they are subject to, to do business in Wash ington. 

Mr. Bearden responded he understood that. And we know that it is kind of a do something 
here. We either get some competition so we can benefit from (inaudible) good business 
competition, or if the manufactmer just pulls out of the state, bingo is dead. The industry is 
going to die, or we are going to be using less quality stuft~ or we are going to be doing 
nothing that we can really compete whb. [tis really difficult to explain - and this is where 
my experts are going to come into play. One of the reasons tbat charities got involved in it 
is because we need the competition. We need to be able to save money wherever monies 
can be saved. And the Commission is not the only one who is trying to help us out, by the 
way. We are redoing our entire business approach figuring out other ways. This is just one 
spoke in the wheel. but we are trying to touch every spoke so we can survive. -
Chair Ellis replied that if there are bingo operations in the state, and both of the existing 
manufacturers leave the state, the normal way thal our economy works is other 
manufacturers, or other potential manufacturets see that business sitting there and they go 
into the state to make money. Tf organizations are going to buy their product, that-

-

Mr . .Bearden interrupted and said this could also be a great come on for the justification for 
tbe 144 electronic bingo daubers. 

C hair Ellis called for public comment. 

Mr. Don Harris, owner of H & H Pu ll-Tab, disagreed with everything Assistant Director 
Harris said. My name is in the investigation they had, but no one contacted me. Somebody 
did call me fo r three minutes, and then they put down a ll this information. So all the 
information you've got on these supposed distributors who are all for it, is all bogus. Also 
on there is Danny McCoy, Tri-focus, Tabs Unlimited, myself1 Magic Distributing, Ace, 
Spokane Punch Board, who are all agajnst this. But nobody put that down. Staff said there 
were only two people that were against ut. So all that information this gentleman has maybe 
it is the way they did it, staff j ust sat down at a desk and wrote. To me it is all bogus. Staff 
did not get people up here and ask what their opinion was, like he was doing right now. Mr. 
Harris stated he was going to tell the Commissioners his opinion. He thought what the 
agency was doing was very w rong. Commissioners should reinstate that because it is a 
RICO Act 

C hair Ellis recalled Mr. Harris' views from the last time. 

Gambling Commission Meeting 
July 14, 201 I 
Approved Mimttes 
Page 18 of24 



Mr. Harris said that An:ow International, they are talking about the bingo paper, they 
bought out Trade and that was a Trade bingo paper. And they own Arrow, so that is all the 
bingo paper. They bought them out so they have control. Those two distributors that are all 
for not going for this are the people that they have here. Mr. Ed's took all their own 
employees which they bought out in 1993, which he brought to the Commission' s attention 
back in 1995 that nobody knew about th is. And all of those people are now distributors 
under Arrow. That is who sell almost 85 percent of their stuff to; people like me, people 
I ike Magic, people like Ace. Ace Distributing, which could not be here today, started going 
through the internet and selling a dollar or so under the normal price. Then he got cut off 
because Wow went in there and told them do not let this guy have any, so they cut him off. 
That is all discriminatory. That is discrimination. He did not see how the Commission 
cannot see that. It is discrimination. He said he had read all the Commissioners statements 
saying ''weH that was not our problem". If it was not tbeir problem, then maybe they should 
just disband this whole gaming commission, because if Commissioners are not going to do it 
- we look to t he Commission for all the rules. We can only buy from A, B, C, D, and E 
manufacturer, and if they do not sell to us, what the hell were they supposed to do. lt is like 
going into Costco. Customers get a Costco card and go into Costco and buy $150 worth of 
groceries. When the customer gets up to the check stand they say "no, we are not se lling to 
you, get out of here". Was there any difference? No, there was not. lt is discrimination all 
the way. That is where the RJCO comes in because - he indicated he was getting ahead of 
hjmself again, and apologized. That is what Arrow InternationaJ is doing. They are creating 
a RJCO Act in racketeering by only sellEng to certain people. And he did not see how the 
Commission did not see that, especially with a guy ljke Commissioner Mike Amos on there, 
who is ex-law enforcement. How you guys cannot see the racketeering involved there. He 
meant if Commissioners cannot see it - he hated to say this, but they have all these guys on 
the Commission here, but they do not know anything about the industry. And they are 
making decisions on stuff that they do not really know stuff about. Commissioners should 
get people on there, or get advice from people that have been in the business for a long time 
and ask them what is going on. And he thought what the Commission did was wrong. He 
thinks Commissioners need to repeal it and get it back so it is a level playing field here for 
everybody. 

--..... 
Chair Ellis informed Mr. Harris that the Commiss ion made those decisions after extensive 
discussions, extensive publ ic hearings, just like this one when experts, like him, came and 
gave Commissioners their views. The Commission disagreed, ultimately , that they had the 
authority to start telling companies what they could charge and who they could do business 
with, since it seemed to have. at best, any connection with protecting the public from 
dishonest gaming practices. Those are c learly competitive issues. 

-Mr. Harr is confirmed be understood, but if they cannot buy from whom the state tells them 
to buy from, then from whom are they supposed to buy? There are a lot of people out there 
they could buy from, but t hey have to buy from people who have a state stamp number so 
the state can get their money. They are the only people they could buy from. He asked if 
Commissioners understood. Chair Ellis affirmed they understood, and asked if Mr. Harris 

Gambling Commission Meeting 
July 14, 2011 
Approved Minutes 
Pagel 9of24 



had ony other points. Mr. Harris asked then why they cannot see that one corporation owns 
six of the companies. And there is only one or two oul Lhere whose customers can even get 
anything from. They say who is going to buy and who is not. When the truth gets known, 
Commissioners are going to see that one corporation probably owns those companies. He 
said he did not see why the Commissioners cannot sec through that. Chair EUis confirmed 
he understood Mr. Harris· point. Mr. Harris asked then what the point was if they can only 
buy fi-om the manufacturers that Commissioners tell them to buy fi-om and they do not sell 
to them, then why was there a gaming commission? r le said he wanted Commissioner Ellis 
to answer that question. He was asking the Commissioner direct as the Chairman. Why 
does the Commission exist? Chair Ellis replied the short answer to why the Commission 
exists would be provided to Mr. Harris if he looked at the RCWs and the Washington 
Administrative Code on the various things that the Gambling Commission is responsible for. 
which is protecting the public by ensuring that gambling is honest and fair, and keeping lhe 
criminal element out. Mr. Harris replied it was not honest in this case, and he did not see 
how Commissioners could not see il 

Chair Ellis closed Lhe public testimony and asked if Lhere were any questions by 
Commissioners. 

I Commissioner Rojecki said he thought the Commission had discussed this in the past when 
it gets into RICO, and asked AAG Ackerman how that involves the Gambling Commission. 
He guessed it was a much broader question. 

Assistant Attorney General Ackerman responded he would give the Commissioners a 
broad, general answer regarding a pretty complex subject. In essence. a RICO action, civil 
or criminal, requires violations of federal statute, or if one is bringing a state RICO action, 
violation of state statutes. A RICO action is predicated upon, depending upon which system 
that person is in, either two or three criminal acts that violate designated statutes that are set 
out in the bigger RICO statute. There is a laundry list of crimes; federal crimes for the 
federal RICO, state crimes for the state RICO actfon. To lite an independent RICO action, 
one has to allege and prove either two or three predicate crimes. ff a person is going to do a 
RICO action based on money laundering and some sort of theft type of case, as the basis for 
their RJCO action, they would prove thal Lhere had been a money laundering crime, and also 
Lhat tJ1ere had been a thefl crime. Like he indicated. the laundry list is long. 

RICO actions can be brought one of two ways. The typical way is a person goes to the 
prosecutor, or to the US Attorney, and they say here are the crimes that were commined. 
And if the prosecutor agrees with that person, the prosecutor will file an independent RICO 
action, which is itself an allegation of a crime for which lhat person can obviously be 
convicted and punished. Individuals can also fiJe a lawsuit, what is called a civil RlCO 
action. And again, it will then be their responsibility to show these predicate crimes as part 
of their lawsuit. And if they prevail. then they can receive monetary sanctions and G 
injunctive relief can be issued to remedy whatever the alleged problem is. The difference is, 
obviously, the criminal RlCO action can result in prison time, jail time, typical criminal type 

Gambling Commission Meeting 
July 14. 2011 
Approved Minutes 
Page20 of24 



l. 

sanctions. And the civil. RICO action is a way to recover monetary relief for something that 
has been done and to get a court to order that the activities cease. That is a big picture, 
nutshell on RICO. But the important thing to remember was that person is going to have to 
prove crimes. Those are what are called predicate crimes, and they fonn the basis for 
bringing any kind of RTCO action, c ivil or criminal. 

Mr. Harris asked if he could add to that. C hair Ellis stated he was sorry, but the public 
hearing is over. 

Chair Ellis asked if there was a motion. Hearing no motion, he asked if it would it be 
correct to say that the petition be denied for the reasons specified in the staff 
recommendation. Assistant Attorney General Ackerman replied that would be sufficient 
if that was how the Comm ission wishes to proceed. 

Chair E llis indicated the petition would be deemed denied. The petition for rnle change 
died for lack o[a motion, 

tcr welcomed Representative Timm Ormsby to the Commission. py 
to get h1 ppointmcnt. The Commission also received notice of the reappoin 
Represent ·ve Alexander to the Commission. Staff is glad to haw them b on board. 

time, Ms. Hunter stated she was going to focus on 
fo r 2012. Staff is looking for j ust a nod ofh as to whether 

Commissioners v l staff to pursue this idea funher. And · . Ms. l lunter would bring a 
fuU proposal to the ugust Commission meeting. Agen quest legis lation has to be 
approved by the Gov or's office. Staff has not go notice yet whether the deadline for 
that would allow time the Commissioners to t a final vote at the eptember meeting 

ers will have to v 

Staff is proposing that the le or which a license cou ld be issued be extended up 
lo 18 months. That would jus irst step in allowing the Commission to use the 
Master License Services syste ich was changed to the Business License Services. That 
function was previously ad · d by the Department of Licens ing, but legislation passed 
this year moved tJ1at fun . n to the epartment of Revenue. As of July I, the Business 
License ervices fun ' 'r1 is now witH e Department of Revenue. 

rking with the Departme of Licensing on the idea of tJ1e Gambling 
Commissio eing able lo use their service ·the gambling licenses for about a year or two 

fthe first things that staff has dete ' ned is that d uring their trans ition time they 
to be able to issue a license for longer f one year. Commission's law says that 

sta an only issue a license for up to one year. As tant Attorney General Ackerman has 
vided input on the propose,d language . She pointe ut this is only for organizations; 

Gambling Commission Meeting 
July 14, 2011 
Approved Minutes 
Page 2J of24 



Staff Proposed Rule Change 

• Manufacturer Special Sales Permits 

April 2014 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
March 2014- Study Session 
February 2014- Study Session 

ITEM: 11 

a) Ameodatory ection WAC 230-03-025 
Applying for a manufacturer·s special sales permi t. 

b) New Section: WAC 230~16-187 
Accounting records for manufacturer's special sales permit holders. 



Proposed amendments to: 
WAC 230-03-025 Applying for a manufacturer's special sales permit. 
Proposed New Rule: 
WAC 230-16-187 AccOLmting records for manufacturer's special sales 

permit holders. 

Apri l 2014 - Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
March 2014 - Study Session 

February 2014 - Study Session 

ITEM 11 (a-b) on the Apri l 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda. StatutorY Authority 9 .46.070( 4) 

Who proposed the rule chan~? 
Staff. 

Proposed Change 

The proposed change would provide clarity as to which businesses would be required to get a 
manufacturer's license and which would qualify for a manufacturer's special sales pennit. 

Staff is adding language to answer questions received from applicants about this permit: 
• Who can apply for this permit; 
• How long the permit is good for; 
• The activity allowed with this permit; and 
• The rules that the permit holder must follow. 

Staff is also proposing a new rule outlining recordkeeping requirements for permit holders. 

!\ ttachments: 
• Stakeholder letter dated March 25, 2014. 
• Small Business Economic Impact Statement. 

llistory of Rule 

The special sales permit was created by rule in July 1995 to allow manufacturers to sell gambling 
equipment on a limited basis to a distributor or to tribal governments. The intent was that the permit 
would be an alternative to the manufacturer's license when demand for equipment was below the 
economical feasibility for the licensee or applicant to go through the manufacturer application process. 

The original rule was intended for Limited sales and not for sales beyond one year or any ongoing service 
of the equipment after the special sales permit expired (one year). The original rule outlined: 

• Criteria for obtaining a special sales permit; 
• lnformation required on the application for a pennil; 
• Initial investigation that would be performed by staff; 
• Process the Director used to determine if a manufacturer's license, rather than a permit, wa<S 

required: and 
• That a permjt was only valid for one year during which time the Director could require and notify 

a permit holder to obtain a manufacture license. 

Dming the 2008 Rule Simplification Project, the rule was reduced to two criteria: 
• Selling authorized gambling equipment; and 
• Demonstrating that the anticipated profits from the sales will be helm the cost of obtaining a 

manufacturer's license. 



The special sales permit costs $211. The annual manufacturer license fee for manufacturers of pull-tab 
dispensing devices is $659. License fees for manufacturers of all other gambling equipment ranges from 
$1,318 for annual gross sales up to $250,000 to $4,242 for annual gross sales greater than $2.5 million in 
Washington. 

The original special sales permit rule as passed in 1995 a llowed applicants to be assessed the actual pre-
Licens ing costs. This allowed staff to bill manufacturers for investigative costs that exceeded the permit 
fee. Subsequent rule changes removed the notice of the additional pre-licensing investigative costs that 
can be assessed per RCW 9.46.070(5). Staff is proposing adding this language back into the mle. 

For example, we have issued special sales permits to businesses that built their own tables, a manufacturer 
ofroulelte wheels with an electronic reader and display of the outcome of the game, a former licensed 
manufacturer that makes dice and layouts, and a manufucturer that makes playing cards. 

Impact of the Proposed Change 

There is a need for a one time manufacturer' s license to: 

• Test the market before committing to a more extensive manufaclurer·s license; or 

• Make a one-time sale of gambling equjpment without an ongoing relationship after the sale . 

Currently, permit holders are not required to follow all the reeordkeeping and quality control standards 
outlined in WAC Chapter 230-16, which is required for all other manufacturers. The proposed mle 
change makes it clear that holders of the special sales permit must follow all rules, including those 
applicable to manufacturers. However, in an effort to reduce the burden on permit holders, the new rule 
outlines less extensive recordkeeping requirements penn,it holders must maintain. 

A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was prepared and is attached. 
Regulatory Concerns 

There are regulatory concerns with the current special sales permit rule. A very limited pre-ljcensing 
investigation is conducted on a special sales permit applicant. We require basic information on the 
business entity and conduct a criminal history check on just the owners and officers. We do not conduct 
an on-site review of the manufacturing process or verify the equipment is in compliance with our rules 
because the permit fee does not cover the cost of doing so. and the intent of the special sales pennit was 
for sales of authorized gambling equipment on a limited basis. 

Resource Impacts 
The rule change will reduce questions received by staff and will reduce the case-by-case analysis of 
applicants that is presently done. 

Policy Consideration 
None. 

Statements Supp<,>rting the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Statements Opposing the Proposed Rule Change 

None. 
Licensees Directly Impacted By the Change 

Special sales pemut applicants. 

Staff Recommendation 
File for further discussion. 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
January 1, 2015 



Amendatory Section: 

WAC 230-03-025 Applying for a manufacturer's special sales permit. 

(I) You may apply for a one-time manufacturer's special sales permit if ((yeu)): 
(a) You want to sell authorized gambling equipment as set forth in WAC 230-03-200; and 
(b) ((Demonstrate thal tke 0fllieipa~ed profits from your sales vlill be below lhe east of obtaiAiAg-& 

maalifaeturer lieense. 
(2) OthePwise, yol:l ml:i:St apply for a ma1n1facturer lieense.)) Gross sales from authorized gambJing 

equipment will be less than twenty-five thousand dollars during your pemut year; and 
(c) You will not have an ongoing vendor/customer relationship after the sale or installation of the 

gambling eguipmcnt. 
(2) You may be assessed additional fees after an estimate of the permit investigation costs have been 
established. 
(3) The manufacturer's special sales permit will be issued for one year and is not renewable. 
(4) Manufacturer's special sales permittees must comply with all rules. including those for 
manufacturers in Chapter 230-16. 
(5) You will need a manufacturer•s license if you: 

(a) Fail to meet the requirements of a special sales permit: or 
{b) Want a renewable. annuaJ license. 



New Rule: 

\VAC 230-16-187 Accounting records for manufacturer's special sales permit holders. 

Holders of a manufacturer's special sales permiI must keep and maintain a complete set of records for 
their licensed activitv. They must, at least: 

(1) Keep a: 
(a) Cash disbursements book (check register) - Permit holders must document all expenses, both 

gambling and nongambling related~ with invoices or other appropriate supporting documents. Thev musl 
enter information monthly and include. at least: 

(i) The date the check was issued or payment made: 
(jj) The number of the check; and 
(iii) The name of the payee: and 
(iv) Type of expense: and 
(b) Cash receipts -Permit holders must keep a record of cash sales and cash received from all 

sources. Thev must enter information for each payment received monthly and include3 at least, the: 
(i) Date; and 
(ii) Name of the person paying; and 
(iii) Amount; and 
(c) Copies of all financial data - Permil holders must keep copies of all .financial data that supports 

tax reports to governmental agencies: and 
(2) Maintain copies of all agreements reearding sales or leasing of gambling equipment and supplies 

that fully disclose au terms. 
(3) Comply with the record.keeping requirements outlined in WAC 230-16, except for WAC 230-16-

185, 230-16-200, and230-16-215. 



STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
"P1otect the Public by Ensuring that Gambllng lJ Legal and Honest" 

March 25, 2014 

To: Previous Manufacturer' s Special Sales Permit I folders 

Subject: NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE CHANGES: 
• Applying for a manufacturer' s special sales permit amd 
• Accounting records for manufacturer's special sales permit holders. 

Staff is proposing to amend the rule on applying for a manufacmrer · s special sales pennit w 
address: 

• Who can apply for this permit; 
• How long the permit is good for; 
• The activity allowed with this permit; and 
• The rules that the pem1it holder must follow. 

We are also proposing a new rule outlining the accounting records manufacturer's special sales 
permit holders will have to keep and maintain. 

The proposed rules will be up for discussion and possible filing at the April 1 O. 2014, 
Commission meeting. The Commission meeting will be held at the Vancouver Heathman Lodge, 
7801 NE Greenwood Drive, Vancouver, WA 98662 (360) 254-3 100. 

Commission meetings are open to the public, and you are invited to attend. Please visit our 
website at wwvv. wsgc. wa.gov about one week before the meeting to confirm the date, time. and 
location. 

lfyou are unable to attend the meeting, please send your written comments by April 9 , 2014 to: 
E-mail: Susan.Newer@wsgc.wa.gov 
FAX: (360) 486-3625 
Phone: (360) 486-3466 
Mail: Susan Newer, Gambling Commission. 

P.O. Box 42400, Olympia, WA 98504-2400 

P.O. Box 42400 •Olympia. Washington 98504·2400 • (360) 486·3440 •TOD (360) "86·3637 •FA)( (360) 486·3631 



March 24, 2014 

Sma II Business Economic Impact Statement - RCW 19 .85.040 
'Vashington fate Gambling Commission 

Roles Pa.ckage: WAC 230-03-025 Applying for a manufacturer's special sales permit. 
WAC 230-1 6-1 87 Accounting records for manufactw·er' s special sales permit 

holders. 

Involvement of Small Businesses: We currently have no active special sales permit holders. 
Instead, we notified former special sales permit holders. They were provided notification of the 
proposed changes on March 25. 2014. Additionally, notification included discussion during 
study sessions in February and March 2014. \Ve also filed the Code Revisor's 101 on November 
26, 2013. llllder WSR 13-24-054. 

If filed for discussion in April 20 14, the rules package will be discussed at the April and May 
2014 study sessions. Comments will be solic ited at the open, public meeting of lhe Gambling 
Commission on April 10. 2014. The rules package was published in the March 2014 edition of 
the Focu. on Gambling news letter. The rules package will also be posted on our website for 
viewing by the general public. This process provided small businesses opportunitjes to comment 
on the development of the rules. 

1. Description of the reporting, record keeping and other compliance requirements 
of the proposed rule. 

We closely control the use and possession of gambling equipment, as defined in 
WAC 230-03-200. Manufacturer special sales permit holders are authorized to sel I 
gambling equipment they manufacture. With U1e rule changes proposed. special sales 
permit holders wi ll be required to keep the following accounting records: sales 
invoices of all gambling equipment sales in the format we require, agreements 
relating to the sale or lease of gambling equipment. check register, cash receipts, and 
copies of all financial data that supports tax reports to govemmemal agencies. 

Gambling equipment must be approved by us and is tracked through identification 
stamps (LO. stamps) that the special sales permit holders purchase from us. The I.O. 
stamps are nffo<ed to the gambling equipment they produce for sale to licensees. 
These I.D. stamps are a way for us to know the gambling equipment in use is 
approved. The permit holders must keep records of the I.D. stamps they purchase and 
attach to equipment as outlined in our rules. 

Special sales permit holders will also have to comply with the manufacturing 
requirements of gambling equipment outlined in WAC Chapter 16. These 

Small busine.vs economic impact statement Pagel of5 



requirements protect the public from being defrauded and prevent cheating and other 
schemes. 

This rules package will also require special sales permit holders to submit activity 
repo11s to us twice a year, in which they report the gross sales of gambling equipment 
in Washington. 

2. Kinds of prof~sional services that a small business is likely to need in order to 
comply. 

All businesses, as an ordinary course of doing business, maintain a check register, 
sales invoices, cash receipts register, etc. Special sales permit holders will be 
required to maintain these same accounting records. 

Ln addition to these accounting records, special sales permit holders will need to 
record J.D. stamps purchased and affixed to gambling equipment and submit two 
reports to us a year containing their gross gambling equipment sales per quarter. 

Given that each business owner has a different skill level and the volume of business 
vviJI vary. a bookkeeper may be needed to maintain the accounting records and 
complete the activity report for the business. 

Each special sales permit hol<ler will have varying sales volume based on the type of 
gambling equipment they manufacture, and may not exceed $25,000 in gambling 
cqujpment sales in the permit year. For example, one roulette wheel sale may 
account for a $25,000 sale, whereby it would take multiple sales of punch boards or 
pull-tabs to get lo $25.000. For special sales permit holders with a larger volume of 
sales there will, of course, be more records to maintain. 

3. The act ual costs to small businesses of compliance, including costs of equipment, 
supplies, labor and increased administrative costs. 

We cannot determine the actual costs to small businesses of complying with the 
additional gambling equipment compliance, reporting and record keeping 
requ irements as proposed by this rule package because there are too many variables 
based on the specific gambling equipment manufactured and competency or 
experience of the staffing of the business. 

Future special sales permit holders may already have knowledgeable staff, such as a 
bookkeeper, to comply with recordkeeping and accounting functions aJ1d with the 
gambling equipment approval process. 

Sm(ll/ hu.~·iness economic impact stutemenr Page 2 of5 



If the future special sales permit holder does not have knowledgeable staff, then they 
would likely need to hire a bookkeeper to assist them with the recordkeeping and 
accounting functions. We cannot determine the actual costs to small businesses for 
hiring a bookkeeper to assist with the recordkeeping and accounting functions 
because there arc too many variab les that would play into determining the costs, such 
as experience level needed, size oftbe company. sales volume and location of 
business. 

If a future special sales permit holder does not have the equipment necessary to 
comply witb gambling equipment standards, we cannot determine the actual costs to 
smal l businesses to comply. Variables that prevent us from determining the actual 
costs for compliance include, but arc not limited to, the type of gambling equipment 
manufactured, the level of changes or reconfiguration of existing manufacturing 
equipment needed to comply. ability to lease new manufacturing equipment versus 
purchase, etc. 

4. Whether compliance with the rule, based on feedback received from licensees, 
will cause businesses to lose sales or revenue. 

We have not yet received feedback from former permit holders indicating that 
compliance with this rule will cause businesses to lose sales or revenue. 

The manufacturer's special sales permit is a one-lime. one year permit for gross sales 
of gambling equipment during the permit year to be more than $25,000. This affords 
small businesses an opportunity to see jfthe market in Washington will support future 
sales before getting a more expensive manufacturer's license. 

Over the last I 0 years, we have issued 20 permits. One permit holder got a 
manufacturer's license after their permit expired a11d three pem1it holders received a 
Fund Raising Equipment Distributor's license after their permit expired. 

5. A c.Jetermination of whether the proposed ruJe will have a disproportionate 
impact on small businesses. 
The statutoty method for determining disproportionate impact is: the costs of 
compliance for a small business must be compared with the cost of compliance for I 0 
percent of businesses that are the largest businesses required to comply with the 
proposed n1le using one or more of the following as a basis for comparing costs: 
"· Cos1 per employee; or 
b. Cost per hour of labor,· or 
c. Cost per one hundred dollar <?lsales. 

We cannot make this determination because we do not track the size of the businesses 
lhat apply for special sales permits. We cannot determine the costs. if any. to comply 
with the gambling equipment standards in the state because it depends upon the type 
of gambling equipment they will produce. Lastly, we do not know if a potential 

Small husine.v.v economic impact statement Page3 of5 



special sales permi1 holder wiU already maintain the records we require as a normal 
course of their business or have to hire additional help. 

The permit is only valid for one year and limits gross sales to $25,000 during the 
permit year. 

ln the last J 0 years. we have issued 20 special sales perm.its. Four were to companies 
out of the country, such as the United Kingdom, Russia. and England. Nine were out 
of state. but in the United Statc.s. The remaining seven were to companies located in 
Washington. 

6. Steps taken by the agency to reduce the costs of the rule on small businesses or 
reasonable justification for not doing so. Agencies '~must consider, without 
limitation, each of the following methods of reducing the impact of the proposed 
rule on small businesses:" 
a. Reducing, modifying, or eliminating substantive rcgnJatory requirements; 

We have proposed reduced recordkeeping requirements for special sales permit 
holders than what is required for manufacturers. 

b. implifying, reducing, or eliminating rccordkeeping and reporting 
requ i rcments; 

We have proposed reduced recordkeeping requirements for special sales permit 
holders compared to what is required from manufacturers. 

c. Reducing the frequency of inspections; 

Unless we receive a complaint, we do not have routine inspections we perform on 
special sales permit holders. The special sales permit is a one-time, non
renewable permit. 

d. ))claying compliance timetables; 

Reporting violations are given additional compliance time through the Paperwork 
Reduction Act. 

e. Reducing or modifying tine scbednJes for noncompliance; or 

For reporting requirements, first-time reporting violations are afforded seven days 
to come into compliance prior to being assessed civil or administrative penalties. 

f. Any other m.itigation techniques including those suggested by small 
bu~incsses or small business advocates. 

Small business economic impact statement Page4 o/5 



We delayed the effective date of the proposed rule package Lo allow potential 
special sales permit holders more time to comment and gain an understanding of 
the new rules. 

7. A description of how the Gambling Commission will involve smaU businesses in 
the de\·elopment of the rule. 

The proposed special sales permit rule change was published in the March 2014 
edition of our Focus on Gambling newsletter and was discussed at the f"ebrnary and 
March 2014 Commission Study Session meetings, which were open to the public. 
We plan on di scussing-the rule at the April 2014 Study Session. The public will be 
able to provide public testimony on the rules package at the Commission meeting on 
April 10. 2014. On March25, 2014, we sent notification letters oftbe proposed rules 
package to six fom1er special sales permit holders to solicit their feedback. The 
proposed rules package is also posted 011 our website for public commenl 

8. A list of industries that will be required to comply with the rule. 
See code 7132. 

9. An estimate of the number of .iobs that will be created or lost as the result of 
compliance with the proposed rule. 

Keeping in mind that the special sales permit is a one-time pennit that is only valid 
for one year and/or gross sales up to $25.000 during the permit period, the number of 
jobs that would be potentially created or lost would be minimal . 

Small business economic impact statement Page5 of5 



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
2014 Commission Meetings 

January 16 & 17 Comfort Inn Conference Center 
 1620 74th Avenue SW 

Tumwater, WA  98501 – (360) 352-0691 

February 13 & 14 Comfort Inn Conference Center 
1620 74th Avenue SW 
Tumwater, WA  98501 – (360) 352-0691 

March 13 (One-day Only) Comfort Inn Conference Center 
 1620 74th Avenue SW 

Tumwater, WA  98501 – (360) 352-0691 

April 10 & 11 Vancouver Heathman Lodge 
7801 NE Greenwood Drive 
Vancouver, WA  98662 – (360) 254-3100 

May 8 & 9 Comfort Inn Conference Center 
1620 74th Avenue SW 
Tumwater, WA  98501 – (360) 352-0691 

Olympia Area (Tentative) June  12

July 11 (One-day Only) Grand Mound Great Wolf Lodge  
20500 Old Highway 99 SW 
Grand Mound, WA  98531 – (360) 273-7718 

August 14 & 15 Comfort Inn Conference Center 
1620 74th Avenue SW 
Tumwater, WA  98501 – (360) 352-0691 

September 11 & 12 Comfort Inn Conference Center 
1620 74th Avenue SW 
Tumwater, WA  98501 – (360) 352-0691 

October 9 & 10 Spokane Davenport Hotel 
10 South Post Street 
Spokane, WA  99201 – (509) 455-8888 

November 13 & 14 Comfort Inn Conference Center (Tentative) 
1620 74th Avenue SW 
Tumwater, WA  98501 – (360) 352-0691 

December NO MEETING 

Note:  Meeting is a week later than usual. 

Note:  Meeting date changed back to original 
date. 

CONTACT Michelle Rancour (360) 486-3447 No Meetings in December 
Revised 04-07-14 michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov 

mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov


The next meeting of the 
Washington State 

Gambling Commission 
will be held

Thursday, May 08, at 10:00 a.m. 
Friday, May 09, at 9:30 a.m. 

Comfort Inn Conference Center 
1620 74th Avenue SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 

(360) 352-0691 

For Reservations: 
The Comfort Inn Conference Center 

www.choicehotels.com/hotel/wa126 
360-352-0691 

OR 
The GuestHouse Inn & Suites 

www.guesthouseintl.com/hotels/tumwater 
360-943-5040 

Please mention the Gambling Commission when making reservations. 

The Public is encouraged to attend.   
Please feel free to post this notice at your business. 

http://www.choicehotels.com/hotel/wa126
http://www.guesthouseintl.com/hotels/tumwater

	Cover
	Agenda
	Minutes not available
	New Licenses & Class III
	Problem Gambling
	Rule Change:  Gambling Equipment
	Rule Change:  Background Checks on Landlords
	Rule Change:  Stay Hearings
	Rule Change:  Pull-tab Prizes of $20 or less
	Rule Change:  John Lowmon
	Rule Change: Special Sales Permit
	Comm Mtg Future Dates
	Back Page



